
 

 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

REGULARLY SCHEDULED 
MEETING 

 

March 23, 2016 

 

 

 

MEETING DOCUMENTS 



Table of Contents 

 

Agenda ……………………….………………………………………………………...….. 1-2 

Item 2: February 2016 Board of Trustees Regular Meeting Minutes ……………….…..… 3-8    

Item 4: Presentation by Investment Consultant...………………………….…….……….. 9-18 

Item 5: Quarterly Real Estate Report ………………………………………...…………. 19-53 

Item 6-F: Amendments to Investment Policy Statement ...…………………....………... 54-75 

Item 8-A-1: Governance Committee: Exec. Dir. Succession Planning …………….…..….. 76 

Item 9: Federal Grant Matching Funds for FY 2017 ……………………….………..…..… 77 

Item 12-A: Client Services Report …..…………………………………….….…........... 78-85 

Item 12-B: Human Resources Report …………………………………….………..………. 86 

Item 12-C: Finance Report ……………………………………………….……….….…. 87-95 



TEACHERS’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF OKLAHOMA 
Regular Board Meeting 

Wednesday, March 23, 2016 – 9:00 AM 
TRS Administration Board Room 

2500 N. Lincoln Blvd., 5th Floor, Oklahoma City, OK 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

1. ROLL CALL FOR QUORUM 
 

2. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  
A.  February 24, 2016 Regular Meeting 
 

3. PRESENTATON BY INVESTMENT MANAGERS: 
A.  Epoch Investment Partners, Inc. 
B.  Wasatch Advisors, Inc. 
 

4. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON INVESTMENT CONSULTANT MONTHLY 
REPORT 
 

5. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON QUARTERLY REAL ESTATE REPORT 
 
6. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON INVESTMENT COMMITTEE REPORT:   

A. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON MANAGER STATUS SUMMARY 
REPORT The Board of Trustees may elect to make any changes to the status of any manager(on 
watch, alert, remove them from that status, or terminate (and select transition manager and 
reallocate funds if necessary)) based on the information available at the Board meeting. 

B. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO AWARD INTERNATIONAL EQUITY 
MANAGER SELECTION 

1. Selection of International Equity Managers 
2. Negotiations of Contracts 
3. Structure Options 
4. Transition Manager 

C. DISCUSSION ON REAL ESTATE BROKERAGE SERVICE RFP 
D. PRESENTATION BY WELLINGTON MIDCAP PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT 
E. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON AMENDMENT TO WELLINGTON 

INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT 
F. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO ADOPT AMENDMENTS TO 

INVESTMENT POLICY STATEMENT 
G. DISCUSSION ON CHIEF INVESTMENT OFFICER REPORT 
 

7. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS ON 
PROPOSED LEGISLATION FOR THE 2016 SESSION AND PRESENTATION BY 
MAJORITY PLUS, INC. 

 
8. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON COMMITTEE REPORTS:  

A. Governance  
1. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO ADOPT POLICY ON EXECUTIVE 

DIRECTOR SUCCESSION PLANNING  
B. Audit 
   

1



9. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO SET CONTRIBUTION RATE FOR FEDERAL 
GRANT MATCHING FUNDS FOR FY 2017 
 

10. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPROVE THE STATEWIDE VIRTUAL 
CHARTER SCHOOL BOARD AS AN OTRS PARTICIPATING EMPLOYER 

 
11. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPROVE CONTRACT WITH ATTORNEY 

GENERAL FOR FY 2017 
 
12. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON AGENCY REPORTS: 

A. Client Services (70 O.S. 17-105) 
B. Human Resources 
C. Finance 
D. General Counsel 
E. Executive Director  

 
13. QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS FROM TRUSTEES 

 
14. NEW BUSINESS (Any matter not known about or which could not have been reasonably foreseen 

prior to the time of posting. 25 O.S. 2011, §311.) 
 

15. ADJOURNMENT  
 
Note: The Board of Trustees may discuss, vote to approve, vote to disapprove, or decide not to 
discuss any item on the agenda.  

2



MEETING MINUTES 
February 24, 2016 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
TEACHERS’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF OKLAHOMA 

 
 

The regularly scheduled meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Teachers’ Retirement System of 
Oklahoma was called to order by Bill Peacher, Chairman, at 8:10 a.m., in the Administration Board 
Room, 5th Floor, Oliver Hodge Education Building, 2500 N. Lincoln Blvd., OKC, OK. The meeting 
notice and agenda were posted in accordance with 25 O.S. Section 311(A)(11). 
 
TRUSTEES PRESENT: 
Bill Peacher, Chairman Phil Lewis* 
Vernon Florence, Vice Chair Kevin Moore* 
Judie Harris, Secretary Lance Nelson*    
Bill Bentley* Myron Pope*   
Roger Gaddis Gary Trennepohl* 
Jill Geiger* Greg Winters* 
Christa Hughes 
 
TRUSTEES ABSENT: 
 
TRS STAFF PRESENT: 
Tom Spencer, Executive Director              
Julie Ezell, General Counsel 
Dixie Moody, Director of Client Services 
Kim Bold, Human Resources Director 
Sam Moore, Director of Finance/CFO 
 

Debra Plog, Employer Reporting Manager 
Kirk Stebbins, Chief Investment Officer 
Melissa Kempkes, Investment Analyst 
Phyllis Bennett, Executive Assistant 
 

OTHERS PRESENT: 
Norman Cooper, OREA 
Wayne Maxwell, RPOE  
Greg Weaver, Bogdahn Group 
Doug Anderson, Bogdahn Group 
Luke Martin, Majority Plus, Inc. 
 
Dr. Michael Heldman, Allianz Global Investors 
Christian McCormick, Allianz Global Investors 

Matt Benkendorf, Vontobel Asset Management  
Peter Newell, Vontobel Asset Management 
Amit Mukadam, Vontobel Asset Management 
John A. Boselli, Wellington Management Co. 
Greg Williams, Wellington Management Co.  
Alexander Grant, Wellington Management Co. 
Robert Gilliam, McKinley Capital Management 
Jeff Patterson, McKinley Capital Management 

Taylor Carrington, Allianz Global Investors           David Settles, State Street Global Advisors 
Joseph A. Zock, Tocqueville Asset Management           Gaurev Mallik, State Street Global Advisors 
James E. Hunt, Tocqueville Asset Management           Jean-Christophe de Beaulieu,  

State Street Global Advisors 
        
*Denotes late arrival or early departure.  

 
 

ITEM 1 – ROLL CALL FOR QUORUM:  Chairman Peacher called the Board meeting to order at 
8:10 a.m. and asked the recording secretary to wait to call roll until more Trustees arrived for a quorum.  
Due to the rescheduled time, some Trustees would be arriving late.   
 
 

3



ITEM 3 – SWEARING IN OF NEW TRUSTEE – CHRISTA HUGHES:   Ms. Hughes was sworn in 
as a new Board Trustee. She was appointed by Speaker of the House Jeff Hickman representing retired 
educators.   

Kevin Moore arrived at 8:21 a.m. 
 
ITEM 1 – ROLL CALL FOR QUORUM:  At 8:21 a.m., Chairman Peacher asked the recording 
secretary to call the roll to determine if a quorum was present. Trustees responding were Mr. Florence, 
Mr. Gaddis, Ms. Harris, Ms. Hughes, Mr. Moore, Dr. Trennepohl and Chairman Peacher. A quorum was 
met. Mr. Bentley was also present but does not count toward a quorum. 
 
ITEM 2 – MEETING MINUTES:  A motion was made by Mr. Gaddis with a second made by Ms. 
Harris to approve the January 27, 2016, Regular Board meeting minutes as presented. The motion carried 
by a unanimous voice vote. Trustees responding were as follows:  Mr. Florence, Mr. Gaddis, Ms. Harris, 
Ms. Hughes, Mr. Moore, Dr. Trennepohl and Chairman Peacher. 
 
ITEM 4 – PRESENTATION BY INTERNATIONAL EQUITY RFP FINALISTS:  Investment 
consultants to the Board, Greg Weaver and Doug Anderson of the Bogdahn Group, presented their 
Finalists Review of the International Equity Manager Searches.  Chairman Peacher said each of the 
finalist’s representatives would be given 30 minutes to present to the Board after which the Board would 
discuss the respective finalists’ presentations.  Representatives of the finalists listed below presented 
portfolios describing their respective firm’s history, staff, investment philosophy, investment style, 
holdings and successes.  
  
A. Allianz Global Investors:  Dr. Michael Heldman and Christian McCormick presented at 8:27 a.m. 
 

Dr. Myron Pope arrived at 8:33 a.m. 
Dr. Phil Lewis arrived at 8:50 a.m. 
Lance Nelson arrived at 8:56 a.m. 

 
B. Tocqueville Asset Management:  Joseph Zock and James E. Hunt presented at 9:10 a.m. 
 

Jill Geiger arrived at 9:38 a.m. 
 
C. Vontobel Asset Management:  Matt Benkendorf, Peter Newell and Amit Mukadam, 9:50 a.m. 
 

A break was taken at 10:32 to 10:45 a.m. 
Mr. Nelson left at 10:45 a.m. 

 
D. Wellington Management: John A. Boselli, Greg Williams and Alexander Grant, presented at 10:47 
a.m.  
 

Mr. Lewis left at 11:08 a.m. 
 
E. McKinley Capital Management:  Robert Gilliam and Jeff Patterson presented at 11:30 a.m. 
 

Mr. Nelson returned at 11:53 a.m. 
 
F. State Street Global Advisors:  David Settles, Gaurev Mallik and Jean-Christophe de Beaulieu presented 
at 12:10 p.m. 
 

A break was taken from 12:43 to 1:04 p.m. 
 
ITEM 5 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO AWARD CONTRACTS ON 
INTERNATIONAL EQUITY RFP:  Chairman Peacher requested, in the interest of time, that during 
lunch Trustees discuss whether TRS will allocate any money to emerging market managers and what the 

4



Trustees thought about the finalists’ presentations. After discussion it was agreed to wait until March to 
choose an International Equity finalist. Before that time, Trustees will review new models that will 
include various combinations of the RFP finalists and existing fund managers. 
 

Dr. Pope left at 1:32 p.m. 
 
ITEM 6 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON INVESTMENT CONSULTANT 
MONTHLY AND QUARTERLY REPORTS:  Investment consultants to the Board, Greg Weaver and 
Doug Anderson of the Bogdahn Group, presented Market Update and Portfolio Summaries for January 
2016, and the Executive Summary Report for fourth quarter, 2015. Mr. Weaver said the Monthly Asset 
Allocation for January 2016 reflects the model adopted which is still a work in progress as some of the 
categories are not fully funded yet. The fund is overweight in Total Domestic Equity, 43.1% vs. 40.0%.  
International Equity is currently at 15.7% vs. 17.5, down 1.8%. That should go up after an International 
Equity manager is chosen. Core Fixed Income is under .6%. High Yield Fixed Income is slightly under. 
MLPs continue to move toward the 7% target as the funds from the terminated ARI portfolio are 
recommitted.  Private Equity is almost fully at target.  Real Estate is slightly up.  
 
Looking at the Fund + Class Composite Summary, Mr. Anderson said the total fund is down 4.8. Core 
Real Estate and Non-Core Real Estate results are not listed here as they were not published yet.  The 
worst performer, Mid Cap Equity, was down 8.4 for the month. Half of that portfolio has now been 
reallocated and the other half will be moved in mid-March.  Equity Portfolios had sharp differences in 
return. In the International Equity portfolios, Causeway Capital and Northern Trust Passive, the $758M is 
the biggest part of what will likely be allocated to a new International Equity manger.  The International 
Large Cap Equity benchmark was down 11.6% for the last year whereas the International Small Cap 
benchmark was up 1.1%. In Fixed Income Portfolios, Hoisington was down 6.8 over the year but is up 5.5 
for the month.  Total Fund Performance, the portfolio is up 2.3% vs. a loss 5.3% due to allocations of 
40% in International Small Cap.  
 
ITEM 7 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON QUARTERLY 403(B) REPORT:   
Referring to the Bogdahn Group’s 403(b) executive summary report for the fourth quarter, 2015, Mr. 
Weaver said assets and enrollment are down.  He reminded Trustees that by statute, TRS must have this 
program. It is low risk plan that probably has mostly older members in it. There was discussion about 
ending this plan. The overall market value of the assets under management fell from $185 million as of 
September 30, 2015 down to $179,968,345 at December 31, 2015.  No action was taken.  

ITEM 8 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON INVESTMENT COMMITTEE REPORT:  
 
A. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON MANAGER STATUS SUMMARY REPORT:  
Mr. Florence said one manager is still on alert. No action was taken.  
 
B. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON REMOVAL OF MANAGER EXCEPTION FOR 
LORD ABBETT:  Trustees reviewed a letter from Katherine E. Martin, Director of Institutional Client 
Services, at Lord Abbett, who requested that Lord Abbett remove the Exception that was granted by 
Trustees August 27, 2014. 
 
Investment Committee motion to remove exception request from Lord Abbett from Exception List was 
carried by a unanimous voice vote.  Trustees responding were as follows:  Mr. Florence, Mr. Gaddis, Ms. 
Geiger, Ms. Harris, Ms. Hughes, Mr. Moore, Mr. Nelson, Dr. Trennepohl, Dr. Winters and Chairman 
Peacher. 
 
C. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON ADVISORY RESEARCH ALL CAP 
TRANSITION AND MLP FUNDING:  Kirk Stebbins, Chief Investment Officer, said $128M cash from 
the termination of ARI was split between MLP managers Chickasaw and Causeway. The transaction will 
be complete in mid-March.  

5



 
Dr. Trennepohl left at 1:50 p.m. 

 
D. DISCUSSION OF INTERNATIONAL EQUITY PORTFOLIO STRUCTURE OPTIONS:  Per 
Item 5:  A decision on which International Equity RFP finalist to hire will be made in March.   
 
E. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO ADOPT AMENDMENTS TO INVESTMENT 
POLICY STATEMENT:  Mr. Florence, Investment Committee Chair, pointed out amendments to 
Section 1 of the Investment Policy Statement and added that each month the Committee will review 
amendments to another section. There was no discussion. 
 
Investment Committee motion to approve amendments to Section 1 of the Investment Policy Statement 
was carried by a unanimous voice vote.  Trustees responding were as follows:  Mr. Florence, Mr. Gaddis, 
Ms. Geiger, Ms. Harris, Ms. Hughes, Mr. Moore, Mr. Nelson, Dr. Winters and Chairman Peacher. 
 
F. DISCUSSION ON CHIEF INVESTMENT OFFICER REPORT:  Mr. Stebbins had nothing further 
to report. 
 
ITEM 9 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS ON 
PROPOSED LEGISLATION FOR THE 2016 SESSION AND PRESENTATION BY MAJORITY 
PLUS, INC.:  Luke Martin of Majority Plus, Inc. said 14 of 22 bills we are monitoring will die because 
they will miss the deadline to be heard.  Referring to Mr. Spencer’s memo summarizing bills that are 
relevant to TRS for the 2016 session, Mr. Martin and Mr. Spencer described some of the bills and activity 
surrounding them.  There was extensive discussion about SB 1419 which would put a 14th nonvoting 
member on the TRS Board.   Mr. Martin updated Trustees on the status of each of each bill: HB 2247 
passed; HB 2258 passed the House and is headed to a Senate Committee; HB 2263 passed the house 92-3 
and is headed to a Senate Committee; HB 2494 is on the House floor. SB 454, SB 1256, SB 1354; and 
SB1418 will miss the deadline; SB 1092, SB 1103, SB 1128 and SB 1419 all passed Committee and are 
on the Senate floor.  HB 2200, HB 2456, HB 2494, HB 2647, HB 2839, HB 2846, HB 2876, HB 2918, 
HB 2919, HB 3152, and HJR 1041 will miss their deadlines to be heard.  No action was taken. 
 
ITEM 10 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON ADOPTION OF PERMANENT RULES: 
715:1-1-13 amended; 715:1-1-8 amended; 715:10-3-1 amended; 715:10-5-4.1 amended; 715:10-5-1 
amended; 715:10-5-9 amended; 715:10-5-11 amended; 715:10-7-1 amended; 715:10-9-6 amended; 
715:10-11-2 amended; 715:10-13-1 amended; 715:10-13-2 amended; 715:10-13-10 amended; 
715:10-13-13 amended; 715:10-15-3 amended; 715:10-15-10 amended; 715:10-15-7.2 amended; 
715:10-15-10.2 amended; 715:10-17-12 amended; 715:10-15-16 amended; 715:10-25-1 amended; 
715:10-25-2 amended; 715:10-25-3 amended; 715:10-25-4 amended; 715:10-25-5 amended; 715:10-
15-11 amended; 715:10-5-4 amended; 715:10-17-13 amended:  Julie Ezell, General Counsel, presented 
proposed amendments to Permanent Rules.  The rules had been open to public comment. No one came to 
the public hearing but written comments that were received were helpful. Ms. Ezell pointed out there 
were no major changes in the rules, but there was clarification made to some of the existing rules.  
 
A motion by Dr. Winters with a second by Mr. Florence to adopt the amendments to Permanent Rules 
was carried with a unanimous voice vote.  Trustees responding were as follows:  Mr. Florence, Mr. 
Gaddis, Ms. Geiger, Ms. Harris, Ms. Hughes, Mr. Moore, Mr. Nelson, Dr. Winters and Chairman 
Peacher. 
 
11. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON COMMITTEE REPORTS:  
A. Governance  
1. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO ADOPT POLICY ON EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 
SUCCESSION PLANNING:  Kevin Moore indicated that the committee would present this item at the 
next board meeting. 
 
 

6



2. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO ADOPT AMENDMENT TO BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
POLICY MANUAL – EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR EVALUATION POLICY:  Mr. Moore presented 
proposed amendments to the “Evaluation of the Executive Director” in the Board of Trustees Policy 
Manual; a document soliciting staff feedback and amendments to the Performance Management Process 
form as it relates to the Executive Director. Mr. Moore said further revisions are being considered for the 
questions to be asked of the Executive Director’s direct reports.  
 
A motion by Mr. Moore with a second by Dr. Winters to adopt amendments to the evaluation process in 
the Board of Trustees Policy Manual carried with a unanimous vote.  Trustees responding were as 
follows:  Mr. Florence, Mr. Gaddis, Ms. Geiger, Ms. Harris, Ms. Hughes, Mr. Moore, Mr. Nelson, Dr. 
Winters and Chairman Peacher. 
 
B. Audit  
1. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON EXTERNAL AUDIT CONTRACT AND POSSIBLE 
ACTION TO AWARD CONTRACT FOR FY 2017 (TO AUDIT FY 16) TO EIDE BAILLY:  Mr. 
Gaddis presented a memo from Mr. Spencer and a comparison sheet of auditors Eide Bailly and 
McGladrey (RSM) from last year. RSM had difficulties with the external audit of FY 2015 financial 
statements and requested their contract for be increased from $78K to $130K for FY 2016. The Audit 
Committee and staff notified RSM that it would not support that increase and RSM eventually resigned.  
Mr. Spencer met with Eide Bailly, which submitted an RFP last year, and found that they are interested in 
working with TRS and will honor their original cost proposal of $84,975. Mr. Spencer was given positive 
feedback of Eide Bailly by several sources, and approval by State Auditor & Inspector Gary Jones. 
 
A motion by Ms. Geiger with a second by Dr. Winters to award the FY 2016 audit to Eide Bailly carried 
by unanimous vote.  Trustees responding were as follows:  Mr. Florence, Mr. Gaddis, Ms. Geiger, Ms. 
Harris, Ms. Hughes, Mr. Moore, Mr. Nelson, Dr. Winters and Chairman Peacher. 
 
Mr. Gaddis said Stinnett & Associates met with Dr. Trennepohl and Mr. Vernon Tuesday to discuss risk 
assessment, including cyber-security and encryption. Stinnett will coordinate with its IT team to put 
together an engagement that TRS might want to look at. More information will be presented at the next 
meeting. 
 
ITEM 12 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON AGENCY REPORTS:  
A. Client Services (70 O.S. 17-105):  Dixie Moody, Director of Client Services, presented Client Services 
Performance Metrics through January 2016, and the Monthly Retirement Status Report for January 2016. 
There were 1,000 new requests, a slight increase from a year ago. Almost 6,900 calls came into the 
Information Center, comparable to a year ago, 6,292 calls were answered in the Information Center; 395 
went through menu options and 171 callers abandoned their call before it was answered. There were 520 
emails received through the web link.  Ninety-nine clients applied for retirement in January. Three were 
disability retirements – one of the three was awarded Social Security. We had 148 clients terminated. 
 
A motion by Ms. Geiger with a second by Mr. Moore to accept the Client Services report as presented 
was carried with a unanimous voice vote.  Trustees responding were as follows:  Mr. Florence, Mr. 
Gaddis, Ms. Geiger, Ms. Harris, Ms. Hughes, Mr. Moore, Mr. Nelson, Mr. Winters and Chairman 
Peacher. 
 
B. Human Resources:  Kim Bold, Human Resources Director, presented the HR Status Report for January 
2016.  There were no new hires. There was one resignation of a Retirement Planning Consultant whose 
last day was January 31. There were no promotions and no severance payments. Information about hiring 
an executive assistant will be included in the February report that will be presented at the March meeting. 
 
C. Finance:  Debra Plog, Employer Reporting Manager, presented the Employer Reporting report which 
showed there were no delinquent reports. 
 

7



Sam Moore, Director of Finance/CFO, presented the Finance Report for January 31, 2016.  Total 
liabilities and capital investment are at $12,724,577,080.22.  Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes YTD FY 2016 shows Receipts were down 271.22%, Disbursements were up 3.96%, for a net 
decrease of 555.81%.  Comparison in Actual Expenditures FY 2015 to FY 2016, and in Comparison to 
FY 2016 Budget to Actual Expenses, the big changes are decreases related to Professional Services. 
Trustees reviewed the report with no further discussion. 
 
D. General Counsel:  Julie Ezell, General Counsel, said pursuant to the governor’s executive order, all 
email communication related to TRS must go through state email addresses. She demonstrated to Trustees 
how to log into the State web site to access their new email accounts. 
 
Ms. Ezell gave updates on several issues: She mailed letters to the School Board of all districts with 
outstanding Employer End of Year Reports and at this time there are only 3 outstanding; there is one 
client grievance scheduled in March; there has been an uptick in the number of grievances mainly due to 
reconciliation; a new vendor, PBI, is notifying TRS of client deaths more quickly than the State Health 
Department had been doing. 
 
E. Executive Director:  Mr. Spencer presented a report highlighting his activities from February 11 - 23, 
2016.  Besides working to find options to purse an external audit firm, he worked with Mr. Stebbins on 
amendments to the Investment Policy and on options to transition out of ARI and subsequent funding to 
two of our MLP managers.  Mr. Spencer also worked closely with others to monitor the bills affecting 
TRS. Regarding OKCPS missing its employer reporting deadline: Mr. Spencer was unable to connect 
with OKCPS Superintendent Robert Neu but was able to talk with the Associate Superintendent and the 
employer report was submitted that day or the next.  Mr. Spencer reported that TRS will have to replace 
its 1-1/2-year-old telephone system, and will have to pay OMES $2 more per regular phone and $85 more 
per Information Center phone.  He reminded Trustees to put on their calendars that the fall pension 
conference (OPFTEC) will be September 28 – 30 this year in Tulsa, and that TRS is hosting this 
conference. 
 
13. QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS FROM TRUSTEES:  There were no questions or comments 
from Trustees. 
 
ITEM 15 – NEW BUSINESS (Any matter not known about or which could not have been reasonably 
foreseen prior to the time of posting. 25 O.S. 2011, §311.):  No New Business was presented. 
 
ITEM 15 – ADJOURNMENT:  There being no further business, a motion was made by Ms. Geiger 
with a second made by Dr. Winters to adjourn the meeting. The motion carried by a unanimous voice 
vote. Trustees responding were as follows:  Mr. Florence, Mr. Gaddis, Ms. Geiger, Ms. Harris, Ms. 
Hughes; Mr. Moore, Mr. Nelson; Dr. Winters, and Chairman Peacher. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 2:33 p.m. 
 
 
 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES, TEACHERS’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF OKLAHOMA 
 
 
 

BY:      __________________________________________________________________ 
 Bill Peacher, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 

 
BY: __________________________________________________________________ 
 Judie Harris, Secretary 

8



M
ar

ke
t U

pd
at

e
Fe

br
ua

ry
 2

9,
 2

01
6

M
ar

ke
t O

ve
rv

ie
w

 (D
om

es
tic

 E
qu

ity
 v

s.
 D

om
es

tic
 F

ix
ed

)
20

16
 M

ar
ke

t D
ai

ly
 In

de
x 

To
ta

l R
et

ur
n 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

- -

Br
oa

d 
Eq

ui
ty

 M
ar

ke
t O

ve
rv

ie
w

- - - - - -

Br
oa

d 
Fi

xe
d 

M
ar

ke
t O

ve
rv

ie
w

- -
20

16
 M

ar
ke

t M
on

th
ly

 In
de

x 
To

ta
l R

et
ur

n 
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
1/

31
/1

6
2/

29
/1

6
3/

31
/1

6
4/

30
/1

6
5/

31
/1

6
6/

30
/1

6
7/

31
/1

6
8/

31
/1

6
9/

30
/1

6
10

/3
1/

16
11

/3
0/

16
12

/3
1/

16
YT

D
-

Ru
ss

el
l 1

00
0

-5
.3

8%
-0

.0
3%

-5
.4

1%
Ru

ss
el

l 2
00

0
-8

.7
9%

0.
00

%
-8

.8
0%

-
M

SC
I A

C 
W

or
ld

 In
de

x 
EX

 U
SA

-6
.8

0%
-1

.1
4%

-7
.8

7%
BC

 A
gg

1.
38

%
0.

71
%

2.
10

%
BC

 G
lo

ba
l A

gg
 e

x 
U

SD
0.

50
%

3.
49

%
4.

00
%

Eq
ui

ty
 S

ec
to

r P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 F
or

 T
he

 M
on

th
-

Th
e 

to
p 

th
re

e 
pe

rf
or

m
in

g 
se

ct
or

s f
or

 la
rg

e 
ca

p 
do

m
es

tic
 e

qu
iti

es
 w

er
e:

Eq
ui

ty
 S

ec
to

r P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

M
on

th
-T

o-
Da

te
Ye

ar
-T

o-
Da

te
Ru

ss
el

l 1
00

0
Ru

ss
el

l 2
00

0
AC

W
I e

x 
U

SA
Ru

ss
el

l 1
00

0
Ru

ss
el

l 2
00

0
AC

W
I e

x 
U

SA
-

Th
e 

bo
tt

om
 th

re
e 

pe
rf

or
m

in
g 

se
ct

or
s f

or
 la

rg
e 

ca
p 

do
m

es
tic

 e
qu

iti
es

 w
er

e:
En

er
gy

-2
.1

9%
-2

.1
9

-8
.5

4%
-8

.5
4

2.
16

%
2.

16
-5

.5
8%

-5
.5

8
-2

1.
97

%
-2

1.
97

-0
.5

0%
-0

.5
0

M
at

er
ia

ls
6.

90
%

6.
90

2.
86

%
2.

86
6.

19
%

6.
19

-3
.8

2%
-3

.8
2

-7
.0

0%
-7

.0
0

-3
.6

3%
-3

.6
3

In
du

st
ria

ls
3.

94
%

3.
94

1.
98

%
1.

98
0.

73
%

0.
73

-2
.3

6%
-2

.3
6

-5
.6

2%
-5

.6
2

-5
.3

5%
-5

.3
5

-
Th

e 
to

p 
th

re
e 

pe
rf

or
m

in
g 

se
ct

or
s f

or
 sm

al
l c

ap
 d

om
es

tic
 e

qu
iti

es
 w

er
e:

Co
ns

um
er

 D
isc

re
tio

na
ry

0.
69

%
0.

69
2.

64
%

2.
64

-2
.3

0%
-2

.3
0

-4
.7

9%
-4

.7
9

-3
.7

3%
-3

.7
3

-9
.5

7%
-9

.5
7

Co
ns

um
er

 S
ta

pl
es

0.
21

%
0.

21
2.

10
%

2.
10

-1
.9

2%
-1

.9
2

0.
61

%
0.

61
-2

.1
7%

-2
.1

7
-2

.9
3%

-2
.9

3

He
al

th
 C

ar
e

-0
.4

4%
-0

.4
4

-4
.4

1%
-4

.4
1

-2
.7

6%
-2

.7
6

-8
.7

9%
-8

.7
9

-2
2.

90
%

-2
2.

90
-9

.4
4%

-9
.4

4

-
Th

e 
bo

tt
om

 th
re

e 
pe

rf
or

m
in

g 
se

ct
or

s f
or

 sm
al

l c
ap

 d
om

es
tic

 e
qu

iti
es

 w
er

e:
Fi

na
nc

ia
ls

-2
.6

3%
-2

.6
3

-0
.3

2%
-0

.3
2

-3
.2

0%
-3

.2
0

-1
0.

95
%

-1
0.

95
-7

.1
9%

-7
.1

9
-1

3.
26

%
-1

3.
26

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

Te
ch

no
lo

gy
-1

.1
8%

-1
.1

8
0.

33
%

0.
33

-0
.7

8%
-0

.7
8

-6
.5

7%
-6

.5
7

-7
.8

6%
-7

.8
6

-8
.2

7%
-8

.2
7

Te
le

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

2.
34

%
2.

34
7.

02
%

7.
02

-0
.0

1%
-0

.0
1

8.
46

%
8.

46
3.

03
%

3.
03

-3
.2

5%
-3

.2
5

-
Th

e 
to

p 
th

re
e 

pe
rf

or
m

in
g 

se
ct

or
s f

or
 in

te
rn

at
io

na
l e

qu
iti

es
 w

er
e:

U
til

iti
es

1.
88

%
1.

88
0.

47
%

0.
47

-2
.3

7%
-2

.3
7

6.
72

%
6.

72
4.

43
%

4.
43

-5
.2

1%
-5

.2
1

-
Th

e 
bo

tt
om

 th
re

e 
pe

rf
or

m
in

g 
se

ct
or

s f
or

 in
te

rn
at

io
na

l e
qu

iti
es

 w
er

e:
Fi

xe
d 

Se
ct

or
 &

 Q
ua

lit
y 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 M
on

th
-T

o-
Da

te
Ye

ar
-T

o-
Da

te
BC

 A
gg

.
Gl

ob
al

 e
x 

U
SD

BC
 A

gg
.

Gl
ob

al
 e

x 
U

SD
Tr

ea
su

ry
0.

86
%

0.
86

4.
11

%
4.

11
2.

95
%

2.
95

4.
84

%
4.

84

M
BS

0.
40

%
0.

40
1.

15
%

1.
15

1.
71

%
1.

71
1.

27
%

1.
27

Fi
xe

d 
In

co
m

e 
Se

ct
or

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 F
or

 T
he

 M
on

th
Co

rp
or

at
e

0.
84

%
0.

84
1.

06
%

1.
06

1.
36

%
1.

36
0.

63
%

0.
63

-
Th

e 
se

ct
or

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 fo
r d

om
es

tic
 fi

xe
d 

in
co

m
e 

in
 o

rd
er

 o
f b

es
t p

er
fo

rm
in

g 
to

 w
or

st
 w

as
:

Aa
a

0.
67

%
0.

67
1.

93
%

1.
93

2.
41

%
2.

41
2.

72
%

2.
72

Tr
ea

su
ry

 (r
et

ur
n 

0.
86

%
), 

Co
rp

or
at

e 
(r

et
ur

n 
0.

84
%

) a
nd

 M
BS

 (r
et

ur
n 

0.
40

%
)

Aa
0.

71
%

0.
71

0.
97

%
0.

97
2.

00
%

2.
00

1.
48

%
1.

48

-
Th

e 
se

ct
or

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 fo
r G

lo
ba

l e
x 

U
S 

fix
ed

 in
co

m
e 

in
 o

rd
er

 o
f b

es
t p

er
fo

rm
in

g 
to

 w
or

st
 w

as
:

A
0.

84
%

0.
84

7.
32

%
7.

32
1.

81
%

1.
81

7.
83

%
7.

83

Tr
ea

su
ry

 (r
et

ur
n 

4.
11

%
), 

M
BS

 (r
et

ur
n 

1.
15

%
) a

nd
 C

or
po

ra
te

 (r
et

ur
n 

1.
06

%
)

Ba
a

0.
84

%
0.

84
0.

64
%

0.
64

0.
64

%
0.

64
0.

84
%

0.
84

Fi
na

nc
ia

ls 
(r

et
ur

n 
-3

.2
0%

), 
He

al
th

 C
ar

e 
(r

et
ur

n 
-2

.7
6%

) a
nd

 U
til

iti
es

 (r
et

ur
n 

-2
.3

7%
)

Ye
ar

-t
o-

da
te

, d
om

es
tic

 fi
xe

d 
se

cu
rit

ie
s a

re
 tr

ai
lin

g 
gl

ob
al

 fi
xe

d 
ex

 U
S 

se
cu

rit
ie

s b
y 

-1
.9

1%
 

w
ith

 th
e 

BC
 A

gg
 re

tu
rn

in
g 

2.
10

%
.

M
at

er
ia

ls 
(r

et
ur

n 
6.

90
%

), 
In

du
st

ria
ls 

(r
et

ur
n 

3.
94

%
) a

nd
 T

el
ec

om
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

(r
et

ur
n 

2.
34

%
)

Fi
na

nc
ia

ls 
(r

et
ur

n 
-2

.6
3%

), 
En

er
gy

 (r
et

ur
n 

-2
.1

9%
) a

nd
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

 (r
et

ur
n 

-
1.

18
%

)

Te
le

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

 (r
et

ur
n 

7.
02

%
), 

M
at

er
ia

ls 
(r

et
ur

n 
2.

86
%

) a
nd

 C
on

su
m

er
 

Di
sc

re
tio

na
ry

 (r
et

ur
n 

2.
64

%
)

En
er

gy
 (r

et
ur

n 
-8

.5
4%

), 
He

al
th

 C
ar

e 
(r

et
ur

n 
-4

.4
1%

) a
nd

 F
in

an
ci

al
s (

re
tu

rn
 -0

.3
2%

)

M
at

er
ia

ls 
(r

et
ur

n 
6.

19
%

), 
En

er
gy

 (r
et

ur
n 

2.
16

%
) a

nd
 In

du
st

ria
ls 

(r
et

ur
n 

0.
73

%
)

Fo
r t

he
 m

on
th

, l
ar

ge
 c

ap
 d

om
es

tic
 e

qu
iti

es
 u

nd
er

pe
rf

or
m

ed
 d

om
es

tic
 fi

xe
d 

in
co

m
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

Ru
ss

el
l 1

00
0 

In
de

x 
re

tu
rn

in
g 

-0
.0

3%
 v

er
su

s 0
.7

1%
 fo

r t
he

 B
ar

cl
ay

s A
gg

re
ga

te
 In

de
x.

Fo
r t

he
 y

ea
r, 

th
e 

Ru
ss

el
l 1

00
0 

In
de

x 
is 

tr
ai

lin
g 

th
e 

Ba
rc

la
ys

 A
gg

re
ga

te
 In

de
x 

w
ith

 a
 re

tu
rn

 o
f -

5.
41

%
 v

s.
 2

.1
0%

, r
es

pe
ct

iv
el

y.

Sm
al

l c
ap

 d
om

es
tic

 e
qu

iti
es

 w
er

e 
th

e 
be

st
 e

qu
ity

 p
er

fo
rm

er
s f

or
 th

e 
m

on
th

 w
ith

 th
e 

Ru
ss

el
l 

20
00

 In
de

x 
re

tu
rn

in
g 

0.
00

%
.

La
rg

e 
ca

p 
do

m
es

tic
 e

qu
iti

es
 u

nd
er

pe
rf

or
m

ed
 sm

al
l c

ap
 d

om
es

tic
 e

qu
iti

es
 fo

r t
he

 m
on

th
 (b

y 
-

0.
03

%
) w

ith
 th

e 
Ru

ss
el

l 1
00

0 
In

de
x 

re
tu

rn
in

g 
-0

.0
3%

.
Fo

r t
he

 m
on

th
, i

nt
er

na
tio

na
l e

qu
iti

es
 u

nd
er

pe
rf

or
m

ed
 b

ot
h 

sm
al

l c
ap

 d
om

es
tic

 e
qu

iti
es

 (b
y 

-
1.

14
%

) a
nd

 la
rg

e 
ca

p 
do

m
es

tic
 e

qu
iti

es
 (b

y 
-1

.1
1%

) w
ith

 th
e 

AC
W

I e
x 

U
SA

 In
de

x 
re

tu
rn

in
g 

-
1.

14
%

.

Fo
r t

he
 y

ea
r, 

gl
ob

al
 fi

xe
d 

ex
 U

S 
se

cu
rit

ie
s a

re
 o

ut
pe

rf
or

m
in

g 
do

m
es

tic
 fi

xe
d 

se
cu

rit
ie

s w
ith

 
th

e 
Gl

ob
al

 A
gg

 e
x 

U
S 

re
tu

rn
in

g 
4.

00
%

.

O
n 

a 
ye

ar
-t

o-
da

te
 b

as
is,

 la
rg

e 
ca

p 
do

m
es

tic
 e

qu
iti

es
 a

re
 th

e 
be

st
 p

er
fo

rm
in

g 
eq

ui
ty

 a
ss

et
 

cl
as

s w
ith

 th
e 

Ru
ss

el
l 1

00
0 

re
tu

rn
in

g 
-5

.4
1%

.
In

te
rn

at
io

na
l e

qu
iti

es
 a

re
 tr

ai
lin

g 
la

rg
e 

ca
p 

do
m

es
tic

 e
qu

iti
es

 fo
r t

he
 y

ea
r (

by
 -2

.4
5%

) w
ith

 
th

e 
AC

W
I e

x 
U

SA
 In

de
x 

re
tu

rn
in

g 
-7

.8
7%

.
Fo

r t
he

 y
ea

r, 
sm

al
l c

ap
 d

om
es

tic
 e

qu
iti

es
 a

re
 tr

ai
lin

g 
bo

th
 la

rg
e 

ca
p 

do
m

es
tic

 e
qu

iti
es

 (b
y 

-
3.

38
%

) a
nd

 in
te

rn
at

io
na

l e
qu

iti
es

 (b
y 

-0
.9

3%
) w

ith
 th

e 
Ru

ss
el

l 2
00

0 
In

de
x 

re
tu

rn
in

g 
-8

.8
0%

.

Fo
r t

he
 m

on
th

, g
lo

ba
l f

ix
ed

 e
x 

U
S 

se
cu

rit
ie

s o
ut

pe
rf

or
m

ed
 d

om
es

tic
 fi

xe
d 

se
cu

rit
ie

s, 
w

ith
 th

e 
Gl

ob
al

 A
gg

 e
x 

U
S 

re
tu

rn
in

g 
3.

49
%

.
Do

m
es

tic
 fi

xe
d 

tr
ai

le
d 

gl
ob

al
 fi

xe
d 

ex
 U

S 
(b

y 
-2

.7
8%

) f
or

 th
e 

m
on

th
 w

ith
 th

e 
BC

 A
gg

 re
tu

rn
in

g 
0.

71
%

.

-2
0.

00
%

-1
5.

00
%

-1
0.

00
%

-5
.0

0%

0.
00

%

5.
00

%

10
.0

0%

1/
1/

20
16

2/
1/

20
16

3/
1/

20
16

Ru
ss

el
l 1

00
0

Ru
ss

el
l 2

00
0

M
SC

I A
CW

I E
x 

US
A 

N
R 

US
D

BC
 U

S 
Ag

g
BC

 G
bl

 A
gg

 E
x 

US
D ©

 2
01

6 
Th

e 
Bo

gd
ah

n 
Gr

ou
p

9



M
an

ag
er

 P
ro

fil
e 

- E
po

ch
 S

m
al

l C
ap

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l
N

ot
es

:
A

ss
et

 C
la

ss
:

St
at

us
:

Po
rtf

ol
io

 S
ize

:
In

ce
pt

io
n 

D
at

e:
In

iti
al

 F
un

d
in

g:
C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
W

ith
d

ra
w

al
s:

$0
A

nn
ua

l M
an

ag
em

en
t F

ee
:

Fe
es

 P
ai

d
  1

2 
M

on
th

 T
ra

ilin
g:

Lo
ca

tio
n:

St
ru

ct
ur

e:
Po

rtf
ol

io
 M

an
ag

em
en

t T
ea

m
:

Fo
un

d
ed

: 2
00

4
A

UM
 1

2.
31

.2
01

5:
 $

41
.9

 b
illi

on
To

ta
l I

nt
er

na
tio

na
l S

m
al

l C
ap

 A
UM

 1
2.

31
.2

01
5:

 $
98

4 
m

illi
on

Re
pr

es
en

te
d

 b
y:

Re
tu

rn
 P

ro
fil

e
Si

nc
e 

In
ce

pt
io

n
La

st
 5

 Y
ea

rs
La

st
 3

 Y
ea

rs
La

st
 Y

ea
r

La
st

 Q
ua

rte
r

La
st

 M
on

th
Ep

oc
h 

Sm
al

l C
ap

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l
7.

5
-

3.
9

-5
.7

-9
.2

-1
.3

M
SC

I E
A

FE
 S

m
al

l C
ap

9.
6

-
5.

6
-5

.1
-7

.3
-0

.1

Ri
sk

 C
ha

ra
ct

er
ist

ic
s

N
um

be
r o

f H
ol

d
in

gs
A

ve
ra

ge
 M

ar
ke

t C
ap

D
iv

id
en

d
 Y

ie
ld

P/
E 

Ra
tio

P/
B 

Ra
tio

Ep
oc

h 
Sm

al
l C

ap
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l

12
9

27
08

2.
5

17
.7

1.
7

M
SC

I E
A

FE
 S

m
al

l C
ap

21
95

21
39

2.
5

14
.9

1.
4

C
on

ta
ct

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n:

M
an

ag
in

g 
D

ire
ct

or
, C

lie
nt

 R
el

at
io

ns
tp

er
ni

ce
@

ei
pn

y.
co

m
21

2.
40

0.
47

16

M
an

ag
in

g 
D

ire
ct

or
, P

M
 A

nd
 S

en
io

r R
es

ea
rc

h 
A

na
ly

st
ec

ite
rn

e@
ei

pn
y.

co
m

21
2.

30
3.

72
00

To
m

 P
er

ni
ce

Er
ic

 C
ite

rn
e,

 M
an

ag
in

g 
D

ire
ct

or
, P

M
 a

nd
 S

en
io

r R
es

ea
rc

h 
A

na
ly

st

Er
ic

 C
ite

rn
e,

 M
an

ag
in

g 
D

ire
ct

or
, P

M
 a

nd
 S

en
io

r R
es

ea
rc

h 
A

na
ly

s t

Jo
hn

 M
or

ga
n,

 M
an

ag
in

g 
D

ire
ct

or
, P

M
 a

nd
 S

en
io

r R
es

ea
rc

h 
A

na
ly

st
M

ic
ha

el
 W

el
ho

el
te

r, 
M

an
ag

in
g 

D
ire

ct
or

, P
M

 &
 Q

ua
nt

ita
tiv

e 
Re

se
ar

ch
 &

 R
is k

Er
ic

 C
ite

rn
e

M
at

t C
ha

n,
 D

ire
ct

or
, S

en
io

r R
es

ea
rc

h 
A

na
ly

st
W

ei
 H

ua
ng

, D
ire

ct
or

, R
es

ea
rc

h 
A

na
ly

st
To

m
 P

er
ni

ce
, M

an
ag

in
g 

D
ire

ct
or

, C
lie

nt
 R

el
at

io
ns

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l S
m

al
l C

ap
In

 C
om

pl
ia

nc
e

$1
86

,6
56

,8
44

12
/1

/2
01

1
$6

2,
00

0,
00

0

Fi
rs

t $
10

0 
m

illi
on

 0
.7

5%
; N

ex
t $

10
0 

m
illi

on
 0

.7
0%

; T
he

re
af

te
r 0

.6
5%

Pu
bl

ic
ly

 T
ra

d
ed

 (t
ic

ke
r: 

EP
HC

)
N

ew
 Y

or
k,

 N
ew

 Y
or

k

$7
3,

50
0,

00
0

Th
e 

Ep
oc

h 
In

te
rn

at
io

na
l S

m
al

l C
ap

 st
ra

te
gy

 p
ur

su
es

 lo
ng

-te
rm

 c
ap

ita
l a

pp
re

ci
at

io
n 

by
 in

ve
st

in
g

in
 g

ro
w

in
g,

 a
ttr

ac
tiv

el
y 

va
lu

ed
 n

on
-U

.S
. c

om
pa

ni
es

 w
ith

 m
ar

ke
t c

ap
ita

liz
at

io
ns

 b
el

ow
 $

5
bi

llio
n.

 It
 o

ffe
rs

 in
ve

st
or

s a
cc

es
s t

o 
un

d
er

-re
se

ar
ch

ed
 c

om
pa

ni
es

 w
ith

 h
ig

h 
re

tu
rn

 p
ot

en
tia

l
in

 g
ro

w
in

g 
se

gm
en

ts
 o

f n
on

-U
.S

. m
ar

ke
ts

. T
he

 st
ra

te
gy

 a
im

s t
o 

ex
pl

oi
t i

ne
ffi

ci
en

ci
es

 in
 th

e
as

se
t c

la
ss

 b
y 

id
en

tif
yi

ng
 lo

ng
-te

rm
 in

ve
st

m
en

t t
he

m
es

 a
nd

 se
le

ct
in

g 
in

d
iv

id
ua

l c
om

pa
ni

es
us

in
g 

a 
fre

e 
ca

sh
 fl

ow
 v

al
ua

tio
n 

m
et

ho
d

ol
og

y.
 T

he
ir 

bo
tto

m
-u

p 
se

cu
rit

y 
se

le
ct

io
n 

an
d

 ri
sk

m
an

ag
em

en
t p

ro
ce

ss
 le

ad
s t

o 
a 

po
rtf

ol
io

 o
f 1

25
-1

75
 st

oc
ks

.

$1
,4

61
,7

13

A
s o

f F
eb

ru
ar

y 
29

, 2
01

6

10



M
an

ag
er

 P
ro

fil
e 

- W
as

at
ch

 S
m

al
l C

ap
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l

N
ot

es
:

A
ss

et
 C

la
ss

:
St

at
us

:
Po

rtf
ol

io
 S

ize
:

In
ce

pt
io

n 
D

at
e:

In
iti

al
 F

un
d

in
g:

C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

W
ith

d
ra

w
al

s:
$0

A
nn

ua
l M

an
ag

em
en

t F
ee

:
Fe

es
 P

ai
d

  1
2 

M
on

th
 T

ra
ilin

g:
Lo

ca
tio

n:
St

ru
ct

ur
e:

Po
rtf

ol
io

 M
an

ag
em

en
t T

ea
m

:

Fo
un

d
ed

: 1
97

5
A

UM
: $

14
.8

 b
illi

on
To

ta
l I

nt
er

na
tio

na
l S

m
al

l C
ap

 A
UM

: $
2.

8 
bi

llio
n

Re
pr

es
en

te
d

 b
y:

Re
tu

rn
 P

ro
fil

e
Si

nc
e 

In
ce

pt
io

n
La

st
 5

 Y
ea

rs
La

st
 3

 Y
ea

rs
La

st
 Y

ea
r

La
st

 Q
ua

rte
r

La
st

 M
on

th
W

as
at

ch
 S

m
al

l C
ap

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l
13

.4
-

6.
1

-0
.6

-6
.5

-0
.8

M
SC

I E
A

FE
 S

m
al

l C
ap

9.
6

-
5.

6
-5

.1
-7

.3
-0

.1

Ri
sk

 C
ha

ra
ct

er
ist

ic
s

N
um

be
r o

f H
ol

d
in

gs
A

ve
ra

ge
 M

ar
ke

t C
ap

D
iv

id
en

d
 Y

ie
ld

P/
E 

Ra
tio

P/
B 

Ra
tio

W
as

at
ch

 S
m

al
l C

ap
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l

90
26

30
1.

1
34

.7
7.

0
M

SC
I E

A
FE

 S
m

al
l C

ap
21

95
21

39
2.

5
14

.9
1.

4

C
on

ta
ct

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n:

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f I

ns
tit

ut
io

na
l R

es
ea

rc
h,

 L
ea

d
 P

or
tfo

lio
 M

an
ag

er
re

d
gl

ey
@

w
as

at
ch

ad
vi

so
rs

.c
om

80
1.

98
3.

41
68

V
ic

e 
Pr

es
id

en
t o

f I
ns

tit
ut

io
na

l M
ar

ke
tin

g
d

m
cc

ar
ty

@
w

as
at

ch
ad

vi
so

rs
.c

om
80

1.
41

5.
55

24

Lin
d

a 
La

sa
te

r, 
A

ss
oc

ia
te

 P
or

tfo
lio

 M
an

ag
e r

Ka
bi

r G
oy

al
, A

ss
oc

ia
te

 P
or

tfo
lio

 M
an

ag
er

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l S
m

al
l C

ap
In

 C
om

pl
ia

nc
e

Fi
rs

t $
40

 m
illi

on
 1

.0
0%

; N
ex

t $
60

 m
illi

on
 0

.9
0%

; T
he

re
af

te
r 0

.8
0%

Ke
n 

A
pp

le
ga

te
, P

or
tfo

lio
 M

an
ag

er

$2
00

,0
11

,1
21

12
/1

/2
01

1

Ro
ge

r E
d

gl
ey

, D
ire

ct
or

 o
f I

ns
tit

ut
io

na
l R

es
ea

rc
h,

 L
ea

d
 P

or
tfo

lio
 M

an
ag

er

$6
2,

00
0,

00
0

$8
0,

22
2,

24
2

$1
,7

35
,1

98
Sa

lt 
La

ke
 C

ity
, U

ta
h

W
as

at
ch

 m
an

ag
es

 in
te

rn
at

io
na

l s
m

al
l c

ap
 e

qu
iti

es
 w

ith
 a

 p
re

fe
re

nc
e 

fo
r g

ro
w

in
g 

co
m

pa
ni

es
. T

he
 fi

rm
 u

se
s 

ex
te

ns
iv

e 
qu

an
tit

at
iv

e 
to

ol
s t

o 
id

en
tif

y 
at

tra
ct

iv
e 

in
ve

st
m

en
t o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s.

Ro
ge

r E
d

gl
ey

D
us

tin
 M

cC
ar

ty

Pr
iv

at
el

y 
He

ld

D
us

tin
 M

cC
ar

ty
, V

ic
e 

Pr
es

id
en

t o
f I

ns
tit

ut
io

na
l M

ar
ke

tin
g

Ro
ge

r E
d

gl
ey

, D
ire

ct
or

 o
f I

ns
tit

ut
io

na
l R

es
ea

rc
h,

 L
ea

d
 P

or
tfo

lio
 M

an
ag

er

A
s o

f F
eb

ru
ar

y 
29

, 2
01

6

11



M
on

th
ly

 A
ss

et
 A

llo
ca

tio
n 

Re
vi

ew
 

A
ss

et
 C

la
ss

 T
ot

al
 M

ar
ke

t V
al

ue
 

 C
ur

re
nt

 P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

Ta
rg

et
 P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
D

iff
er

en
ce

N
ot

es

A
ll C

ap
/L

ar
ge

 C
ap

2,
16

6,
87

6,
54

3
   

   
   

   
 

17
.0

%
17

.0
%

0.
0%

M
id

 C
ap

1,
82

2,
41

1,
83

8
   

   
   

   
 

14
.3

%
13

.0
%

1.
3%

Sm
al

l C
ap

1,
32

4,
42

6,
96

5
   

   
   

   
 

10
.4

%
10

.0
%

0.
4%

To
ta

l D
om

es
tic

 E
qu

ity
5,

31
3,

71
5,

34
6

   
   

   
   

 
41

.8
%

40
.0

%
1.

8%

La
rg

e 
C

ap
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l E

qu
ity

1,
19

5,
39

5,
91

7
   

   
   

   
 

9.
4%

11
.5

%
-2

.1
%

Sm
al

l C
ap

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l E
qu

ity
76

9,
95

3,
53

1
 

6.
1%

6.
0%

0.
1%

To
ta

l I
nt

er
na

tio
na

l E
qu

ity
1,

96
5,

34
9,

44
8

   
   

   
   

 
15

.5
%

17
.5

%
-2

.0
%

C
or

e 
Fi

xe
d 

In
co

m
e

2,
17

2,
45

7,
13

7
   

   
   

   
 

17
.1

%
17

.5
%

-0
.4

%

Hi
gh

 Y
ie

ld
 F

ixe
d

 In
co

m
e

73
7,

75
5,

85
8

 
5.

8%
6.

0%
-0

.2
%

M
LP

s
76

8,
31

9,
66

0
 

6.
0%

7.
0%

-1
.0

%
Pr

iv
at

e 
Eq

ui
ty

63
1,

91
6,

49
9

 
5.

0%
5.

0%
0.

0%
Re

al
 E

st
at

e
91

1,
40

8,
18

6
 

7.
2%

7.
0%

0.
2%

O
pp

or
tu

ni
st

ic
 A

ss
et

s
16

0,
34

4,
49

7
 

1.
3%

0.
0%

1.
3%

To
ta

l N
on

-C
or

e 
A

ss
et

s
3,

20
9,

74
4,

70
0

   
   

   
   

 
25

.2
%

25
.0

%
0.

2%

C
as

h
55

,4
01

,9
80

 
0.

4%
0.

0%
0.

4%

C
om

po
sit

e
12

,7
16

,6
68

,6
13

   
  

10
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

0.
0%

Ex
ce

ss
 a

llo
ca

tio
n 

bo
un

d
 fo

r P
riv

at
e 

Eq
ui

ty
, M

LP
s, 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l E
qu

ity
, a

nd
 R

ea
l E

st
at

e

A
s o

f F
eb

ru
ar

y 
29

, 2
01

6

12



To
ta

l F
un

d 
+ 

C
la

ss
 C

om
po

sit
e 

Su
m

m
ar

y
A

s 
of

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
29

, 2
01

6

M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

In
ce

pt
io

n 
Da

te
 Ti

m
e 

Si
nc

e 
In

ce
pt

io
n 

(Y
ea

rs
) 

Si
nc

e 
In

ce
pt

io
n

10
 Y

ea
rs

5 
Ye

ar
s

3 
Ye

ar
s

1 
Ye

ar
C

al
en

da
r Y

TD
La

st
 Q

ua
rte

r
La

st
 M

on
th

To
ta

l F
un

d 
(G

ro
ss

 o
f F

ee
s)

12
,7

16
,6

68
,6

13
   

   
   

   
   

12
/1

/1
99

1
24

.3
8.

9
6.

1
6.

7
5.

9
-1

0.
1

-4
.5

-6
.9

0.
3

To
ta

l F
un

d 
(N

et
 o

f F
ee

s)
8.

6
5.

7
6.

3
5.

5
-1

0.
4

-4
.6

-7
.0

0.
2

A
llo

ca
tio

n 
In

d
ex

8.
7

5.
2

6.
4

4.
9

-5
.7

-4
.2

-6
.3

-4
.2

A
ct

ua
ria

l A
ss

um
pt

io
n

8.
0

8.
0

8.
0

8.
0

8.
0

6.
2

1.
9

0.
6

To
ta

l D
om

es
tic

 E
qu

ity
5,

31
3,

71
5,

34
6

 
4/

1/
19

90
25

.9
10

.1
6.

1
8.

5
9.

1
-1

2.
2

-6
.3

-1
0.

0
0.

3
S&

P 
50

0
41

.8
%

9.
2

6.
4

10
.1

10
.8

-6
.2

-5
.1

-6
.6

-0
.1

To
ta

l A
ll C

ap
 E

qu
ity

46
2,

55
7,

57
1

  
9/

1/
20

06
9.

5
5.

8
-

7.
8

8.
4

-1
2.

7
-7

.4
-1

0.
4

-1
.3

Ru
ss

el
l 3

00
0

3.
6%

6.
5

-
9.

6
10

.1
-7

.8
-5

.7
-7

.6
0.

0

To
ta

l L
ar

ge
 C

ap
 A

ct
iv

e 
Eq

ui
ty

1,
02

6,
26

4,
72

1
 

1/
1/

19
95

21
.2

9.
7

5.
7

10
.6

10
.6

-1
0.

2
-5

.7
-8

.4
-1

.0
S&

P 
50

0
8.

1%
9.

1
6.

4
10

.1
10

.8
-6

.2
-5

.1
-6

.6
-0

.1

To
ta

l M
id

 C
ap

 E
qu

ity
1,

82
2,

41
1,

83
8

 
11

/1
/1

99
8

17
.3

9.
2

7.
3

8.
4

8.
8

-1
4.

7
-7

.3
-1

1.
7

1.
2

Ru
ss

el
l M

id
 C

ap
14

.3
%

8.
6

6.
9

8.
9

9.
1

-1
1.

3
-5

.5
-8

.0
1.

1

To
ta

l S
m

al
l C

ap
 E

qu
ity

 
1,

32
4,

42
6,

96
5

 
2/

1/
19

98
18

.1
8.

4
5.

8
6.

5
9.

0
-1

1.
7

-5
.3

-9
.7

1.
0

Ru
ss

el
l 2

00
0

10
.4

%
6.

4
4.

9
6.

1
5.

7
-1

5.
0

-8
.8

-1
3.

4
0.

0

To
ta

l I
nt

er
na

tio
na

l E
qu

ity
1,

96
5,

34
9,

44
8

 
2/

1/
19

98
18

.1
7.

8
2.

8
1.

7
1.

7
-1

2.
4

-9
.2

-9
.6

-1
.5

M
SC

I A
C

W
I e

x-
US

15
.5

%
4.

5
1.

9
-0

.9
-1

.8
-1

7.
0

-7
.8

-9
.5

-1
.1

La
rg

e 
C

ap
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l E

qu
ity

1,
19

5,
39

5,
91

7
 

2/
1/

19
98

18
.1

1.
2

-
1.

7
0.

6
-1

5.
7

-9
.0

-1
0.

2
-1

.8
M

SC
I A

C
W

I e
x-

US
9.

4%
-0

.7
-

-0
.9

-1
.8

-1
7.

0
-7

.8
-9

.5
-1

.1

Sm
al

l C
ap

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l E
qu

ity
76

9,
95

3,
53

1
  

12
/1

/2
01

1
16

.9
10

.6
-

-
4.

7
-6

.5
-9

.5
-8

.5
-1

.1
M

SC
I E

A
FE

 S
m

al
l C

ap
6.

1%
9.

6
-

-
5.

6
-5

.1
-8

.0
-7

.3
-0

.1

C
or

e 
Fi

xe
d

 In
co

m
e 

(e
x-

 H
ig

h 
Yi

el
d

)
2,

17
2,

45
7,

13
7

 
4/

1/
19

90
25

.9
7.

0
6.

3
5.

3
2.

6
-1

.4
2.

2
1.

2
1.

0
Ba

rc
la

ys
 A

gg
re

ga
te

17
.1

%
6.

4
4.

7
3.

6
2.

2
1.

5
2.

1
1.

8
0.

7

A
ct

iv
e 

D
ur

at
io

n 
Fi

xe
d

 In
co

m
e

34
7,

76
8,

63
8

  
11

/1
/2

00
4

11
.3

8.
6

8.
3

12
.1

7.
1

2.
8

8.
9

8.
9

3.
2

Ba
rc

la
ys

 A
gg

re
ga

te
2.

7%
4.

4
4.

7
3.

6
2.

2
1.

5
2.

1
1.

8
0.

7

M
as

te
r L

im
ite

d
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s

76
8,

31
9,

66
0

 
2/

28
/2

01
1

5.
0

3.
3

-
2.

9
-5

.6
-4

2.
6

-1
3.

5
-1

9.
3

1.
1

A
le

ria
n 

M
LP

 In
d

ex
6.

0%
-2

.3
-

-2
.3

-1
1.

1
-3

9.
7

-1
1.

5
-1

4.
7

-0
.5

Hi
gh

 Y
ie

ld
 B

on
d

s
73

7,
75

5,
85

8
  

2/
1/

20
09

7.
1

11
.0

-
4.

7
1.

6
-6

.1
-1

.5
-4

.0
0.

4
M

L 
Hi

gh
 Y

ie
ld

 II
5.

8%
11

.5
-

3.
9

0.
7

-8
.5

-1
.1

-3
.7

0.
5

C
or

e 
Re

al
 E

st
at

e
74

5,
43

7,
12

4
  

4/
1/

20
11

4.
9

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
N

C
RE

IF
5.

9%
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-

N
on

-C
or

e 
Re

al
 E

st
at

e
16

5,
97

1,
06

2
  

7/
1/

20
14

1.
7

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
N

C
RE

IF
1.

3%
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-

C
as

h
55

,4
01

,9
80

  
4/

1/
19

90
25

.9
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
91

 D
ay

 T
-b

ill
0.

4%
-

1.
2

0.
1

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

A
s o

f F
eb

ru
ar

y 
29

, 2
01

6

13



Eq
ui

ty
 P

or
tfo

lio
s 

Su
m

m
ar

y 
A

s 
of

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
29

, 2
01

6
M

ar
ke

t V
al

ue
In

ce
pt

io
n 

Da
te

 Ti
m

e 
Si

nc
e 

In
ce

pt
io

n 
(Y

ea
rs

) 
Si

nc
e 

In
ce

pt
io

n
10

 Y
ea

rs
5 

Ye
ar

s
3 

Ye
ar

s
1 

Ye
ar

C
al

en
da

r Y
TD

La
st

 Q
ua

rte
r

La
st

 M
on

th

A
ll 

C
ap

 /
 L

ar
ge

 C
ap

 D
om

es
tic

Ho
tc

hk
is 

&
 W

ile
y 

La
rg

e 
C

ap
49

8,
22

4,
16

5
 

4/
1/

19
90

25
.9

10
.1

3.
9

8.
6

8.
5

-1
6.

2
-8

.5
-1

2.
9

-2
.2

Ru
ss

el
l 1

00
0 

V
al

ue
3.

9%
9.

5
5.

1
8.

8
8.

3
-9

.4
-5

.2
-7

.2
0.

0
Sa

w
gr

as
s

52
8,

04
0,

55
6

 
7/

1/
20

06
9.

7
8.

1
-

12
.5

12
.7

-3
.8

-2
.9

-3
.8

0.
1

Ru
ss

el
l 1

00
0 

G
ro

w
th

4.
2%

8.
3

-
10

.9
12

.5
-5

.1
-5

.6
-7

.0
0.

0
A

RI
 A

ll C
ap

 - 
te

rm
in

at
ed

41
0,

61
7

 
9/

1/
20

06
9.

5
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
Ru

ss
el

l 3
00

0
0.

0%
6.

5
-

9.
6

10
.1

-7
.8

-5
.7

-7
.6

0.
0

EP
O

C
H 

A
ll C

ap
46

2,
14

6,
95

4
 

9/
1/

20
06

9.
5

6.
8

-
8.

7
10

.5
-1

1.
7

-7
.5

-1
0.

3
-0

.4
Ru

ss
el

l 3
00

0
3.

6%
6.

5
-

9.
6

10
.1

-7
.8

-5
.7

-7
.6

0.
0

Pa
ss

iv
e 

Do
m

es
tic

 E
qu

ity
N

T 
C

ap
 W

ei
gh

te
d

 P
as

siv
e

48
4,

92
9,

02
4

 
4/

1/
20

12
3.

9
11

.2
-

-
10

.9
-5

.8
-5

.1
-6

.6
-0

.1
S&

P 
50

0 
C

ap
 W

ei
gh

te
d

3.
8%

10
.8

-
-

10
.8

-6
.2

-5
.1

-6
.6

-0
.1

SS
G

A
 E

q 
W

ei
gh

te
d

 P
as

siv
e

19
3,

12
5,

22
8

 
4/

1/
20

12
3.

9
11

.5
-

-
10

.3
-9

.4
-4

.5
-6

.7
1.

1
S&

P 
50

0 
Eq

ua
l W

ei
gh

te
d

1.
5%

11
.3

-
-

10
.5

-9
.1

-4
.5

-6
.8

1.
1

M
id

 C
ap

 D
om

es
tic

 E
qu

ity
Fr

on
tie

r C
ap

ita
l

46
9,

53
3,

45
0

 
6/

1/
20

02
13

.8
9.

4
8.

8
9.

0
10

.0
-1

0.
2

-7
.7

-1
0.

5
-0

.1
Ru

ss
el

l M
id

 C
ap

 G
ro

w
th

3.
7%

8.
5

7.
0

8.
8

9.
9

-1
0.

8
-6

.1
-8

.2
1.

6
W

el
lin

gt
on

 M
an

ag
em

en
t

41
6,

45
4,

84
3

 
9/

1/
19

98
17

.5
9.

2
6.

0
4.

9
8.

4
-1

6.
2

-5
.9

-1
0.

5
3.

2
Ru

ss
el

l M
id

 C
ap

 G
ro

w
th

3.
3%

8.
2

7.
0

8.
8

9.
9

-1
0.

8
-6

.1
-8

.2
1.

6
A

JO
 P

ar
tn

er
s

51
1,

97
8,

64
2

 
8/

1/
19

98
17

.6
10

.1
7.

4
10

.5
10

.6
-1

1.
1

-5
.5

-1
0.

0
3.

2
Ru

ss
el

l M
id

C
ap

4.
0%

9.
6

6.
9

8.
9

9.
1

-1
1.

3
-5

.5
-8

.0
1.

1
Ho

tc
hk

is 
&

 W
ile

y 
M

id
 C

ap
42

4,
44

4,
90

4
 

8/
1/

20
02

13
.6

11
.5

6.
6

8.
7

5.
5

-2
1.

8
-1

0.
3

-1
6.

1
-1

.8
Ru

ss
el

l M
id

C
ap

 V
al

ue
3.

3%
10

.1
6.

5
8.

9
8.

3
-1

1.
7

-4
.9

-7
.8

0.
7

Sm
al

l C
ap

 D
om

es
tic

 E
qu

ity
Sh

ap
iro

 C
ap

ita
l M

an
ag

em
en

t
56

4,
52

9,
09

1
 

2/
1/

19
98

18
.1

9.
0

7.
5

6.
7

7.
6

-1
8.

6
-3

.7
-8

.9
2.

1
Ru

ss
el

l 2
00

0
4.

4%
6.

4
4.

9
6.

1
5.

7
-1

5.
0

-8
.8

-1
3.

4
0.

0
G

en
ev

a 
C

ap
ita

l
19

7,
99

6,
11

2
 

6/
1/

20
13

2.
7

8.
7

-
-

-
-2

.9
-8

.1
-1

1.
2

-1
.8

Ru
ss

el
l 2

00
0 

G
ro

w
th

1.
6%

4.
1

-
-

-
-1

6.
6

-1
1.

5
-1

5.
7

-0
.7

W
as

at
ch

 A
d

vi
so

rs
18

5,
39

7,
48

6
 

6/
1/

20
13

2.
7

5.
8

-
-

-
-8

.8
-8

.7
-1

1.
9

-0
.7

Ru
ss

el
l 2

00
0 

G
ro

w
th

1.
5%

4.
1

-
-

-
-1

6.
6

-1
1.

5
-1

5.
7

-0
.7

C
ov

e 
St

re
et

 C
ap

ita
l

99
,5

41
,5

05
 

6/
1/

20
13

2.
7

3.
3

-
-

-
-6

.5
-4

.4
-9

.4
2.

4
Ru

ss
el

l 2
00

0 
V

al
ue

0.
8%

2.
2

-
-

-
-1

3.
3

-6
.1

-1
1.

0
0.

7
Fr

on
tie

r C
ap

ita
l

15
5,

42
6,

06
5

 
6/

1/
20

13
2.

7
8.

9
-

-
-

-5
.4

-4
.0

-9
.5

2.
1

Ru
ss

el
l 2

00
0 

V
al

ue
1.

2%
2.

2
-

-
-

-1
3.

3
-6

.1
-1

1.
0

0.
7

N
eu

m
ei

er
 P

om
a

12
1,

53
6,

70
5

 
6/

1/
20

13
2.

7
10

.5
-

-
-

-4
.9

-4
.9

-8
.4

1.
4

Ru
ss

el
l 2

00
0 

V
al

ue
1.

0%
2.

2
-

-
-

-1
3.

3
-6

.1
-1

1.
0

0.
7

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l L
ar

ge
 C

ap
 E

qu
ity

C
au

se
w

ay
 C

ap
ita

l
45

1,
28

2,
53

4
 

5/
1/

20
03

12
.8

7.
9

2.
7

1.
2

-0
.3

-1
7.

3
-9

.2
-1

0.
4

-1
.7

M
SC

I A
C

W
I E

x 
US

3.
5%

-0
.7

-
-0

.9
-1

.8
-1

7.
0

-7
.8

-9
.5

-1
.1

N
or

th
er

n 
Tr

us
t P

as
siv

e
74

4,
11

3,
38

2
 

9/
1/

20
13

2.
5

-2
.9

-
-

-
-1

4.
8

-8
.9

-1
0.

1
-1

.8
M

SC
I E

A
FE

5.
9%

-3
.2

-
-

-
-1

4.
8

-8
.9

-1
0.

1
-1

.8
In

te
rn

at
io

na
l S

m
al

l C
ap

 E
qu

ity
A

RI
 S

m
al

l C
ap

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l
19

0,
09

7,
07

4
 

12
/1

/2
01

1
4.

2
8.

3
-

-
3.

0
-1

1.
6

-7
.3

-7
.5

0.
3

M
SC

I E
A

FE
 S

m
al

l C
ap

1.
5%

9.
6

-
-

5.
6

-5
.1

-8
.0

-7
.3

-0
.1

Ep
oc

h 
Sm

al
l C

ap
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l

18
6,

65
6,

84
4

 
12

/1
/2

01
1

4.
2

7.
5

-
-

3.
9

-5
.7

-1
0.

0
-9

.2
-1

.3
M

SC
I E

A
FE

 S
m

al
l C

ap
1.

5%
9.

6
-

-
5.

6
-5

.1
-8

.0
-7

.3
-0

.1
W

as
at

ch
 S

m
al

l C
ap

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l
20

0,
01

1,
12

1
 

12
/1

/2
01

1
4.

2
13

.4
-

-
6.

1
-0

.6
-8

.9
-6

.5
-0

.8
M

SC
I E

A
FE

 S
m

al
l C

ap
1.

6%
9.

6
-

-
5.

6
-5

.1
-8

.0
-7

.3
-0

.1
W

el
lin

gt
on

 S
m

al
l C

ap
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l

19
3,

18
8,

49
2

 
12

/1
/2

01
1

4.
2

11
.3

-
-

5.
8

-7
.7

-1
1.

5
-1

0.
9

-2
.6

M
SC

I E
A

FE
 S

m
al

l C
ap

1.
5%

9.
6

-
-

5.
6

-5
.1

-8
.0

-7
.3

-0
.1

A
s o

f F
eb

ru
ar

y 
29

, 2
01

6

14



Fi
xe

d 
In

co
m

e 
Po

rtf
ol

io
s 

Su
m

m
ar

y
A

s 
of

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
29

, 2
01

6

M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

In
ce

pt
io

n 
Da

te
 Ti

m
e 

Si
nc

e 
In

ce
pt

io
n 

(Y
ea

rs
) 

Si
nc

e 
In

ce
pt

io
n

10
 Y

ea
rs

5 
Ye

ar
s

3 
Ye

ar
s

1 
Ye

ar
C

al
en

da
r Y

TD
La

st
 Q

ua
rte

r
La

st
 M

on
th

C
or

e 
Fi

xe
d 

In
co

m
e

Lo
om

is 
Sa

yl
es

60
4,

78
8,

08
0

   
   

   
   

    
8/

1/
19

99
16

.6
6.

4
7.

0
4.

6
1.

5
-3

.4
1.

0
-0

.5
0.

9
Ba

rc
la

ys
 A

gg
re

ga
te

4.
8%

5.
4

4.
7

3.
6

2.
2

1.
5

2.
1

1.
8

0.
7

Lo
rd

 A
bb

et
t

61
9,

82
6,

59
7

   
   

   
   

    
11

/1
/2

00
4

11
.3

5.
6

5.
9

4.
6

2.
2

-0
.2

1.
2

0.
5

0.
6

Ba
rc

la
ys

 A
gg

re
ga

te
4.

9%
4.

4
4.

7
3.

6
2.

2
1.

5
2.

1
1.

8
0.

7
M

ac
ka

y 
Sh

ie
ld

s
60

0,
07

3,
82

2
   

   
   

   
    

11
/1

/2
00

4
11

.3
5.

4
5.

8
4.

1
1.

2
-3

.1
0.

8
-0

.4
0.

5
Ba

rc
la

ys
 A

gg
re

ga
te

4.
7%

4.
4

4.
7

3.
6

2.
2

1.
5

2.
1

1.
8

0.
7

A
ct

iv
e 

Du
ra

tio
n 

Fi
xe

d 
In

co
m

e
Ho

isi
ng

to
n

34
7,

76
8,

63
8

   
   

   
   

    
11

/1
/2

00
4

11
.3

8.
6

8.
3

12
.1

7.
1

2.
8

8.
9

8.
9

3.
2

Ba
rc

la
ys

 A
gg

re
ga

te
2.

7%
4.

4
4.

7
3.

6
2.

2
1.

5
2.

1
1.

8
0.

7

Hi
gh

 Y
ie

ld
 F

ix
ed

 In
co

m
e

Lo
om

is 
Sa

yl
es

 H
ig

h 
Yi

el
d

23
6,

46
6,

93
2

   
   

   
   

    
2/

1/
20

09
7.

1
10

.5
-

3.
2

-0
.2

-9
.8

-2
.4

-5
.5

0.
3

M
er

ril
l L

yn
ch

 H
ig

h 
Yi

el
d

 II
1.

9%
11

.5
-

3.
9

0.
7

-8
.5

-1
.1

-3
.7

0.
5

Lo
rd

 A
bb

et
t H

ig
h 

Yi
el

d
25

2,
62

6,
79

0
   

   
   

   
    

2/
1/

20
09

7.
1

12
.0

-
5.

8
3.

0
-4

.3
-1

.1
-3

.0
0.

5
M

er
ril

l L
yn

ch
 H

ig
h 

Yi
el

d
 II

2.
0%

11
.5

-
3.

9
0.

7
-8

.5
-1

.1
-3

.7
0.

5
M

ac
Ka

y 
Sh

ie
ld

s H
ig

h 
Yi

el
d

24
8,

66
2,

13
6

   
   

   
   

    
2/

1/
20

09
7.

1
10

.4
-

4.
9

1.
7

-4
.9

-1
.1

-3
.4

0.
5

M
er

ril
l L

yn
ch

 H
ig

h 
Yi

el
d

 II
2.

0%
11

.5
-

3.
9

0.
7

-8
.5

-1
.1

-3
.7

0.
5

A
s o

f F
eb

ru
ar

y 
29

, 2
01

6

15



N
on

-T
ra

di
tio

na
l P

or
tfo

lio
s 

Su
m

m
ar

y
A

s 
of

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
29

, 2
01

6
(u

nl
es

s 
ot

he
rw

ise
 n

ot
ed

)

M
as

te
r L

im
ite

d 
Pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

s
M

ar
ke

t V
al

ue
In

ce
pt

io
n 

Da
te

 Ti
m

e 
Si

nc
e 

In
ce

pt
io

n 
(Y

ea
rs

) 
 S

in
ce

 In
ce

pt
io

n 
10

 Y
ea

rs
5 

Ye
ar

s
3 

Ye
ar

s
1 

Ye
ar

C
al

en
da

r Y
TD

La
st

 Q
ua

rte
r

La
st

 M
on

th

C
hi

ck
as

aw
 C

ap
ita

l M
LP

30
0,

55
6,

72
4

   
   

   
   

   
2/

28
/2

01
1

5.
0

8.
1

-
8.

1
-1

.9
-4

1.
1

-1
4.

3
-1

7.
9

0.
6

A
le

ria
n 

M
LP

 In
d

ex
2.

4%
-2

.3
-

-2
.3

-1
1.

1
-3

9.
7

-1
1.

5
-1

4.
7

-0
.5

C
us

hi
ng

 M
LP

 M
an

ag
em

en
t

28
6,

12
2,

35
3

   
   

   
   

   
2/

28
/2

01
1

5.
0

3.
7

-
3.

7
-3

.9
-4

2.
7

-1
0.

3
-1

7.
9

3.
4

A
le

ria
n 

M
LP

 In
d

ex
2.

2%
-2

.3
-

-2
.3

-1
1.

1
-3

9.
7

-1
1.

5
-1

4.
7

-0
.5

A
RI

 M
LP

18
1,

64
0,

58
3

   
   

   
   

   
2/

28
/2

01
1

5.
0

-1
.4

-
-1

.4
-1

0.
1

-4
4.

7
-1

6.
5

-2
3.

1
-1

.4
A

le
ria

n 
M

LP
 In

d
ex

1.
4%

-2
.3

-
-2

.3
-1

1.
1

-3
9.

7
-1

1.
5

-1
4.

7
-0

.5

Pr
iv

at
e 

Eq
ui

ty
M

ar
ke

t V
al

ue
 

In
ce

pt
io

n 
Da

te
 Ti

m
e 

Si
nc

e 
In

ce
pt

io
n 

(Y
ea

rs
) 

$ 
C

om
m

itt
ed

$ 
C

on
tri

bu
te

d 
as

 o
f 

2/
29

/2
01

6
%

 C
al

le
d

$ 
Re

tu
rn

 a
s 

of
 

2/
29

/2
01

6
IR

R 
In

ce
pt

io
n

IR
R 

3 
Ye

ar
IR

R 
1 

Ye
ar

Le
ga

cy
 P

riv
at

e 
Eq

ui
ty

 P
or

tfo
lio

43
,8

64
,1

59
   

   
   

   
   

  
10

/1
/2

00
8

7.
4

$9
7,

50
0,

00
0

$9
5,

48
0,

85
0

97
.9

%
$8

7,
67

3,
78

6
11

.2
%

11
.1

%
2.

1%
Ru

ss
el

l 1
00

0 
+ 

4%
0.

3%
14

.0
%

19
.0

%
4.

9%

Fr
an

kl
in

 P
ar

k 
Pr

iv
at

e 
Eq

ui
ty

58
8,

05
2,

34
0

   
   

   
   

   
4/

1/
20

10
5.

9
$1

,2
00

,0
00

,0
00

$5
85

,0
37

,5
00

48
.8

%
$1

11
,9

66
,2

49
12

.9
%

16
.2

%
14

.2
%

Ru
ss

el
l 1

00
0 

+ 
4%

4.
6%

15
.9

%
19

.0
%

4.
9%

Re
al

 E
st

at
e

M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

In
ce

pt
io

n 
Da

te
 Ti

m
e 

Si
nc

e 
In

ce
pt

io
n 

(Y
ea

rs
) 

$ 
C

om
m

itt
ed

$ 
C

on
tri

bu
te

d 
as

 o
f  

2/
29

/2
01

6
%

 C
al

le
d

Pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 a

s 
of

A
EW

 R
ea

l E
st

at
e

25
5,

11
0,

35
0

   
   

   
   

   
5/

1/
20

11
4.

8
$1

65
,5

00
,0

00
$1

65
,5

00
,0

00
10

0%
12

/3
1/

20
15

N
FI

-O
D

C
E

2.
0%

He
itm

an
 R

ea
l E

st
at

e
25

7,
79

5,
59

2
   

   
   

   
   

5/
1/

20
11

4.
8

$1
57

,4
00

,0
00

$1
57

,4
00

,0
00

10
0%

12
/3

1/
20

15
N

FI
-O

D
C

E
2.

0%
L&

B 
Re

al
 E

st
at

e
23

2,
53

1,
18

2
   

   
   

   
   

4/
1/

20
11

4.
9

$1
50

,0
00

,0
00

$1
50

,0
00

,0
00

10
0%

12
/3

1/
20

15
N

FI
-O

D
C

E
1.

8%
A

m
er

ic
an

 R
ea

lty
12

,3
98

,8
58

   
   

   
   

   
  

12
/1

/2
01

4
1.

2
$5

3,
75

0,
00

0
$1

3,
74

5,
10

0
26

%
12

/3
1/

20
15

N
FI

-O
D

C
E

0.
1%

A
nt

he
us

 C
ap

ita
l

26
,8

75
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

  
10

/1
/2

01
4

1.
4

$5
3,

75
0,

00
0

$2
6,

87
5,

00
0

50
%

-
N

FI
-O

D
C

E
0.

2%
D

un
e

31
,9

62
,1

73
   

   
   

   
   

  
10

/1
/2

01
4

1.
4

$5
3,

75
0,

00
0

$2
7,

49
3,

12
5

51
%

9/
30

/2
01

5
N

FI
-O

D
C

E
0.

3%
G

re
en

O
ak

 R
ea

l E
st

at
e

27
,2

80
,7

83
   

   
   

   
   

  
10

/1
/2

01
4

1.
4

$5
0,

00
0,

00
0

$2
6,

89
0,

03
8

54
%

-
N

FI
-O

D
C

E
0.

2%
L&

B 
G

ol
d

en
 D

ril
le

r
26

,7
42

,5
49

   
   

   
   

   
  

7/
1/

20
14

1.
7

$6
0,

00
0,

00
0

$2
6,

79
0,

00
0

45
%

-
N

FI
-O

D
C

E
0.

2%
La

nd
m

ar
k 

Re
al

ty
12

,8
78

,0
44

   
   

   
   

   
  

12
/1

/2
01

4
1.

2
$3

5,
00

0,
00

0
$1

2,
32

2,
60

3
35

%
-

N
FI

-O
D

C
E

0.
1%

St
ar

w
oo

d
27

,8
33

,6
55

   
   

   
   

   
  

11
/1

/2
01

5
0.

3
$5

3,
75

0,
00

0
$2

7,
95

0,
00

0
52

%
-

N
FI

-O
D

C
E

0.
0%

  1 Pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 s

ho
w

n 
N

et
 o

f F
ee

s.
Pr

el
im

in
ar

y 
da

ta
 d

isp
la

ye
d 

w
he

re
 fi

na
l a

ud
ite

d 
fig

ur
es

 a
re

 u
na

va
ila

bl
e.

 

O
pp

or
tu

ni
st

ic
 F

ix
ed

 In
co

m
e

M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

In
ce

pt
io

n 
Da

te
 Ti

m
e 

Si
nc

e 
In

ce
pt

io
n 

(Y
ea

rs
) 

$ 
C

om
m

itt
ed

$ 
C

on
tri

bu
te

d 
as

 o
f 

2/
29

/2
01

6
%

 C
al

le
d3

$ 
Re

tu
rn

 a
s 

of
 

2/
29

/2
01

6
Tim

e 
W

ei
gh

te
d 

O
ne

 
Ye

ar
 R

et
ur

n 

PI
M

C
O

 B
RA

V
O

26
,2

22
,4

04
   

   
   

   
   

  
3/

31
/2

01
1

4.
9

$1
00

,0
00

,0
00

$1
00

,0
00

,0
00

10
0%

$1
56

,2
25

,0
33

4.
5%

Ba
rc

la
ys

 A
gg

re
ga

te
0.

2%
1.

9%
PI

M
C

O
 B

RA
V

O
 II

13
4,

12
2,

09
4

   
   

   
   

   
3/

31
/2

01
3

2.
9

$1
50

,0
00

,0
00

$1
20

,0
00

,0
00

80
%

$0
8.

8%
Ba

rc
la

ys
 A

gg
re

ga
te

1.
1%

1.
9%

-
-

-
-

28
.1

%
14

.7
%

-
-

-

14
.2

%
14

.4
%

-
-

--
-

Tim
e 

W
ei

gh
te

d 
Tr

ai
lin

g 
Tw

o 
Ye

ar
 

Re
tu

rn
 (A

nn
ua

liz
ed

)1

11
.6

%
14

.4
%

12
.9

%
14

.4
%

14
.7

%
15

.8
%

14
.7

%

-
-

18
.6

%
14

.7
%

Tim
e 

W
ei

gh
te

d 
Tr

ai
lin

g 
O

ne
 Y

ea
r R

et
ur

n1

12
.7

%
14

.7
%

15
.6

%

Pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 a

s 
of

9/
30

/2
01

5

9/
30

/2
01

5

9/
30

/2
01

5

9/
30

/2
01

5

Pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 a

s 
of

-
-

-
-

18
.8

%

-
-

-
-

1.
7%

19
.7

%
3.

6%

Tim
e 

W
ei

gh
te

d 
Re

tu
rn

 S
in

ce
 

In
ce

pt
io

n 
(A

nn
ua

liz
ed

)

-
-

A
s o

f F
eb

ru
ar

y 
29

, 2
01

6

16



Th
re

e 
Ye

ar
 R

isk
/R

et
ur

n 
Re

vi
ew

 - 
Eq

ui
ty

 P
or

tfo
lio

s

3/
31

/2
01

4
M

an
ag

er
M

ar
ke

t V
al

ue
3 

Ye
ar

 R
et

ur
n

3 
Ye

ar
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

 D
ev

ia
tio

n
Sh

ar
pe

 R
a

-
Ho

tc
hk

is 
LC

V
49

8,
22

4,
16

4.
95

$ 
   

  
9

13
.0

0.
65

49
62

21
.6

3
Sa

w
gr

as
s L

C
G

52
8,

04
0,

55
6.

02
$ 

   
  

13
9.

93
1.

28
15

85
13

.0
5

A
RI

 A
C

41
0,

61
7.

17
$ 

   
   

   
   

-
10

.2
61

,0
21

,7
77

.7
8

   
   

#
V

A
LU

E!
16

.4
9

EP
O

C
H 

A
C

46
2,

14
6,

95
3.

86
$ 

   
  

11
12

.2
36

1,
99

9,
11

3.
00

   
 

0.
86

23
22

18
.0

3
W

el
lin

gt
on

 M
C

G
41

6,
45

4,
84

2.
73

$ 
   

  
8

14
.5

0.
58

17
8

26
.6

6
Fr

on
tie

r M
C

G
46

9,
53

3,
44

9.
57

$ 
   

  
10

12
.4

0.
81

04
97

18
.0

5
A

JO
 M

C
V

51
1,

97
8,

64
2.

12
$ 

   
  

11
12

.6
0.

83
94

78
19

.4
9

Ho
tc

hk
is 

M
C

V
51

1,
97

8,
64

2.
12

$ 
   

  
6

14
.1

0.
39

24
93

27
.8

4
Sh

ap
iro

 S
C

56
4,

52
9,

09
1.

20
$ 

   
  

8
14

.1
0.

54
05

47
22

.9
8

G
en

ev
a 

SC
G

19
7,

99
6,

11
2.

24
$ 

   
  

13
16

.1
0.

81
37

8
26

.5
3

W
as

at
ch

 S
C

G
18

5,
39

7,
48

5.
97

$ 
   

  
8

13
.3

0.
58

98
85

25
.7

2
C

ov
e 

St
re

et
 S

C
V

99
,5

41
,5

05
.3

8
$ 

   
   

 
6

15
.1

0.
40

48
81

20
.6

8
Fr

on
tie

r S
C

V
15

5,
42

6,
06

5.
09

$ 
   

  
6

16
.3

0.
35

74
43

25
.8

3
N

eu
m

ei
er

 P
om

a 
SC

V
12

1,
53

6,
70

5.
20

$ 
   

  
12

13
.1

0.
94

46
56

24
.0

5
C

au
se

w
ay

 In
tl 

Eq
45

1,
28

2,
53

4.
23

$ 
   

  
2.

05
12

.8
8

0.
15

89
06

23
.7

2
A

RI
 S

C
I

19
0,

09
7,

07
4.

12
$ 

   
  

3.
01

10
.9

6
Ep

oc
h 

SC
I

18
6,

65
6,

84
4.

12
$ 

   
  

3.
57

13
.1

6
N

T 
In

tl 
Pa

ss
iv

e
74

4,
11

3,
38

2.
47

$ 
   

  
3

11
.6

W
as

at
ch

 S
C

I
20

0,
01

1,
12

1.
43

$ 
   

  
5.

84
12

.1
3

W
el

lin
gt

on
 S

C
I

19
3,

18
8,

49
1.

51
$ 

   
  

3.
26

11
.8

1
N

T 
C

ap
 W

ei
gh

te
d

 P
as

siv
e

48
4,

92
9,

02
3.

50
$ 

   
  

10
.5

7
10

.9
3

SS
G

A
 E

q 
W

ei
gh

te
d

 P
as

siv
e

19
3,

12
5,

22
7.

65
$ 

   
  

15
.1

1
10

.9
1

1 A
ct

ua
l O

TR
S 

re
su

lts
 u

se
d

 w
he

n 
av

ai
la

bl
e,

 c
om

po
sit

e 
w

he
n 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y.

Ho
tc
hk
is 
LC
V

Sa
w
gr
as
s L
CG

EP
O
CH

 A
C

W
el
lin
gt
on

 M
CG

Fr
on

tie
r M

CG

AJ
O
 M

CV

Ho
tc
hk
is 
M
CV

Sh
ap
iro

 S
C

G
en

ev
a 
SC
G

W
as
at
ch
 S
CG

Co
ve
 S
tr
ee
t S

CV
Fr
on

tie
r S

CV

N
eu
m
ei
er
 P
om

a 
SC
V

Ca
us
ew

ay
 In
tl 
Eq

AR
I S
CI

Ep
oc
h 
SC
I

N
T 
In
tl 
Pa
ss
iv
eW

as
at
ch
 S
CI

W
el
lin
gt
on

 S
CI

N
T 
Ca

p 
W
ei
gh
te
d 
Pa
ss
iv
e

SS
G
A 
Eq

 W
ei
gh
te
d 
Pa
ss
iv
e

‐5
.00.
0

5.
0

10
.0

15
.0

20
.0

25
.0

30
.0

8.
5

9.
5

10
.5

11
.5

12
.5

13
.5

14
.5

15
.5

16
.5

17
.5

3 Year Annualized Return

An
nu

al
iz
ed

 S
ta
nd

ar
d 
D
ev
ia
tio

n 
of
 R
et
ur
ns

A
s o

f F
eb

ru
ar

y 
29

, 2
01

6

17



Th
re

e 
Ye

ar
 R

isk
/R

et
ur

n 
Re

vi
ew

 - 
Fi

xe
d

 In
co

m
e 

Po
rtf

ol
io

s

2/
29

/2
01

2
M

an
a g

er
M

ar
ke

t V
al

ue
3 

Ye
ar

 R
et

ur
n

3 
Ye

ar
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

 D
ev

ia
tio

n
Sh

ar
pe

 R
at

io-

Fo
un

d
ed

: 1
93

8

Pl
ea

se
 N

ot
e 

- P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

re
po

rt 
us

in
g 

un
au

d
ite

d
 d

at
a 

fro
m

 J
P 

M
or

ga
n.

Ho
isi

ng
to

n
34

7,
76

8,
63

8
   

   
   

   
  

7  
13

.0
2

0.
54

32
63

6
Lo

om
is 

C
or

e
60

4,
78

8,
08

0
   

   
   

   
  

1  
4.

21
0.

34
64

71
8

Lo
rd

 A
bb

et
t

61
9,

82
6,

59
7

   
   

   
   

  
2  

2.
89

0.
76

85
50

4
M

ac
ka

y 
C

or
e

60
0,

07
3,

82
2

   
   

   
   

  
4

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
2.

92
1.

39
42

99
2

Lo
om

is 
Sa

yl
es

 H
Y

23
6,

46
6,

93
2

   
   

   
   

  
(0

)
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

    
6.

50
-0

.0
31

46
22

Lo
rd

 A
bb

et
t H

Y
25

2,
62

6,
79

0
   

   
   

   
  

3  
5.

24
0.

57
66

55
2

M
ac

ka
y 

HY
24

8,
66

2,
13

6
   

   
   

   
  

2  
4.

51
0.

38
36

08
8

1 A
ct

ua
l O

TR
S 

re
su

lts
 u

se
d

 w
he

n 
av

ai
la

bl
e,

 c
om

po
sit

e 
w

he
n 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y.
Pl

ea
se

 n
ot

e 
d

iff
er

en
ce

 in
 st

an
d

ar
d

 d
ev

ia
tio

n 
ax

is 
fro

m
 p

re
vi

ou
s p

ag
e.

H
oi
sin

gt
on

Lo
om

is 
Co

re

Lo
rd
 A
bb

et
t

M
ac
ka
y 
Co

re

Lo
om

is 
Sa
yl
es
 H
Y

Lo
rd
 A
bb

et
t H

Y
M
ac
ka
y 
H
Y

‐5
.00.
0

5.
0

10
.0

15
.0

20
.0

25
.0

30
.0

0.
0

2.
0

4.
0

6.
0

8.
0

10
.0

12
.0

14
.0

3 Year Annualized Return

An
nu

al
iz
ed

 S
ta
nd

ar
d 
D
ev
ia
tio

n 
of
 R
et
ur
ns

A
s o

f F
eb

ru
ar

y 
29

, 2
01

6

18



re
al

 e
st

at
e 

po
rtf

ol
io

ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
su

m
m

ar
y 

re
po

rt 
fo

ur
th

 q
ua

rte
r, 

20
15

19



RE
Re

al
 E

st
at

e

Re
al

 E
st

at
e 

Po
rtf

ol
io

 O
ve

rv
ie

w


Th
e 

O
TR

S 
re

al
 e

st
at

e 
po

rtf
ol

io
 w

as
 in

iti
al

ly
 fu

nd
ed

 d
ur

in
g 

A
pr

il/
M

ay
 o

f 2
01

1.
  T

hr
ee

 m
an

ag
er

s w
er

e 
se

le
ct

ed
 a

fte
r a

n 
ex

te
ns

iv
e 

se
ar

ch
 p

ro
ce

ss
.  

Ea
ch

 w
as

 in
iti

al
ly

 fu
nd

ed
 w

ith
 $

15
0 

m
illi

on
.


Th

e 
to

ta
l r

ea
l e

st
at

e 
al

lo
ca

tio
n 

ta
rg

et
 is

 n
ow

 7
%

 o
f t

he
 to

ta
l f

un
d.

  T
he

 ta
rg

et
 a

llo
ca

tio
n 

is 
b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

ne
t a

m
ou

nt
 

in
ve

st
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

Sy
st

em
 in

 re
al

 e
st

at
e 

as
se

ts
.  

Th
e 

ta
rg

et
 a

llo
ca

tio
n 

fo
r r

ea
l e

st
at

e 
w

as
 in

cr
ea

se
d

 fr
om

 5
%

 to
 7

%
 

d
ur

in
g 

20
13

. 


Th

e 
cu

rre
nt

 p
or

tfo
lio

 is
 fo

cu
se

d
 o

n 
U.

S.
 b

as
ed

 c
or

e 
as

se
ts

.  
C

or
e 

re
a

l e
st

a
te

 is
 g

en
er

a
lly

 d
ef

in
ed

 a
s h

ig
h-

qu
a

lit
y,

 lo
w

 
ris

k,
 d

iv
er

sif
ie

d
 p

or
tfo

lio
 o

f s
ta

bl
e,

 in
co

m
e-

pr
od

uc
in

g 
as

se
ts

. I
t h

as
 e

xp
an

d
ed

 b
ey

on
d

 c
or

e 
to

 h
ig

he
r r

isk
/h

ig
he

r 
re

tu
rn

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

. 


Th

e 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 h

av
e 

be
en

 su
cc

es
sf

ul
.  

W
e 

ar
e 

in
 th

e 
se

co
nd

 st
ag

e 
of

 th
e 

re
al

 e
st

at
e 

in
ve

st
m

en
t p

ro
gr

am
.  

Th
is 

st
ag

e 
is 

in
te

nd
ed

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

d
d

iti
on

al
 d

iv
er

sif
ic

at
io

n 
an

d
 re

tu
rn

 p
ot

en
tia

l b
y 

in
ve

st
in

g 
in

 n
on

-c
or

e 
fu

nd
s. 

 A
 se

ar
ch

 
w

as
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 in
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
01

4 
to

 in
ve

st
 in

 v
al

ue
-a

d
d

ed
 a

nd
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

st
ic

 p
ro

pe
rti

es
. S

ix
 fi

rm
s w

er
e 

se
le

ct
ed

 to
 

in
ve

st
 a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
el

y 
$5

0 
m

illi
on

 e
ac

h.
 F

ol
lo

w
-o

n 
se

ar
ch

es
 w

ill 
be

 re
qu

ire
d

 to
 re

pl
en

ish
 fu

nd
s t

ha
t r

ea
ch

 li
qu

id
at

io
n.

 
M

a
ny

 o
f t

he
 n

on
-c

or
e 

fu
nd

s w
ill 

ha
ve

 lif
e 

sp
a

ns
 b

et
w

ee
n 

fiv
e 

a
nd

 te
n 

ye
a

rs
. 


Th

e 
cu

rre
nt

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 b
en

ch
m

ar
k 

is 
th

e 
N

C
RE

IF
 F

un
d

 In
d

ex
 –

O
pe

n 
En

d
 D

iv
er

sif
ie

d
 C

or
e 

Eq
ui

ty
 (N

FI
-O

D
C

E)
.  

Th
e 

in
de

x 
is 

a 
fu

nd
-le

ve
l c

ap
ita

liz
at

io
n 

w
ei

gh
te

d,
 ti

m
e 

w
ei

gh
te

d 
in

de
x 

th
at

 in
cl

ud
es

 p
ro

pe
rty

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 a
t o

w
ne

rs
hi

p 
sh

ar
e,

 c
as

h 
ba

la
nc

e 
an

d
 le

ve
ra

ge
.  

Th
e 

re
tu

rn
s r

ef
le

ct
 th

e 
fu

nd
s’

 a
ct

ua
l o

w
ne

rs
hi

p 
po

sit
io

ns
 a

nd
 fi

na
nc

in
g 

st
ra

te
gy

. W
e 

be
lie

ve
 th

e 
ne

w
 n

on
-c

or
e 

m
an

ag
er

s s
ho

ul
d

 b
e 

co
m

pa
re

d
 to

 th
e 

N
C

RE
IF

 C
lo

se
d

 E
nd

 V
al

ue
 A

d
d

 
In

d
ex

. S
um

m
a

rie
s o

f b
ot

h 
a

pp
ea

r i
n 

th
is 

re
po

rt’
s a

pp
en

d
ix

. 

20



RE
Re

al
 E

st
at

e

Re
al

 E
st

at
e 

Po
rtf

ol
io

 T
im

el
in

e

20
10

-C
or

e 
Re

al
 E

st
at

e 
Ta

rg
et

 
A

llo
ca

tio
n 

Es
ta

bl
ish

ed
:  

5%

La
te

 2
01

0
-

C
or

e 
Re

al
 

Es
ta

te
 

M
an

ag
er

 
Se

ar
ch

 
C

on
cl

ud
ed

.  
A

EW
, H

ei
tm

an
 

an
d

 L
&

B 
se

le
ct

ed
.

Ea
rly

/M
id

20
11

–
C

or
e 

Re
al

Es
ta

te
 

M
an

ag
er

s 
Fu

nd
ed

 

20
13

–
A

ss
et

 
A

llo
ca

tio
n 

Re
vi

ew
 

C
om

pl
et

ed
.  

Re
al

 E
st

at
e 

A
llo

ca
tio

n 
In

cr
ea

se
d

 to
 

7%

La
te

 2
01

3
–

A
d

d
iti

on
a

l 
C

ap
ita

l 
C

om
m

itt
ed

 to
 

A
EW

 a
nd

 
He

itm
an

20
13

–
L&

B 
Pr

op
os

es
 

Sp
ec

ia
l 

O
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
Po

rtf
ol

io
.

Pe
rm

iss
io

n 
gr

an
te

d
 

du
rin

g 
ea

rly
 

20
14

.

La
te

 2
01

4 
–

N
on

-C
or

e 
Po

rtf
ol

io
s 

se
le

ct
ed

. 
C

ap
ita

l c
al

ls 
be

ga
n 

du
rin

g 
4Q

20
14

.  

La
te

 2
01

5 
–

A
ll

N
on

 C
or

e 
M

an
ag

er
s 

ca
llin

g 
ca

pi
ta

l. 
G

ol
d

en
 D

ril
le

r 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 

un
de

rw
ay

.  

21



RE
Re

al
 E

st
at

e

Re
al

 E
st

at
e 

A
llo

ca
tio

n 
Re

vi
ew

: B
y 

M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

To
ta

l N
on

-C
or

e 
M

ar
ke

t V
al

ue
: $

13
9,

36
0,

67
5

A
EW 29

%

He
itm

an
29

%

L&
B 

C
or

e
26

%

N
on

-C
or

e
16

%

C
om

po
sit

e 
Re

al
 E

st
at

e 
A

llo
ca

tio
n

A
nt

he
us

19
%

Du
ne

23
%

G
re

en
O

ak
15

%

G
ol

de
n 

Dr
ill

er
 

19
%

La
nd

m
ar

k
9%

St
ar

w
oo

d
3%

A
m

er
ic

an
 

Re
al

ty
11

%

N
on

-C
or

e 
Re

al
 E

st
at

e 

To
ta

l R
ea

l E
st

at
e 

M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

: $
86

0,
64

9,
97

0

22



RE
Re

al
 E

st
at

e

O
TR

S 
Re

al
 E

st
at

e 
C

ap
ita

l C
on

tri
bu

te
d

  
A

s o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
5

C
ap

ita
l C

om
m

itt
ed

C
ap

ita
l C

on
tri

bu
te

d
%

C
al

le
d

A
EW

$1
65

,5
00

,0
00

$1
65

,0
00

,0
00

10
0%

L&
B 

C
or

e
$1

50
,0

00
,0

00
$1

50
,0

00
,0

00
10

0%

H
ei

tm
a

n
$1

57
,4

00
,0

00
$1

57
,4

00
,0

00
10

0%

A
m

er
ic

a
n 

Re
a

lty
$5

3,
75

0,
00

0
$1

3,
74

5,
10

0
26

%

A
nt

he
us

$5
3,

75
0,

00
0

$2
6,

87
5,

00
0

50
%

D
un

e
$5

3,
75

0,
00

0
$2

1,
43

5,
61

2
40

%

G
ol

d
en

 D
ril

le
r

$6
0,

00
0,

00
0

$2
6,

79
0,

00
0

45
%

G
re

en
O

a
k

$5
0,

00
0,

00
0

$2
0,

14
6,

30
8

40
%

La
nd

m
a

rk
$3

5,
00

0,
00

0
$1

2,
32

2,
60

3
35

%

St
a

rw
oo

d
$4

3,
75

0,
00

0
$4

,8
37

,5
00

9%

$8
22

,9
00

,0
00

$5
98

,5
52

,1
23

73
%

23



RE
Re

al
 E

st
at

e

A
llo

ca
tio

n 
of

 R
ea

l E
st

at
e 

Po
rtf

ol
io

 –
N

et
 E

xp
os

ur
e

A
s o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

5

A
EW

29
.3

%

He
itm

an
28

.9
%

L&
B

25
.7

%

G
ol

de
n 

D
ril

le
r

3.
1%A
nt

he
us

 C
ap

ita
l

3.
1%

D
un

e
3.

7%G
re

en
O

a
k 

2.
4%

La
nd

m
ar

k 
1.

5%
A

m
er

ic
an

 R
ea

lty
1.

8%
St

a
rw

oo
d

0.
5%

To
ta

l M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

: $
86

0,
64

9,
97

0
Th

is 
co

m
po

se
d

 6
.5

%
of

 th
e 

to
ta

l 
po

rtf
ol

io
.

24



RE
Re

al
 E

st
at

e

A
llo

ca
tio

n 
Hi

st
or

y 
–

M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

s/
Q

ua
rte

rly
 O

bs
er

va
tio

ns

$9
5,

84
0,

22
8

$1
82

,2
65

,4
13

$2
51

,7
71

,7
79

$1
56

,3
09

,7
32

$1
92

,6
71

,5
34

$2
48

,4
36

,2
94

$1
24

,7
46

,9
93

$1
71

,2
67

,5
34

$2
21

,0
81

,2
23

$0

$1
00

,0
00

,0
00

$2
00

,0
00

,0
00

$3
00

,0
00

,0
00

$4
00

,0
00

,0
00

$5
00

,0
00

,0
00

$6
00

,0
00

,0
00

$7
00

,0
00

,0
00

$8
00

,0
00

,0
00

$9
00

,0
00

,0
00

$1
,0

00
,0

00
,0

00 A
EW

H
ei

tm
a

n
L&

B

G
ol

de
n 

D
ril

le
r (

$2
6,

74
2,

54
9)

A
nt

he
us

 ($
26

,8
75

,0
00

)
D

un
e 

($
31

,9
62

,1
73

)

G
re

en
O

a
k 

($
20

,5
37

,0
53

)
La

nd
m

a
rk

 ($
13

,1
55

,2
44

)
A

m
er

ic
a

n 
Re

a
lty

 ($
15

,3
67

,5
00

)

St
a

rw
oo

d
 ($

4,
72

1,
15

6)

N
on

 C
or

e 
In

ve
st

m
en

ts

25



RE
Re

al
 E

st
at

e
C

or
e 

Re
al

 E
st

at
e 

Pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 C

om
pa

ris
on

 –
N

et
 o

f F
ee

s
Pe

rio
d

s E
nd

ed
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
5

Tr
ai

lin
g 

Ye
ar

Tr
ai

lin
g 

2 
Ye

ar
s

A
EW

12
.7

%
11

.6
%

He
itm

an
15

.6
%

12
.9

%
L&

B
15

.8
%

14
.2

%
N

FI
-O

D
C

E
14

.7
%

14
.4

%
BC

 A
gg

re
ga

te
0.

6%
3.

2%

12
.7

%
11

.6
%

15
.6

%

12
.9

%

15
.8

%

14
.2

%
14

.7
%

14
.4

%

0.
6%

3.
2%

26



RE
Re

al
 E

st
at

e

A
llo

ca
tio

n 
of

 C
or

e 
Re

al
 E

st
at

e 
Po

rtf
ol

io
 –

N
et

 v
s. 

G
ro

ss
 E

xp
os

ur
e

A
s o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

5

$2
52

 
$2

58
 

$2
33

 

$7
42

 

$3
99

 
$3

33
 

$3
07

 

$1
,0

39
 

25
%

23
%

19
%

22
%

0%5%10
%

15
%

20
%

25
%

30
%

35
%

40
%

45
%

50
%

 $
-

 $
20

0

 $
40

0

 $
60

0

 $
80

0

 $
1,

00
0

 $
1,

20
0

A
EW

He
itm

an
L&

B
To

ta
l C

or
e

Loan to Value

ValueMillions

N
et

 A
llo

ca
tio

n
G

ro
ss

 E
xp

os
ur

e
Le

ve
ra

ge
 (L

oa
n 

to
 V

al
ue

)

27



RE
Re

al
 E

st
at

e

Pr
op

er
ty

 T
yp

e 
D

iv
er

sif
ic

at
io

n 
–

N
et

 E
xp

os
ur

e
A

s o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
5

O
ffi

ce
A

pa
rtm

en
ts

Re
ta

il
In

d
us

tri
al

Se
lf 

St
or

ag
e

O
th

er
A

EW
34

%
27

%
21

%
15

%
0%

3%
H

ei
tm

an
25

%
30

%
16

%
11

%
18

%
0%

L&
B

24
%

35
%

25
%

7%
0%

9%
G

ol
d

en
 D

ril
le

r
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

10
0%

A
nt

he
us

0%
95

%
5%

0%
0%

0%
D

un
e*

58
%

17
%

7%
0%

0%
18

%
G

re
en

O
ak

29
%

40
%

14
%

0%
0%

17
%

A
m

er
ic

a
n 

Re
a

lty
 A

dv
iso

rs
39

%
21

%
24

%
17

%
0%

0%
La

nd
m

ar
k

33
%

19
%

6%
10

%
0%

32
%

St
ar

w
oo

d
*

31
%

18
%

12
%

8%
1%

30
%

To
ta

l
27

%
31

%
18

%
10

%
5%

8%
N

FI
 O

D
C

E
38

%
25

%
19

%
14

%
0%

4%

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

*P
ro

pe
rt

y 
Ty

pe
 D

iv
er

si
fic

at
io

n 
as

 o
f 

9/
30

/2
01

5.

28



RE
Re

al
 E

st
at

e

G
eo

gr
ap

hi
c 

D
iv

er
sif

ic
at

io
n 

–
N

et
 E

xp
os

ur
e

A
s o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

5

M
id

w
es

t
W

es
t

So
ut

h
Ea

st
O

th
er

A
EW

4%
34

%
30

%
31

%
0%

H
ei

tm
an

22
%

31
%

28
%

19
%

0%
L&

B
35

%
20

%
30

%
15

%
0%

G
ol

d
en

 D
ril

le
r

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
A

nt
he

us
10

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
D

un
e*

5%
27

%
30

%
33

%
5%

G
re

en
O

ak
0%

40
%

0%
60

%
0%

A
m

er
ic

a
n 

Re
a

lty
 A

dv
iso

rs
23

%
41

%
3%

33
%

0%
La

nd
m

ar
k

8%
24

%
16

%
29

%
23

%
St

ar
w

oo
d

*
11

%
13

%
25

%
13

%
38

%
To

ta
l

20
%

27
%

26
%

22
%

0%
N

FI
 O

D
C

E
10

%
39

%
20

%
32

%
0%

0%20
%

40
%

60
%

80
%

10
0%

12
0%

*G
eo

gr
ap

hi
c

D
iv

er
si

fic
at

io
n 

as
 o

f 
9/

30
/2

01
5.

29



C
or

e 
Re

al
 E

st
at

e
In

ve
st

m
en

ts

30



RE
Re

al
 E

st
at

e

A
EW

 C
ap

ita
l M

an
ag

em
en

t –
C

or
e 

Re
al

 E
st

at
e

Lo
ca

tio
n:

  B
os

to
n,

 M
a

ss
a

ch
us

et
ts

O
TR

S 
In

iti
al

 C
om

m
itm

en
t:

$1
50

 m
illi

on
O

TR
S 

To
ta

l C
om

m
itm

en
t:

$1
65

 m
illi

on
Fu

nd
 N

am
e:

  A
EW

 C
or

e 
Pr

op
er

ty
 T

ru
st

Fu
nd

 Ty
pe

:  
O

pe
n 

En
d

ed
 P

riv
at

e 
RE

IT
Fu

nd
 S

ize
 (N

et
): 

 $
5.

2 
bi

llio
n

Fu
nd

 S
ize

 (G
ro

ss
):

$8
.2

 b
illi

on
N

um
be

r o
f I

nv
es

tm
en

ts
:6

4
Fi

rm
 A

UM
:  

$3
0 

bi
llio

n
In

ce
pt

io
n 

Da
te

:  
Fo

ur
th

 Q
ua

rte
r, 

20
07

Fu
nd

 M
an

ag
er

:  
D

an
 B

ra
d

le
y 

an
d

 J
on

 M
ar

tin
In

ve
st

m
en

t P
ro

ce
ss

:
Re

se
ar

ch
 d

riv
en

 st
ra

te
gy

 th
at

 
co

m
bi

ne
s l

on
g-

te
rm

 e
co

no
m

ic
 fo

re
ca

st
s w

ith
 o

n-
th

e-
gr

ou
nd

 m
ar

ke
t k

no
w

le
d

ge
 th

at
 b

ui
ld

s d
iv

er
sif

ie
d

 p
or

tfo
lio

s 
of

 a
pa

rtm
en

ts
, r

et
ai

l, 
of

fic
e,

 in
d

us
tri

al
, a

nd
 to

 a
 sm

al
le

r 
ex

te
nt

, h
ot

el
 p

ro
pe

rti
es

.  
Po

rtf
ol

io
s w

ill 
be

 d
iv

er
sif

ie
d

 
am

on
g 

m
aj

or
 g

ro
w

in
g 

m
et

ro
po

lit
an

 m
ar

ke
ts

 w
ith

 b
ar

rie
rs

 
to

 n
ew

 su
pp

ly
.  

Th
e 

po
rtf

ol
io

 w
ill 

fe
a

tu
re

 h
ig

h-
qu

a
lit

y 
a

ss
et

s 
d

es
ig

ne
d

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 d

ur
ab

le
 in

co
m

e 
an

d
 re

as
on

ab
le

 
ca

pi
ta

l a
pp

re
ci

at
io

n.
 T

he
 fu

nd
 w

ill 
on

ly
 in

ve
st

 in
 th

e 
U.

S.
  

N
o 

sin
gl

e 
in

ve
st

m
en

t m
a

y 
ex

ce
ed

 2
5%

 o
f t

he
 fu

nd
’s

 n
et

 
as

se
t v

al
ue

.  
N

on
-c

or
e 

as
se

ts
 lim

ite
d 

to
 1

5%
 o

f n
et

 a
ss

et
 

va
lu

e.
  3

0%
 m

a
xi

m
um

 le
ve

ra
ge

 a
t t

he
 to

ta
l f

un
d

 le
ve

l.
St

at
us

: I
n 

C
om

pl
ia

nc
e

A
EW

N
FI

 O
D

C
E

20
15

YT
D

In
co

m
e 

Re
tu

rn
5.

43
%

4.
76

%

20
15

 Y
TD

 
A

pp
re

ci
at

io
n 

Re
tu

rn
7.

80
%

9.
88

%

C
ur

re
nt

O
cc

up
an

cy
96

.0
%

-

O
TR

S 
O

w
ne

rs
hi

p
of

 F
un

d
4.

8%
-

38
%

28
%

19
%

15
%

3%

O
ffi

ce
A

pa
rtm

en
ts

Re
ta

il
In

d
us

tri
al

O
th

er

Pr
op

er
ty

 T
yp

e 
D

iv
er

sif
ic

at
io

n

*O
th

er
 in

cl
ud

es
 m

ez
za

ni
ne

 d
eb

t i
nv

es
tm

en
ts

 a
nd

 la
nd

 p
ar

ce
ls.

20
15

 N
O

I G
ro

w
th

: 4
.1

%

31



RE
Re

al
 E

st
at

e

He
itm

an
 C

ap
ita

l M
an

ag
em

en
t –

C
or

e 
Re

al
 E

st
at

e

Lo
ca

tio
n:

  C
hi

ca
go

, I
llin

oi
s

O
TR

S 
In

iti
al

 C
om

m
itm

en
t:

$1
50

 m
illi

on
O

TR
S 

To
ta

l C
om

m
itm

en
t: 

 $
15

7 
m

illi
on

Fu
nd

 N
am

e:
  H

ei
tm

a
n 

C
a

pi
ta

l M
a

na
ge

m
en

t 
Fu

nd
 Ty

pe
:  

O
pe

n 
En

d
ed

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

Fu
nd

 S
ize

 (N
et

): 
 $

5.
8 

bi
llio

n
Fu

nd
 S

ize
 (G

ro
ss

):
$7

.6
 b

illi
on

N
um

be
r o

f I
nv

es
tm

en
ts

:7
8

Fi
rm

 A
UM

:  
$3

5 
bi

llio
n

Fu
nd

 In
ce

pt
io

n 
Da

te
:  

Se
co

nd
 Q

ua
rte

r, 
20

07
Fu

nd
 M

an
ag

er
:

D
av

id
 P

er
ish

o
a

nd
 B

la
ise

 K
ea

ne
In

ve
st

m
en

t P
ro

ce
ss

: A
cq

ui
re

 st
ro

ng
 p

ro
pe

rti
es

 o
n 

a
 

d
ire

ct
 b

as
is 

to
 d

el
iv

er
 re

tu
rn

s 1
.0

%
 o

ve
r t

he
 re

le
va

nt
 

be
nc

hm
ar

k 
in

d
ex

 o
ve

r a
 ro

llin
g 

fiv
e 

ye
ar

 p
er

io
d

.  
Th

e 
po

rtf
ol

io
 w

ill 
re

m
a

in
 fl

ex
ib

le
 a

s t
o 

pr
op

er
ty

 ty
pe

 
co

nc
en

tra
tio

n 
b

ut
 w

ill 
b

e 
ad

eq
ua

te
ly

 d
iv

er
sif

ie
d.

  
H

ei
tm

a
n 

w
ill 

bu
y 

in
 m

a
jo

r m
a

rk
et

s. 
 P

ro
pe

rti
es

 w
ill 

be
 w

el
l-

co
ns

tru
ct

ed
 a

nd
 h

av
e 

pr
ox

im
ity

 to
 a

m
en

iti
es

 a
nd

 
tra

ns
po

rta
tio

n 
ne

tw
or

ks
.  

Th
e 

fu
nd

 w
ill 

in
ve

st
 o

nl
y 

in
 th

e 
U.

S.
 a

nd
 C

an
ad

a.
  N

o 
m

or
e 

th
an

 1
0%

 o
f t

he
 fu

nd
 w

ill 
be

 
in

ve
st

ed
 in

 C
an

ad
a.

  U
p 

to
 1

5%
 o

f t
he

 fu
nd

 w
ill 

be
 

in
ve

st
ed

 in
 v

al
ue

-a
d

d
ed

 p
ro

pe
rti

es
.  

Th
e 

m
ax

im
um

 
in

ve
st

m
en

t i
n 

a 
sin

gl
e 

pr
op

er
ty

 w
ill 

be
 1

5%
.  

Le
ve

ra
ge

 is
 

ca
pp

ed
 a

t 3
0%

 o
f t

he
 fu

nd
.

St
at

us
: I

n 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e;
N

on
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
fo

r R
ea

l E
st

at
e 

fu
nd

s w
ill

no
t c

on
ce

nt
ra

te
, i

n 
an

y 
sin

gl
e 

pr
op

er
ty

, t
he

 g
re

at
er

 o
f $

10
0 

m
illi

on
 o

r 
25

%
 o

f t
he

 to
ta

l G
ro

ss
 A

ss
et

 V
al

ue
 (G

A
V

) o
f t

he
 o

ve
ra

ll i
nv

es
tm

en
t 

Fu
nd

.

He
itm

an
N

FI
 O

D
C

E

20
15

 Y
TD

 In
co

m
e 

Re
tu

rn
5.

07
%

4.
76

%

20
15

 Y
TD

 
A

pp
re

ci
at

io
n 

Re
tu

rn
10

.9
5%

9.
88

%

C
ur

re
nt

O
cc

up
an

cy
93

.4
%

-

O
TR

S 
O

w
ne

rs
hi

p
of

 F
un

d
4.

4%
-

25
%

30
%

16
%

11
%

18
%

O
ffi

ce
A

pa
rtm

en
ts

Re
ta

il
In

d
us

tri
al

Se
lf 

St
or

ag
e

Pr
op

er
ty

 T
yp

e 
D

iv
er

sif
ic

at
io

n

20
15

 N
O

I G
ro

w
th

: 6
.6

%

32



RE
Re

al
 E

st
at

e

L&
B 

Re
al

ty
 A

dv
ise

rs
  -

C
or

e 
Re

al
 E

st
at

e

Lo
ca

tio
n:

  D
a

lla
s, 

Te
xa

s
O

TR
S 

In
iti

al
 C

om
m

itm
en

t:
$1

50
 m

illi
on

O
TR

S 
To

ta
l C

om
m

itm
en

t:
$1

50
 m

illi
on

Fu
nd

 N
am

e:
  L

&
B 

C
or

e 
In

co
m

e 
Pa

rtn
er

s, 
L.

P.
Fu

nd
 Ty

pe
:  

O
pe

n 
En

d
ed

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

Fu
nd

 S
ize

 (N
et

): 
 $

50
6 

m
illi

on
Fu

nd
 S

ize
 (G

ro
ss

):
$6

69
 m

illi
on

N
um

be
r o

f I
nv

es
tm

en
ts

:1
0

Fi
rm

 A
UM

:  
$7

.6
 b

illi
on

In
ce

pt
io

n 
Da

te
:  

Se
co

nd
 Q

ua
rte

r, 
20

11
Fu

nd
 M

an
ag

er
:  

C
hr

ist
ia

n 
M

et
te

n
In

ve
st

m
en

t P
ro

ce
ss

:  
Th

e 
fu

nd
 w

ill 
in

ve
st

 in
 a

 d
iv

er
sif

ie
d

 
po

rtf
ol

io
 o

f c
or

e 
pr

op
er

tie
s t

ha
t a

re
 w

el
l-l

ea
se

d
 b

y 
cr

ed
it-

w
or

th
y 

te
na

nt
s. 

 T
he

 p
rim

a
ry

 o
bj

ec
tiv

e 
is 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n 
of

 
ca

pi
ta

l a
nd

 li
m

ite
d

 d
ow

ns
id

e 
ris

k.
  A

ss
et

s w
ill 

be
 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
ly

 p
ric

ed
 a

nd
 u

til
ize

 re
as

on
ab

le
 le

ve
ra

ge
.  

Th
e 

po
rtf

ol
io

 w
ill 

co
nc

en
tra

te
 o

n 
st

ab
le

, e
nd

ur
in

g 
as

se
ts

 b
ut

 
ca

n 
al

lo
ca

te
 u

p 
to

 1
5%

 to
 n

on
-c

or
e 

as
se

ts
.  

A
ll 

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 w
ill 

be
 in

 th
e 

U.
S.

  M
a

xi
m

um
 le

ve
ra

ge
 a

t t
he

 
fu

nd
 le

ve
l is

 3
5%

; m
ax

im
um

 le
ve

ra
ge

 fo
r i

nd
iv

id
ua

l 
pr

op
er

tie
s i

s 5
0%

.  
A

ve
ra

ge
 in

ve
st

m
en

t i
s $

50
 m

illi
on

 in
 

eq
ui

ty
.  

Th
is 

fu
nd

 w
as

 re
ce

nt
ly

 a
d

d
ed

 to
 th

e 
N

FI
 O

D
C

E 
In

d
ex

.
St

at
us

: I
n 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e

24
%

35
%

25
%

7%
9%

O
ffi

ce
A

pa
rtm

en
ts

Re
ta

il
In

d
us

tri
al

O
th

er
*

Pr
op

er
ty

 T
yp

e 
D

iv
er

sif
ic

at
io

n

L&
B

N
FI

 O
D

C
E

20
15

 Y
TD

 In
co

m
e 

Re
tu

rn
3.

03
%

4.
76

%

20
15

 Y
TD

 
A

pp
re

ci
at

io
n 

Re
tu

rn
9.

61
%

9.
88

%

C
ur

re
nt

O
cc

up
an

cy
87

.7
%

-

O
TR

S 
O

w
ne

rs
hi

p
of

 F
un

d
45

.9
%

-

*6
0%

 O
ffi

ce
 a

nd
 4

0%
 R

et
a

il.

20
15

 N
O

I G
ro

w
th

: 8
.2

%

33



N
on

-C
or

e 
Re

al
 E

st
at

e
In

ve
st

m
en

ts

34



RE
Re

al
 E

st
at

e

A
m

er
ic

an
 R

ea
lty

 A
dv

iso
rs

 

Lo
ca

tio
n:

  G
le

nd
a

le
, C

a
lif

or
ni

a
O

TR
S 

In
iti

al
 C

om
m

itm
en

t: 
 $

54
 m

illi
on

O
TR

S 
To

ta
l C

om
m

itm
en

t: 
 $

54
 m

illi
on

Fu
nd

 N
am

e:
 A

m
er

ic
an

 R
ea

lty
 S

tra
te

gi
c 

V
al

ue
 R

ea
lty

 F
un

d
Fu

nd
 Ty

pe
:  

O
pe

n 
En

d
ed

 D
iv

er
sif

ie
d

 V
al

ue
 A

d
d

ed
Fu

nd
 S

ize
 (N

et
): 

$2
80

 m
illi

on
 

Fu
nd

 S
ize

 (G
ro

ss
): 

$5
62

 m
illi

on
 

N
um

be
r o

f I
nv

es
tm

en
ts

: 1
3

Fi
rm

 A
UM

:  
$7

.4
 b

illi
on

In
ce

pt
io

n 
Da

te
:  

Fo
ur

th
 Q

ua
rte

r, 
20

14
Fu

nd
 M

an
ag

er
:  

Ku
rt 

H
el

ge
lso

n
a

nd
 D

ou
gl

a
s R

us
h

In
ve

st
m

en
t P

ro
ce

ss
:  

Te
am

 b
as

ed
 p

ro
ce

ss
 th

at
 v

ie
w

s
ea

ch
 a

cq
ui

sit
io

n 
as

 o
n 

op
er

at
in

g 
as

se
t a

nd
 a

lso
 a

pa
rt 

of
 th

e 
ov

er
a

ll p
or

tfo
lio

. A
cq

ui
sit

io
ns

 a
re

re
vi

ew
ed

 b
y 

In
ve

st
m

en
t C

om
m

itt
ee

. N
a

m
ed

po
rtf

ol
io

 m
a

na
ge

r i
s C

ha
irm

a
n 

of
 th

e 
In

ve
st

m
en

t
C

om
m

itt
ee

. P
or

tfo
lio

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 h

as
 a

 fo
cu

s o
n 

th
e

W
es

t a
nd

 M
id

w
es

t (
~8

0%
 o

f p
or

tfo
lio

). 
La

rg
es

t s
ec

to
r

al
lo

ca
tio

n 
is 

O
ffi

ce
 w

hi
ch

 a
cc

ou
nt

s f
or

 4
9%

 o
f t

he
po

rtf
ol

io
. I

nv
es

tm
en

t p
ro

ce
ss

 fo
llo

w
s t

he
se

 st
ep

s:
m

ar
ke

t/
su

bm
ar

ke
t r

es
ea

rc
h,

 a
cq

ui
sit

io
n 

un
d

er
w

rit
in

g
a

nd
 d

ue
 d

ilig
en

ce
, a

ct
iv

e 
op

er
a

tio
na

l m
a

na
ge

m
en

t
an

d
 a

 w
el

l-d
ef

in
ed

 h
ol

d
/e

xi
t s

tra
te

gy
. R

isk
 o

f e
ac

h
as

se
t i

s c
on

tin
uo

us
ly

 e
va

lu
at

ed
 a

nd
 m

an
ag

ed
.

Pu
rc

ha
se

s a
re

 g
en

er
al

ly
 m

id
 to

 lo
w

er
 m

ar
ke

t, 
or

 b
et

w
ee

n 
$1

0 
-$

50
 m

illi
on

. 
St

at
us

: I
n 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e

39
%

21
%

24
%

17
%

O
ffi

ce
A

pa
rtm

en
ts

Re
ta

il
In

d
us

tri
al

Pr
op

er
ty

 T
yp

e 
D

iv
er

sif
ic

at
io

n

C
ur

re
nt

 O
cc

up
an

cy
 is

 7
9%

. 
O

TR
S 

ow
ns

 4
.5

%
 o

f t
he

 fu
nd

. 

35



RE
Re

al
 E

st
at

e

A
nt

he
us

C
ap

ita
l, 

LL
C

Lo
ca

tio
n:

  E
ng

le
w

oo
d

, N
ew

 J
er

se
y

O
TR

S 
In

iti
al

 C
om

m
itm

en
t:

$5
4 

m
illi

on
O

TR
S 

To
ta

l C
om

m
itm

en
t:

$5
4 

m
illi

on
Fu

nd
 N

am
e:

 L
yr

ic
al

-O
TR

S 
Re

al
ty

 P
ar

tn
er

s I
V

, L
P

Fu
nd

 Ty
pe

:  
C

lo
se

 E
nd

 V
al

ue
 A

d
d

ed
 F

un
d

Fu
nd

 S
ize

 (G
ro

ss
): 

$1
68

 m
illi

on
 

N
um

be
r o

f I
nv

es
tm

en
ts

:1
8

Fi
rm

 A
UM

:  
$1

.0
 b

illi
on

In
ce

pt
io

n 
Da

te
:  

Fo
ur

th
 Q

ua
rte

r, 
20

14
Fu

nd
 M

an
ag

er
: E

li U
ng

ar
an

d
 D

av
id

 G
ef

sk
y

In
ve

st
m

en
t P

ro
ce

ss
:  

Ex
tre

m
el

y 
ha

nd
s o

n 
in

ve
st

m
en

t p
ro

ce
ss

 
th

at
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 m
an

ag
es

 a
 d

iv
er

sif
ie

d
 p

or
tfo

lio
of

 m
ul

ti-
fa

m
ily

 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 in

 tw
o 

su
b-

m
a

rk
et

s w
he

re
 th

ey
 se

ek
 d

ee
p 

pr
op

er
ty

 
by

 p
ro

pe
rty

 k
no

w
le

dg
e 

a
nd

 a
 d

om
in

a
nt

 m
a

rk
et

 sh
a

re
. 

C
ur

re
nt

ly
, t

he
ir 

po
rtf

ol
io

 o
w

ns
 o

ve
r 6

,0
00

 a
pa

rtm
en

t u
ni

ts
 in

 
C

hi
ca

go
, K

an
sa

s C
ity

, a
nd

 S
t. 

Lo
ui

s  
in

 a
re

as
 th

at
 e

xh
ib

it 
st

ro
ng

, 
st

ru
ct

ur
al

 su
pp

ly
/d

em
an

d
 c

on
d

iti
on

s t
ha

t c
an

no
t b

e 
ea

sil
y 

re
ve

rs
ed

 a
nd

 u
lti

m
at

el
y 

be
ne

fit
 a

pa
rtm

en
t o

w
ne

rs.
 T

he
 te

am
 

se
ek

s a
re

a
s w

he
re

 su
pp

ly
/d

em
a

nd
 re

m
ai

ns
 in

 d
ise

qu
ilib

riu
m

 
an

d 
fa

vo
ra

bl
e 

to
 lo

ng
-te

rm
 g

ro
w

th
 ra

te
s o

f r
en

ta
l in

co
m

e.
 

O
pe

ra
tin

g 
ex

pe
ns

es
 fo

r t
he

ir 
pr

op
er

tie
s t

en
d 

to
 re

m
ai

n 
fla

t a
fte

r 
in

iti
al

 in
ve

st
m

en
t, 

al
lo

w
in

g 
th

em
 to

 c
om

po
un

d 
a 

gr
ow

in
g 

le
ve

l 
of

 n
et

 o
pe

ra
tin

g 
ex

pe
ns

es
. T

he
 te

am
 fo

cu
se

s o
n 

ye
ar

 o
ve

r y
ea

r 
op

er
at

in
g 

su
cc

es
s r

at
he

r t
ha

n 
“t

ra
d

es
”.

Th
e 

fu
nd

 e
xp

ec
ts

 to
 d

ep
lo

y 
eq

ua
lly

 b
et

w
ee

n 
C

hi
ca

go
, K

a
ns

a
s 

C
ity

 a
nd

 S
t. 

Lo
ui

s. 
Pr

op
er

ty
 a

cq
ui

sit
io

ns
 a

re
 m

ov
in

g 
fo

rw
ar

d
 a

t a
 

de
lib

er
at

e 
pa

ce
. T

he
 lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

Ba
ra

ck
 O

ba
m

a 
pr

es
id

en
tia

l li
br

ar
y 

w
as

 a
nn

ou
nc

ed
 to

 b
e 

at
 th

e 
So

ut
h 

sid
e 

of
 

C
hi

ca
go

. T
hi

s s
ho

ul
d 

be
 p

os
iti

ve
 fo

r t
he

 p
or

tfo
lio

’s
 h

ol
di

ng
s i

n 
th

e 
Hy

d
e 

Pa
rk

 n
ei

gh
bo

rh
oo

d
. 

St
at

us
: I

n 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e

95
%

5%

A
pa

rtm
en

ts
Re

ta
il

Pr
op

er
ty

 T
yp

e 
D

iv
er

sif
ic

at
io

n

O
TR

S 
ow

ns
 1

00
%

 o
f L

yr
ic

al
-O

TR
S 

Re
al

ty
 P

ar
tn

er
s 

IV
, L

P.
 

O
TR

S 
ow

ns
 3

2%
 o

f L
A

RP
 IV

-B
lu

e 
Ho

ld
in

gs
, L

LC
 w

hi
ch

 c
on

sis
ts

 o
f 

Ly
ric

al
-A

nt
he

us
Re

al
ty

 P
ar

tn
er

s 
IV

, L
P 

& 
sid

e 
ca

rs
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

Ly
ric

al
-O

TR
s R

ea
lty

 P
ar

tn
er

s 
IV

, L
P.

  

36



RE
Re

al
 E

st
at

e

Du
ne

 R
ea

l E
st

at
e 

Pa
rtn

er
s

Lo
ca

tio
n:

  N
ew

 Y
or

k,
 N

ew
 Y

or
k

O
TR

S 
In

iti
al

 C
om

m
itm

en
t:

$5
4 

m
illi

on
O

TR
S 

To
ta

l C
om

m
itm

en
t:

$5
4 

m
illi

on
Fu

nd
 N

am
e:

 D
un

e 
Re

al
 E

st
at

e 
Fu

nd
 II

I, 
LP

Fu
nd

 Ty
pe

:  
C

lo
se

 E
nd

ed
 O

pp
or

tu
ni

st
ic

Fu
nd

 S
ize

 (N
et

): 
$9

60
 m

illi
on

 
N

um
be

r o
f I

nv
es

tm
en

ts
:1

4
Fi

rm
 A

UM
:  

$4
.1

 b
illi

on
In

ce
pt

io
n 

Da
te

:  
Fo

ur
th

 Q
ua

rte
r, 

20
14

Fu
nd

 M
an

ag
er

: D
an

 N
ei

di
ch

an
d 

C
ia

 B
uc

kl
ey

 M
ar

ak
ov

its
In

ve
st

m
en

t P
ro

ce
ss

: P
ar

tn
er

 d
riv

en
 m

od
el

 th
at

 se
ek

s
to

 e
xp

lo
it 

th
e 

ta
le

nt
 a

nd
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
of

 a
 h

ig
hl

y
ex

pe
rie

nc
ed

 g
ro

up
 o

f r
ea

l e
st

at
e 

pr
of

es
sio

na
ls.

 T
he

fu
nd

 w
ill 

br
oa

d
ly

 fo
cu

s o
n 

op
po

rtu
ni

tie
s r

es
ul

tin
g 

fro
m

th
e 

un
pr

ec
ed

en
te

d
 d

el
ev

er
a

gi
ng

 o
f t

he
 c

a
pi

ta
l

m
a

rk
et

. T
he

 fu
nd

 w
ill 

se
ek

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s c
re

a
te

d
 b

y
d

ist
re

ss
 a

nd
 d

isl
oc

at
io

n 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

re
e 

th
em

es
:

D
ist

re
ss

ed
 A

ss
et

s, 
D

ee
p 

V
al

ue
-a

d
d

, a
nd

 C
on

tra
ria

n
In

ve
st

m
en

ts
. D

ist
re

ss
ed

 a
ss

et
s w

ill 
be

 c
re

at
iv

el
y

ac
qu

ire
d

, r
ec

ap
ita

liz
ed

 a
nd

/o
r r

es
tru

ct
ur

ed
 th

ro
ug

h
su

b-
or

 n
on

-p
er

fo
rm

in
g 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

 m
or

tg
ag

es
 o

r
re

al
 e

st
a

te
 lo

a
ns

. D
ee

p 
va

lu
e-

ad
d

 p
ro

je
ct

s w
ill 

se
ek

to
 st

ab
iliz

e 
an

d
 re

po
sit

io
n 

un
d

er
pe

rfo
rm

in
g 

as
se

ts
th

ou
gh

 re
no

va
tio

n,
 re

-le
as

in
g 

an
d

 c
ap

ita
l

in
ve

st
m

en
t. 

C
on

tra
ria

n 
as

se
ts

 w
ill 

be
 a

cq
ui

re
d

 to
ex

pl
oi

t o
ve

rs
ol

d
 c

on
d

iti
on

s t
hr

ou
gh

 d
ee

pl
y

d
isc

ou
nt

ed
 p

ur
ch

as
ed

 o
f u

np
op

ul
ar

 a
ss

et
s.

St
at

us
: I

n 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e

58
%

17
%

7%
4%

14
%

A
p

a
rtm

en
ts

O
ffi

ce
Re

ta
il

In
du

st
ria

l
O

th
er

Pr
op

er
ty

 T
yp

e 
D

iv
er

sif
ic

at
io

n

O
th

er
 in

cl
ud

es
 S

en
io

r H
ou

sin
g 

(5
%

), 
Ho

te
l (

5%
) 

an
d

 R
es

id
en

tia
l L

an
d

 (4
%

).

O
TR

S 
ow

ns
 5

.6
%

 o
f t

he
 fu

nd
. 

O
cc

up
an

cy
: N

/A

A
ll 

da
ta

 a
s o

f 9
/3

0/
20

15
. 

37



RE
Re

al
 E

st
at

e

G
re

en
O

ak
Re

al
 E

st
at

e,
 LP

Lo
ca

tio
n:

  N
ew

 Y
or

k,
 N

ew
 Y

or
k

O
TR

S 
In

iti
al

 C
om

m
itm

en
t:

$5
0 

m
illi

on
O

TR
S 

To
ta

l C
om

m
itm

en
t:

$5
0 

m
illi

on
Fu

nd
 N

am
e:

 G
re

en
O

ak
Re

al
 E

st
at

e 
Pa

rtn
er

s U
S 

Fu
nd

 II
Fu

nd
 Ty

pe
:  

C
lo

se
 E

nd
ed

 O
pp

or
tu

ni
st

ic
Fu

nd
 S

ize
 (N

et
): 

$7
56

 m
illi

on
 

N
um

be
r o

f I
nv

es
tm

en
ts

:1
6

Fi
rm

 A
UM

:  
$5

.6
 b

illi
on

In
ce

pt
io

n 
Da

te
: F

ou
rth

 Q
ua

rte
r, 

20
14

 
Fu

nd
 M

an
ag

er
:  

So
nn

y 
Ka

lsi
, C

hr
is 

N
ie

ha
us

, J
oh

n
C

ar
re

fie
ll, 

Fr
ed

 S
ch

m
id

t, 
A

nd
re

w
 Y

oo
n

In
ve

st
m

en
t P

ro
ce

ss
:  

Fu
nd

 w
ill 

fo
cu

s o
n 

hi
gh

 b
ar

rie
r t

o
en

try
 m

ar
ke

ts
 th

at
 p

os
se

ss
 si

ze
, s

up
pl

y 
co

ns
tra

in
ts

,
sig

ni
fic

an
t d

em
an

d 
gr

ow
th

 a
nd

 li
qu

id
ity

.
Un

d
er

va
lu

ed
 p

ro
pe

rti
es

 w
ill 

be
 ta

rg
et

ed
 in

 o
ff 

m
ar

ke
t

tra
ns

ac
tio

ns
. A

ss
et

s w
ill 

be
 re

ca
pi

ta
liz

ed
 –

th
e 

fu
nd

w
ill 

ta
rg

et
 a

ss
et

s a
cq

ui
re

d
 o

r f
in

an
ce

d
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e
20

05
-2

00
8 

vi
nt

a
ge

s. 
M

id
 m

a
rk

et
 p

ro
pe

rti
es

 w
ill 

be
ta

rg
et

ed
 –

pr
op

er
tie

s o
w

ne
d

 p
rim

ar
ily

 b
y 

fa
m

ilie
s,

pr
iv

at
e 

in
ve

st
or

s o
r s

m
al

le
r i

ns
tit

ut
io

ns
 w

ho
 a

re
 n

ot
w

illi
ng

 to
 e

xp
en

d 
ca

p
ita

l t
o 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
co

m
p

et
iv

en
es

s
or

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
na

lly
 m

an
ag

e 
th

e 
as

se
t. 

Th
e 

fu
nd

 w
ill 

al
so

al
lo

ca
te

 to
 im

p
ro

va
bl

e 
as

se
ts

 w
ith

 g
oo

d 
lo

ca
tio

ns
.

St
at

us
: I

n 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e

29
%

40
%

14
%

17
%

O
ffi

ce
A

pa
rtm

en
ts

Re
ta

il
O

th
er

 (H
ot

el
)

Pr
op

er
ty

 T
yp

e 
D

iv
er

sif
ic

at
io

n

C
ur

re
nt

 O
cc

up
an

cy
 is

 7
9%

. 
O

TR
S 

ow
ns

 7
.2

%
 o

f t
he

 fu
nd

. 

38



RE
Re

al
 E

st
at

e

La
nd

m
ar

k 
Pa

rtn
er

s

Lo
ca

tio
n:

  S
im

sb
ur

y,
 C

on
ne

ct
ic

ut
O

TR
S 

In
iti

al
 C

om
m

itm
en

t:
$3

5 
m

illi
on

O
TR

S 
To

ta
l C

om
m

itm
en

t:
$3

5 
m

illi
on

Fu
nd

 N
am

e:
 L

an
d

m
ar

k 
Re

al
 E

st
at

e 
Fu

nd
 V

II
Fu

nd
 Ty

pe
:  

C
lo

se
 E

nd
ed

 R
ea

l E
st

at
e 

Se
co

nd
ar

ie
s

Fu
nd

 S
ize

 (N
et

): 
$1

.6
 b

illi
on

N
um

be
r o

f I
nv

es
tm

en
ts

:5
Fi

rm
 A

UM
:  

$1
4.

9 
bi

llio
n

In
ce

pt
io

n 
Da

te
:  

Fo
ur

th
 Q

ua
rte

r, 
20

14
Fu

nd
 M

an
ag

er
:  

Fr
a

nc
isc

o 
Bo

rg
es

, T
im

ot
hy

 H
a

vi
la

nd
,

C
ha

d
 A

lfe
ld

, R
ob

er
t D

om
bi

, R
a

ul
 M

eh
lm

a
n,

 J
a

m
es

Su
nd

a
y

In
ve

st
m

en
t P

ro
ce

ss
:  

La
nd

m
ar

k 
is 

a 
pi

on
ee

r i
n 

th
e

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

of
 p

or
tfo

lio
s t

hr
ou

gh
 se

co
nd

ar
y 

m
ar

ke
t

tra
ns

ac
tio

ns
. T

he
 fi

rm
 w

ill 
se

ek
 to

 b
ui

ld
 a

 p
or

tfo
lio

d
iv

er
sif

ie
d

 a
cr

os
s v

in
ta

ge
 y

ea
rs

, g
eo

gr
ap

hi
es

,
m

an
ag

er
s a

nd
 st

ra
te

gi
es

. I
nv

es
tin

g 
in

 se
co

nd
ar

ie
s

ge
ne

ra
lly

 a
llo

w
s f

or
 fa

st
er

 d
ep

lo
ym

en
t o

f c
a

pi
ta

l a
s

se
lle

rs
 c

om
e 

to
 m

ar
ke

t. 
Se

lle
rs

 g
en

er
al

ly
 a

re
 fo

rc
ed

to
 se

ll t
he

ir 
in

te
re

st
s a

t a
 d

isc
ou

nt
, b

en
ef

itt
in

g 
an

es
ta

bl
ish

ed
 b

uy
er

 su
ch

 a
s L

an
d

m
ar

k.
 S

ec
on

d
ar

y
in

te
re

st
s a

re
 u

su
al

ly
 se

as
on

ed
 a

ss
et

s t
ha

t g
en

er
at

e
in

co
m

e 
an

d
 d

ist
rib

ut
io

ns
 im

m
ed

ia
te

ly
. T

hi
s p

ro
d

uc
es

cu
rre

nt
 c

as
h 

flo
w

 a
nd

 m
in

im
ize

s J
-c

ur
ve

 im
pa

ct
.

In
ve

st
m

en
ts

 a
re

 g
en

er
a

lly
 h

el
d

 u
nt

il f
ul

l f
un

d
 le

ve
l

d
ist

rib
ut

io
n.

St
at

us
: I

n 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e

33
%

19
%

6%
10

%

32
%

O
ffi

ce
A

pa
rtm

en
ts

Re
ta

il
In

d
us

tri
al

O
th

er
*

Pr
op

er
ty

 T
yp

e 
D

iv
er

sif
ic

at
io

n

* In
cl

ud
es

 M
ix

ed
-U

se
 (1

0%
), 

La
nd

 (9
%

), 
Lo

d
gi

ng
 (6

%
), 

O
th

er
 (4

%
), 

an
d

 C
as

h 
(3

%
).

O
TR

S 
ow

ns
 3

.0
%

 o
f t

he
 fu

nd
. 

39



RE
Re

al
 E

st
at

e

L&
B 

Re
al

ty
 A

dv
ise

rs
 –

G
ol

de
n 

Dr
ill

er
 F

un
d

Lo
ca

tio
n:

  D
a

lla
s, 

Te
xa

s
O

TR
S 

In
iti

al
 C

om
m

itm
en

t:
$6

0 
m

illi
on

O
TR

S 
To

ta
l C

om
m

itm
en

t:
$6

0 
m

illi
on

Fu
nd

 N
am

e:
  L

&
B 

G
ol

d
en

 D
ril

le
r

Fu
nd

 Ty
pe

:  
Se

pa
ra

te
 A

cc
ou

nt
 L

im
ite

d
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
N

um
be

r o
f W

or
ki

ng
 In

ve
st

m
en

ts
:3

Fi
rm

 A
UM

:  
$7

.6
 b

illi
on

In
ce

pt
io

n 
Da

te
:  

Se
co

nd
 Q

ua
rte

r, 
20

14
Fu

nd
 M

an
ag

er
:  

C
hr

ist
ia

n 
M

et
te

n
In

ve
st

m
en

t P
ro

ce
ss

:  
Th

e 
fu

nd
 w

ill 
in

ve
st

 in
 a

 fo
cu

se
d 

po
rtf

ol
io

 c
om

po
se

d
 o

f u
p 

to
 th

re
e 

pr
op

er
ty

 ty
pe

s: 
Re

tir
em

en
t H

om
es

/M
em

or
y 

C
ar

e 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s, 

Bu
ild

 to
 C

or
e 

O
ffi

ce
, a

nd
 S

pe
ci

al
 O

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s. 

 T
he

 p
rim

ar
y 

ob
je

ct
iv

e 
is 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n 
of

 c
a

pi
ta

l a
nd

 a
pp

re
ci

at
io

n.
  A

ss
et

s w
ill 

be
 

co
ns

er
va

tiv
el

y 
un

d
er

w
rit

te
n 

an
d

 u
til

ize
 re

as
on

ab
le

 
le

ve
ra

ge
 (u

p 
to

 6
5%

). 
 T

he
 p

or
tfo

lio
 w

ill 
in

ve
st

 a
 

ge
og

ra
ph

ic
al

ly
 d

iv
er

sif
ie

d
 p

or
tfo

lio
 o

f n
on

-c
or

e 
d

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

ro
pe

rti
es

.  
Th

e 
Re

tir
em

en
t H

om
es

/M
em

or
y 

C
ar

e 
w

ill 
fo

cu
s o

n 
d

em
og

ra
ph

ic
al

ly
 a

d
va

nt
ag

ed
 a

re
as

 
an

d 
co

ns
tru

ct
 n

ew
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s. 

 B
ui

ld
  t

o 
C

or
e 

w
ill 

co
ns

tru
ct

 
hi

gh
 q

ua
lit

y 
of

fic
e 

bu
ild

in
gs

 in
 a

tt
ra

ct
iv

e 
in

fil
l a

re
as

.  
Sp

ec
ia

l o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s w
ill 

ta
rg

et
 u

ni
qu

e 
pr

op
er

tie
s w

ith
 a

 
fo

cu
s o

n 
lo

ng
-te

rm
 in

co
m

e 
pr

od
uc

tio
n.

St
at

us
: I

n 
C

om
pl

ia
nc

e

10
0%

Re
tir

em
en

t
Ho

m
es

/M
em

or
y

C
ar

e

Bu
ild

 to
 C

or
e

Sp
ec

ia
l

O
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s

Pr
op

er
ty

Ty
pe

D
iv

er
sif

ic
at

io
n

PR
O

G
RE

SS
 U

PD
A

TE
:

Th
e 

fu
nd

 is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 w
or

ki
ng

 o
n 

th
re

e 
re

tir
em

en
t h

om
e/

m
em

or
y 

ca
re

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s. 
 T

w
o 

in
 F

lo
rid

a 
an

d 
on

e 
in

 T
ex

as
.  

Th
e 

Te
xa

s 
pr

op
er

ty
 (D

al
la

s)
 is

 th
e 

ne
w

es
t a

nd
 la

rg
es

t 
pr

oj
ec

t. 
 T

he
 tw

o 
Fl

or
id

a 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 h

av
e 

ca
pi

ta
l c

om
m

itm
en

ts
 o

f 
$1

5.
9 

an
d 

$1
5.

9 
m

illi
on

 re
sp

ec
tiv

el
y.

  T
he

 T
ex

as
 p

ro
je

ct
 is

 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 to

 h
av

e 
a 

ca
pi

ta
l c

om
m

itm
en

t o
f $

29
.6

 m
illi

on
. T

ot
al

 
be

ds
 fo

r a
ll t

hr
ee

 a
re

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
to

 b
e 

44
8 

w
ith

 ro
ug

hl
y 

tw
o 

th
ird

s 
as

sis
te

d 
liv

in
g 

an
d 

on
e 

th
ird

 m
em

or
y 

ca
re

. P
al

m
 B

ea
ch

 G
ar

de
ns

 
sit

e 
ha

s b
ee

n 
cl

ea
re

d,
 a

nd
 fo

un
da

tio
n 

is 
be

in
g 

po
ur

ed
. L

an
d 

cl
os

e 
fo

r P
ar

k 
C

iti
es

 (D
al

la
s)

 o
cc

ur
re

d
 o

n 
Se

pt
em

be
r 3

, 2
01

5.
 S

ite
 

w
or

k 
w

ill 
be

gi
n 

20
16

. D
em

ol
iti

on
 o

f e
xi

st
in

g 
st

ru
ct

ur
es

 o
cc

ur
re

d 
in

 
N

ov
em

be
r, 

an
d 

fo
rm

al
 g

ro
un

db
re

ak
in

g 
fo

r t
he

 p
ro

je
ct

 is
 M

ar
ch

 
30

.W
el

lin
gt

on
 si

te
 w

or
k 

w
ill 

be
gi

n 
in

 J
un

e.

N
o 

Bu
ild

 to
 C

or
e 

or
 S

pe
ci

al
 O

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s p

ro
je

ct
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
st

ar
te

d.

40



RE
Re

al
 E

st
at

e

G
ol

d
en

 D
ril

le
r –

Pr
oj

ec
t T

im
el

in
es

Ha
rb

or
C

ha
se

of
 P

al
m

 
Be

ac
h 

G
ar

de
ns

Ha
rb

or
C

ha
se

of
 

W
el

lin
gt

on
 C

ro
ss

in
g

Ha
rb

or
C

ha
se

of
 P

ar
k

C
iti

es

G
ov

er
nm

en
t 

A
pp

ro
va

ls 
C

om
pl

et
ed

Fe
br

ua
ry

,2
01

5
Ju

ne
, 2

01
5

A
pr

il,
20

15

La
nd

 C
lo

sin
g

M
ar

ch
, 2

01
5

Ju
ne

, 2
01

5
Se

pt
em

be
r, 

20
15

Lo
a

n 
C

lo
sin

g
Se

pt
em

be
r,

20
15

M
ay

, 2
01

6
A

pr
il,

20
16

C
om

m
en

ce
 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
Se

pt
em

be
r,

20
15

Ju
ne

, 2
01

6
A

pr
il,

 2
01

6

Si
te

w
or

k/
G

a
ra

ge
 

C
om

pl
et

e
Ja

nu
ar

y,
 2

01
6

Ju
ly

,2
01

6
O

ct
ob

er
,2

01
6

Fo
un

d
a

tio
n 

C
om

pl
et

e
M

ar
ch

,2
01

6
O

ct
ob

er
, 2

01
6

O
ct

ob
er

, 2
01

6

V
er

tic
a

l C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
C

om
pl

et
e

Ju
ly

, 2
01

6
Fe

br
ua

ry
, 2

01
7

M
ar

ch
, 2

01
7

O
pe

n 
Sa

le
s O

ffi
ce

Se
pt

em
be

r, 
20

16
M

ar
ch

, 2
01

7
A

pr
il,

 2
01

7

H
ire

/T
ra

in
 S

ta
ff

Fe
br

ua
ry

, 2
01

7
A

ug
us

t, 
20

17
Se

pt
em

be
r,

20
17

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
C

om
pl

et
e

M
ar

ch
, 2

01
7

Se
pt

em
be

r, 
20

17
O

ct
ob

er
,2

01
7

41



RE
Re

al
 E

st
at

e

G
ol

d
en

 D
ril

le
r –

Pr
oj

ec
t E

co
no

m
ic

s
Ha

rb
or

C
ha

se
of

 P
al

m
 B

ea
ch

 
G

ar
de

ns
Ha

rb
or

C
ha

se
of

 W
el

lin
gt

on
 

C
ro

ss
in

g
Ha

rb
or

C
ha

se
of

 P
ar

k
C

iti
es

Un
its

/B
ed

s
12

0/
14

0
13

6/
15

4
13

4/
15

4

C
os

t
$3

8,
03

1,
83

2
$3

9,
80

6,
51

8
$7

2,
52

2,
34

6

De
bt

$2
2,

17
5,

00
0

$2
3,

88
3,

91
1

$4
2,

91
3,

65
3

Eq
ui

ty
$1

5,
85

6,
83

2
$1

5,
92

2,
60

7
$2

9,
60

8,
78

3

St
ab

ili
ze

d 
N

O
I

$3
,6

74
,0

83
$4

,1
30

,1
16

$7
,1

96
,4

70

Re
tu

rn
 o

n 
C

os
t

9.
7%

10
.4

%
9.

9%

Pr
oj

ec
tI

RR
23

.7
%

27
.1

%
24

.5
%

Es
tim

at
ed

 S
al

es
 P

ric
e

(Y
ea

r 5
)

$6
3,

54
4,

79
0

$7
1,

38
1,

40
3

$1
23

,9
36

,8
09

De
bt

$2
1,

66
0,

17
4

$2
2,

69
8,

52
0

$4
2,

12
3,

90
1

Eq
ui

ty
$1

5,
85

6,
83

2
$1

5,
92

2,
60

7
$2

9,
60

8,
78

3

Tr
an

sa
ct

io
n 

C
os

t
$9

53
,1

72
$1

,0
70

,7
21

$1
,8

59
,0

52

Es
tim

at
ed

Pr
of

it
$2

5,
07

4,
61

2
$3

1,
68

9,
55

5
$5

0,
34

5,
07

3

42



RE
Re

al
 E

st
at

e

St
ar

w
oo

d

Lo
ca

tio
n:

  S
im

sb
ur

y,
 C

on
ne

ct
ic

ut
O

TR
S 

In
iti

al
 C

om
m

itm
en

t:
$4

4 
m

illi
on

O
TR

S 
To

ta
l C

om
m

itm
en

t:
$5

4 
m

illi
on

Fu
nd

 N
am

e:
 S

ta
rw

oo
d

 D
ist

re
ss

ed
 O

pp
or

tu
ni

ty
 F

un
d

Fu
nd

 Ty
pe

:  
La

rg
e 

Re
al

 E
st

at
e 

Sp
ec

ia
lis

t
Fu

nd
 S

ize
 (N

et
): 

$5
.6

 b
illi

on
N

um
be

r o
f I

nv
es

tm
en

ts
:3

6
Fi

rm
 A

UM
:  

$4
4.

5 
bi

llio
n

In
ce

pt
io

n 
Da

te
: S

ec
on

d
 Q

ua
rte

r, 
20

14
 

Fu
nd

 M
an

ag
er

:  
Ba

rry
 S

te
rn

lic
ht

In
ve

st
m

en
t P

ro
ce

ss
:  

Th
e 

fu
nd

 w
ill 

ta
rg

et
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
w

ith
 a

ve
ra

ge
 e

qu
ity

 o
f $

75
 -

$1
00

 m
illi

on
. T

he
 fi

rm
ad

he
re

s t
o 

an
 e

st
ab

lis
he

d
 se

t o
f i

nv
es

tm
en

t
pr

in
ci

pl
es

: b
uy

 b
el

ow
 re

pl
a

ce
m

en
t c

os
t, 

us
e

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 le

ve
ra

ge
 (a

m
ou

nt
 a

nd
 d

ur
at

io
n)

, i
nv

es
t

w
he

n 
su

pp
ly

 is
 lo

w
, a

vo
id

 o
ve

rc
on

ce
nt

ra
tio

n 
by

d
iv

er
sif

yi
ng

 a
cr

os
s r

isk
 sp

ec
tru

m
, g

eo
gr

ap
hi

c 
ar

ea
s,

as
se

t t
yp

e 
an

d
 c

ap
ita

l s
tru

ct
ur

e;
 in

ve
st

 a
lo

ng
sid

e 
LP

s,
a

nd
 a

nt
ic

ip
a

te
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s c

re
a

te
d

 b
y 

ca
pi

ta
l

flo
w

s. 
Th

e 
fu

nd
 w

ill 
in

ve
st

 in
 a

 g
lo

ba
l p

or
tfo

lio
 v

ia
pu

rc
ha

se
s o

f n
on

-p
er

fo
rm

in
g 

lo
an

s, 
in

d
iv

id
ua

l a
ss

et
s

an
d

 p
or

tfo
lio

s o
f a

ss
et

s o
r c

om
pa

ni
es

. P
ur

ch
as

es
 w

ill
fo

cu
s 

on
 th

e 
US

 a
nd

 E
ur

op
e 

a
lth

ou
gh

 in
ve

st
m

en
t

op
po

rtu
ni

tie
s i

n 
ot

he
r r

eg
io

ns
 w

ill 
be

 c
on

sid
er

ed
.

St
at

us
: I

n 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e;
 N

on
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
fo

r p
ur

ch
as

e 
pr

iv
at

el
y

pl
ac

ed
 o

r o
th

er
 n

on
-m

ar
ke

ta
bl

e 
de

bt
, e

xc
ep

t s
ec

ur
iti

es
 is

su
ed

 u
nd

er
 

Ru
le

 1
44

A
. 

31
%

18
%

12
%

8%

30
%

1%

Pr
op

er
ty

 T
yp

e 
D

iv
er

sif
ic

at
io

n

43



RE
Re

al
 E

st
at

e

A
nn

ua
l M

an
ag

em
en

t F
ee

 C
om

pa
ris

on

0.
81

%
0.

73
%

0.
45

%
0.

50
%

1.
50

%
1.

50
%

1.
75

%

1.
16

%

1.
00

%

1.
50

%

A
EW

He
itm

an
L&

B
G

ol
de

n
D

ril
le

r
A

nt
he

us
D

un
e

G
re

en
O

ak
A

m
er

ic
an

Re
al

ty
La

nd
m

ar
k

St
ar

w
oo

d

44



RE
Re

al
 E

st
at

e

Q
ua

rte
rly

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 H
ist

or
y 

(N
et

 o
f f

ee
s)

C
or

e 
Re

al
 E

st
at

e 
Po

rtf
ol

io
s

A
EW

He
itm

an
L&

B
N

FI
-O

DC
E

4q
20

11
3.

1%
2.

2%
1.

1%
3.

0%

1q
 2

01
2

2.
2%

3.
3%

1.
2%

2.
8%

2q
 2

01
2

1.
7%

2.
3%

1.
5%

2.
6%

3q
 2

01
2

2.
8%

4.
0%

1.
4%

2.
8%

4q
20

12
2.

5%
2.

5%
2.

6%
2.

4%

1q
 2

01
3

2.
0%

2.
8%

2.
3%

2.
7%

2q
 2

01
3

3.
1%

4.
6%

2.
0%

3.
9%

3q
 2

01
3

3.
5%

3.
9%

2.
4%

3.
6%

4q
20

13
3.

2%
3.

4%
3.

6%
3.

2%

1q
20

14
2.

3%
2.

3%
2.

6%
3.

2%

2q
 2

01
4

2.
3%

3.
3%

2.
7%

2.
9%

3q
20

14
2.

8%
3.

0%
3.

8%
3.

2%

4q
 2

01
4

2.
9%

1.
6%

3.
5%

3.
0%

1q
 2

01
5

2.
0%

3.
6%

2.
6%

3.
4%

2q
 2

01
5

4.
0%

4.
1%

3.
8%

3.
8%

3q
 2

01
5

2.
9%

3.
3%

3.
6%

3.
7%

4q
 2

01
5

3.
2%

3.
8%

5.
1%

3.
3%

Tr
ai

lin
g 

Ye
ar

12
.7

%
15

.6
%

15
.8

%
14

.7
%

Tr
ai

lin
g 

2 
Ye

ar
s 

(a
nn

ua
liz

ed
)

11
.6

%
12

.9
%

14
.2

%
14

.4
%

45



RE
Re

al
 E

st
at

e
M

ar
ke

t V
al

ue
 H

ist
or

y:
C

or
e 

Re
al

 E
st

at
e 

Po
rtf

ol
io

s

A
EW

He
itm

an
L&

B
To

ta
l C

or
e 

Re
al

 E
st

at
e 

A
llo

ca
tio

n
3q

20
11

90
,0

00
,0

00
10

3,
80

5,
31

1
10

1,
88

0,
90

5
29

5,
68

6,
21

6

4q
20

11
93

,1
20

,2
46

15
3,

46
9,

33
6

12
3,

61
5,

18
4

37
0,

20
4,

76
6

1q
 2

01
2

15
5,

84
0,

22
5

15
6,

30
9,

73
2

12
4,

74
6,

99
3

43
6,

89
6,

95
0

2q
 2

01
2

15
8,

15
8,

22
8

16
1,

15
9,

29
9

15
3,

00
0,

10
1

47
2,

31
7,

62
8

3q
 2

01
2

16
0,

52
7,

94
7

16
4,

13
6,

05
7

15
4,

87
9,

80
3

47
9,

54
3,

80
7

4q
 2

01
2

16
4,

77
7,

49
3

17
0,

26
0,

58
8

15
6,

91
9,

70
4

49
1,

95
7,

78
5

1q
 2

01
3

16
8,

55
6,

34
0

17
3,

73
5,

96
7

16
0,

87
4,

99
7

50
3,

16
7,

30
4

2q
 2

01
3

17
1,

75
5,

60
2

17
8,

07
6,

84
1

16
4,

37
6,

35
5

51
4,

20
8,

79
8

3q
 2

01
3

17
6,

85
0,

63
9

18
5,

77
8,

49
2

16
7,

44
8,

01
5

53
0,

07
7,

14
6

4q
 2

01
3

18
2,

26
5,

41
3

19
2,

67
1,

53
4

17
1,

26
7,

53
4

54
6,

20
4,

48
1

1q
 2

01
4

18
7,

07
6,

96
1

19
8,

67
0,

49
9

17
7,

16
2,

99
7

56
2,

91
0,

45
7

2q
 2

01
4

19
2,

03
4,

57
3

20
2,

93
8,

89
2

18
1,

57
2,

97
7

57
6,

54
6,

44
2

3q
 2

01
4

21
1,

46
6,

00
8

20
9,

14
8,

48
1

18
6,

24
5,

20
4

60
6,

85
9,

69
3

4q
 2

01
4

21
7,

20
2,

20
2

22
0,

91
0,

08
2

19
3,

24
9,

74
5

63
1,

36
2,

02
9

1Q
20

15
22

2,
91

9,
38

2
22

6,
21

6,
09

0
20

0,
13

2,
89

8
64

9,
26

8,
37

0

2Q
20

15
22

8,
18

6,
22

5
23

4,
06

3,
49

1
20

5,
52

1,
95

1
66

7,
77

1,
66

7

3Q
20

15
23

9,
90

1,
10

8
24

1,
29

6,
08

3
21

3,
29

7,
21

5
69

4,
49

4,
40

6

4Q
20

15
25

1,
77

1,
77

9
24

8,
43

6,
29

4
22

1,
08

1,
22

3
72

1,
28

9,
29

5

46



RE
Re

al
 E

st
at

e

M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

 H
ist

or
y:

N
on

-C
or

e 
Re

al
 E

st
at

e 
Po

rtf
ol

io
s

G
ol

de
n 

Dr
ill

er
A

m
er

ic
an

 
Re

al
ty

A
nt

he
us

Du
ne

G
re

en
O

ak
La

nd
m

ar
k 

St
ar

w
oo

d

To
ta

l N
on

-
C

or
e 

Re
al

 
Es

ta
te

 
A

llo
ca

tio
n

3q
 2

01
4

94
0,

00
0

94
0,

00
0

4q
 2

01
4

1,
34

1,
97

4
6,

35
8,

90
0

10
,7

50
,0

05
11

,6
62

,5
56

12
,2

21
,2

54
3,

32
3,

56
1

45
,6

58
,2

50

1Q
20

15
6,

72
6,

61
4

13
,7

50
,2

36
18

,8
12

,5
05

17
,3

10
,0

90
12

,3
98

,9
14

2,
33

6,
00

2
71

,3
34

,3
61

2Q
20

15
13

,2
42

,8
60

14
,2

49
,4

32
21

,5
00

,0
05

23
,2

92
,3

65
17

,2
93

,7
61

2,
87

5,
73

9
92

,4
54

,1
62

3Q
20

15
26

,7
42

,8
60

14
,7

51
,8

26
21

,5
00

,0
00

25
,8

90
,8

72
16

,4
27

,6
24

2,
35

7,
99

2
10

7,
67

1,
17

4

4Q
20

15
26

,7
42

,5
49

15
,3

67
,5

00
26

,8
75

,0
00

31
,9

62
,1

73
20

,5
37

,0
53

13
,1

55
,2

44
4,

72
1,

15
6

13
9,

36
0,

67
5

47



O
th

er
 N

on
-L

iq
ui

d
 A

ss
et

s

O
pp

or
tu

ni
st

ic
 In

ve
st

m
en

ts

48



RE
Re

al
 E

st
at

e

PI
M

C
O

 B
ra

vo
 F

un
d

 I


Po
rtf

ol
io

 D
at

a


O
rig

in
al

 C
om

m
itm

en
t: 

$1
00

 m
illi

on


C
ap

ita
l C

al
le

d
: $

10
0 

m
illi

on


Pe
rc

en
t o

f C
ap

ita
l C

al
le

d
: 1

00
%


M

ar
ke

t V
al

ue
: $

30
,5

64
,9

51


To
ta

l D
ist

rib
ut

io
ns

: $
15

1,
88

2,
48

5


N
et

 S
in

ce
 In

ce
pt

io
n 

IR
R:

 2
3.

1%


M
ul

tip
le

 o
n 

C
al

le
d

 C
ap

ita
l: 

1.
83

x


Q
ua

rte
rly

 R
et

ur
n:

 -0
.5

%


Im
po

rta
nt

 D
at

es


Fi
na

l C
lo

se
: 7

/1
3/

20
11


In

ve
st

m
en

t P
er

io
d

 E
nd

 D
at

e:
 1

/1
3/

20
14


En

d
 o

f F
un

d
 T

er
m

 (w
ith

ou
t e

xt
en

sio
ns

): 
7/

13
/2

01
6


En

d
 o

f F
un

d
 T

er
m

 (f
ul

ly
 e

xt
en

d
ed

): 
7/

13
/2

01
8

Sp
ec

ia
l 

Si
tu

at
io

ns
8%

C
om

m
er

ci
al

12
%

Re
sid

en
tia

l
80

%

49



RE
Re

al
 E

st
at

e

PI
M

C
O

 B
ra

vo
 II

 F
un

d


Po
rtf

ol
io

 D
at

a


O
rig

in
al

 C
om

m
itm

en
t: 

$1
50

 m
illi

on


C
ap

ita
l C

al
le

d
: $

12
0 

m
illi

on


Pe
rc

en
t o

f C
ap

ita
l C

al
le

d
: 8

0%
M

ar
ke

t V
al

ue
: $

13
4,

12
2,

09
4


N

et
 S

in
ce

 In
ce

pt
io

n 
IR

R:
 1

4.
0%


M

ul
tip

le
 o

n 
C

al
le

d
 C

ap
ita

l: 
1.

15
x


Q

ua
rte

rly
 R

et
ur

n:
 3

.7
%


G

eo
gr

ap
hi

c 
Ex

po
su

re
:


63

%
 U

ni
te

d
 S

ta
te

s


37
%

 E
ur

op
e


Im

po
rta

nt
 D

at
es


In

ve
st

m
en

t P
er

io
d

 E
nd

 D
at

e:
 3

/1
4/

20
17


En

d
 o

f F
un

d
 T

er
m

 (w
ith

ou
t e

xt
en

sio
ns

): 
3/

14
/2

01
9


En

d
 o

f F
un

d
 T

er
m

 (f
ul

ly
 e

xt
en

d
ed

): 
3/

14
/2

02
2

Sp
ec

ia
l 

Si
tu

at
io

ns
, 2

5%

C
om

m
er

ci
al

 , 
30

%

Re
sid

en
tia

l, 
45

%

50



A
pp

en
d

ix

In
d

ex
 D

ef
in

iti
on

s

51



RE
Re

al
 E

st
at

e

In
d

ex
 D

ef
in

iti
on

: N
FI

 O
D

C
E


N

C
RE

IF
 F

UN
D

 IN
D

EX
 –

O
PE

N
 E

N
D

 D
IV

ER
SI

FI
ED

 C
O

RE
 E

Q
UI

TY
 (N

FI
‐O

D
C

E)
 T

he
 N

FI
‐O

D
C

E 
is 

a
 

ca
pi

ta
liz

a
tio

n‐
w

ei
gh

te
d

, g
ro

ss
 o

f f
ee

, t
im

e‐
w

ei
gh

te
d

 re
tu

rn
 in

d
ex

 w
ith

 a
n 

in
ce

pt
io

n 
d

at
e 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 1

97
7.

 S
up

pl
em

en
ta

l d
a

ta
 is

 a
lso

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
, s

uc
h 

a
s e

qu
a

l‐w
ei

gh
t a

nd
 n

et
 o

f f
ee

 re
tu

rn
s, 

fo
r 

in
fo

rm
at

io
na

l p
ur

po
se

s a
nd

 a
d

d
iti

on
al

 a
na

ly
sis

. O
pe

n‐
en

d
 F

un
d

s a
re

 g
en

er
al

ly
 d

ef
in

ed
 a

s i
nf

in
ite
‐li

fe
 

ve
hi

cl
es

 c
on

sis
tin

g 
of

 m
ul

tip
le

 in
ve

st
or

s w
ho

 h
av

e 
th

e 
ab

ilit
y 

to
 e

nt
er

 o
r e

xi
t t

he
 fu

nd
 o

n 
a 

pe
rio

di
c 

ba
sis

, 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

an
d

/o
r r

ed
em

pt
io

n 
re

qu
es

ts
, t

he
re

by
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 a
 d

eg
re

e 
of

 p
ot

en
tia

l i
nv

es
tm

en
t 

liq
ui

d
ity

. T
he

 te
rm

 D
iv

er
sif

ie
d

 C
or

e 
Eq

ui
ty

 st
yl

e 
ty

pi
ca

lly
 re

fle
ct

s l
ow

er
 ri

sk
 in

ve
st

m
en

t s
tra

te
gi

es
 u

til
izi

ng
 lo

w
 

le
ve

ra
ge

 a
nd

 g
en

er
al

ly
 re

pr
es

en
te

d
 b

y 
eq

ui
ty

 o
w

ne
rs

hi
p 

po
sit

io
ns

 in
 st

a
bl

e 
U.

S.
 o

pe
ra

tin
g 

pr
op

er
tie

s. 
Th

e 
N

FI
‐O

D
C

E,
 li

ke
 th

e 
N

C
RE

IF
 P

ro
pe

rty
 In

d
ex

 (N
PI

) a
nd

 o
th

er
 st

oc
k 

an
d

 b
on

d
 in

d
ic

es
, i

s a
 

ca
pi

ta
liz

a
tio

n‐
w

ei
gh

te
d

 in
d

ex
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

ea
ch

 fu
nd

’s
 N

et
 In

ve
st

ed
 C

ap
ita

l, 
w

hi
ch

 is
 d

ef
in

ed
 a

s B
eg

in
ni

ng
 

M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

 N
et

 A
ss

et
s (

BM
V

), 
ad

ju
st

ed
 fo

r W
ei

gh
te

d
 C

a
sh

 F
lo

w
s (

W
C

F)
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
pe

rio
d

. T
o 

th
e 

ex
te

nt
 

W
C

F 
ar

e 
no

t a
va

ila
bl

e;
 w

hi
ch

 m
ay

 b
e 

th
e 

ca
se

 fo
r o

ld
er

 li
qu

id
at

ed
 fu

nd
s, 

BM
V

 is
 u

se
d

. I
nd

ic
es

 a
re

 
ty

pi
ca

lly
 c

ap
ita

liz
at

io
n‐

w
ei

gh
te

d
, a

s t
he

y 
be

tte
r r

ep
re

se
nt

 th
e 

un
iv

er
se

 a
nd

 th
e 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 o

f t
he

 
ov

er
al

l m
ar

ke
tp

la
ce

. T
ot

al
 R

et
ur

n 
of

 a
ny

 c
a

pi
ta

liz
a

tio
n‐

w
ei

gh
te

d
 In

d
ex

 is
, t

he
re

fo
re

, m
or

e 
in

flu
en

ce
d

 b
y 

th
e 

la
rg

er
 fu

nd
s (

ba
se

d
 o

n 
N

et
 In

ve
st

ed
 C

ap
ita

l) 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
e 

In
d

ex
. 

A
pp

en
di

x 
A

52



RE
Re

al
 E

st
at

e

In
d

ex
 D

ef
in

iti
on

: N
FI

 C
EV


N

FI
-C

EV
 (C

lo
se

d
-E

nd
 V

al
ue

-F
un

d
 In

d
ex

) i
s t

he
 la

te
st

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 b
en

ch
m

ar
k 

fo
r r

ea
l e

st
at

e 
po

rtf
ol

io
s.

It 
w

as
 fi

rs
t r

el
ea

se
d

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

fo
ur

th
 q

ua
rte

r o
f 2

01
4 

in
 p

re
lim

in
ar

y 
fo

rm
 w

hi
ch

 is
 su

bj
ec

t t
o 

ch
an

ge
.

Th
e 

be
nc

hm
ar

k 
tra

ck
s f

un
d

s b
ac

k 
to

 th
e 

19
99

 v
in

ta
ge

 y
ea

r.
Th

e 
cu

rre
nt

 in
d

ex
 is

 c
om

pr
ise

d
 o

f 3
8 

cl
os

ed
 e

nd
 

va
lu

e 
ad

d
ed

 fu
nd

s t
ot

al
in

g 
$2

2 
bi

llio
n 

in
 g

ro
ss

 re
al

 e
st

a
te

.
A

ll f
un

d
s i

nc
lu

d
ed

 a
re

 st
ill 

a
ct

iv
e 

a
s o

f c
ur

re
nt

 
qu

ar
te

r e
nd

 d
at

e.
Th

e 
cu

rre
nt

 re
po

rt 
co

nt
ai

ns
 c

ur
re

nt
 q

ua
rte

r a
nd

 o
ne

 y
ea

r r
et

ur
ns

, i
nt

er
na

l r
a

te
 o

f 
re

tu
rn

 su
m

m
ar

y 
an

d
 b

al
an

ce
 sh

ee
t i

nf
or

m
at

io
n.

Fu
tu

re
 re

po
rts

 w
ill 

co
nt

ai
n 

ex
pa

nd
ed

 d
at

a 
po

in
ts

.
Th

e 
in

d
ex

 d
at

a 
is 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 b

e 
re

le
as

ed
 ro

ug
hl

y 
65

 d
ay

s a
fte

r e
ac

h 
ca

le
nd

ar
 q

ua
rte

r e
nd

.
Th

e 
in

d
ex

 w
ill 

be
 m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d
 in

 p
re

lim
in

ar
y 

st
a

tu
s f

or
 a

t l
ea

st
 o

ne
 y

ea
r.

Fo
r t

he
 y

ea
r e

nd
ed

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

4,
 th

e 
in

d
ex

 p
ro

d
uc

ed
 a

 to
ta

l g
ro

ss
 o

f f
ee

 re
tu

rn
 o

f 2
0.

14
%

.
6.

58
%

 o
f t

he
 re

tu
rn

 w
a

s i
nc

om
e 

w
hi

le
 1

2.
93

%
 w

a
s 

ap
pr

ec
ia

tio
n.

To
ta

l l
ev

er
ag

e 
w

as
 4

6.
4%

 a
nd

 o
cc

up
an

cy
 w

as
 8

6.
8%

.

A
pp

en
di

x 
B

53



M E M O R A N D U M 

TO: OTRS Board of Trustees  

FROM: Tom Spencer, Executive Director and Kirk Stebbins, Chief Investment Officer 

DATE: March 4, 2016 

RE: Summary of Investment Policy Statement Draft Amendments in Section II 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 

The staff is trying to follow a specific process for the Trustees to consider amendments to the 
Investment Policy Statement (IPS). The basic approach is to do this section by section. At each meeting 
the staff will provide a “discussion draft” of a section that will be considered at the next meeting. The 
discussion draft from the prior meeting the month before will be presented for discussion and possible 
adoption. Any trustee can move to amend or change the draft when that section is up for adoption. 

At the January board meeting, staff provided the Trustees with a discussion draft with Amendments to 
Section I of the IPS. At the February meeting Section I was up for adoption with an additional 
amendment that wasn’t in the original discussion draft. That additional amendment clarified the 
description of the various investment risks that are present and always need to be considered. Section I 
was adopted as amended. 

Also at the February meeting the Trustees were provided with a discussion draft of Section II of the IPS. 
This draft will be up for adoption at the March meeting. Here is a summary of those proposed 
amendments. 

Page 5 – All of the current Section II “Statement of Goals and Objectives” is being moved to a later 
Section of the IPS. 

Page 6 – This section used to be Section III. The title of new Section II refers to the “Duties” and 
“Responsibilities” of various groups and individuals related to the TRS investment program. 

Page 6 & 7 – The amendments to Section II (A) all apply to the duties and responsibilities of the Board of 
Trustees. These amendments make clear that the full Board has the final say on investment issues, and 
that the Investment Committee is the appropriate committee to make most recommendations on 
investment decisions and policy issues. Several specific duties and decisions are further set out in this 
paragraph. 

Page 7 & 8 – The amendments to Section II(B) set out the duties and responsibilities of the Staff. These 
duties include research, providing data, coordinating searches for providers, monitoring investment 
performance, carrying out decisions of the Board and ensuring liquidity to meet TRS’ obligations. 

Page 8 – Specific reporting requirements of the staff are moved to Section VI of the IPS. 

Page 9 & 10 – The amendments to Section II(C) set out the duties and responsibilities of the Investment 
Consultant. These include being a fiduciary to TRS, providing investment report and material so the 
Board can fulfill its duties, helping the Board to develop investment policy, monitoring compliance with 

54



policy, calculating investment performance, assisting with investment service provider searches, 
reviewing performance and changes with investment managers, performing due diligence on the 
performance of managers and to research and bring new investment ideas to the Board. 

Page 10 -  Specific reporting requirements of the consultant are moved to Section VI of the IPS. 

Page 12 & 13 – The amendments to Section II(D) set out the duties and responsibilities of investment 
managers. These include acting as a fiduciary to TRS, providing reports and other information to the 
Board, following TRS investment policy and guidelines, selecting investments prudently, working with 
consultant and custodian on accounting and performance, following policy regarding the voting of 
shareholder proxies and always seeking best execution on securities trades. 

Page 13 -  Specific reporting requirements of the managers are moved to Section VI of the IPS. 

Page 15 – The amendments to Section II(E) set out the duties and responsibilities of the custodian bank. 
These include acting as a fiduciary to TRS, providing reports and information to the Board and staff, 
notifying managers of corporate action affecting shares, safekeeping securities, collecting interest and 
dividends, recording investment transactions, working with the staff and consultant on accurate 
reporting, managing TRS’ directed brokerage program, monitoring compliance with the Investment 
Policy Statement, and providing the staff with reports and assistance to ensure compliance with 
requirements of GASB, the IRS, the SEC and FINRA, and monitoring and reporting on securities litigation 
action. 

Page 16 – The amendments to Section II(F) set out the duties and responsibilities of the securities 
lending agent. (Currently the securities lending agent is the custodian bank.) These duties include acting 
as a fiduciary, providing pertinent reports and information, handling terms and conditions of securities 
loans, monitoring the market value and the need for adequate collateral, directing investment of cash 
collateral according to policy, notifying the Board of regulatory changes, and notifying the staff of 
breaches of loan conditions. 

Page 17 – The amendments to Section II(G) set out the duties and responsibilities of the transition 
manager. Transition managers can be helpful when moving assets from one or more managers to 
others. The duties in this paragraph include acting as a fiduciary, providing a pre-trade analysis, a written 
plan of execution, post-trade analysis with detailed costs compared to estimates, and the duty to seek 
best execution. 

Please let us know if you have any comments or questions. 

55



TEACHERS’ RETIREMENT
SYSTEM OF OKLAHOMA

INVESTMENT POLICY STATEMENT 

REVISED JULY, 2015DRAFT REVISION STAGE 3 MARCH, 2016 

56



Table of Contents 
 

I. INTRODUCTION AND STATEMENTS OF PURPOSE, PHILOSOPHY AND ETHICS ............................. 1 

A. Legal Authority and System Description ....................................................................... 1 

B. Statement of Purpose ...................................................................................................... 2 

C. Statement of Investment Philosophy .............................................................................. 3 

D. Statement of Ethical Standards....................................................................................... 4 

II. STATEMENT OF DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES ....................................................................... 5 

A. Board of Trustees ........................................................................................................... 5 

B. Staff ................................................................................................................................ 6 

C. Investment Consultant .................................................................................................... 8 

D. Investment Managers ................................................................................................... 11 

E. Custodian ...................................................................................................................... 14 

F. Securities Lending Agent ............................................................................................. 15 

G. Transition Manager ...................................................................................................... 16 

III. PROCEDURES .......................................................................................................................... 17 

A. Investment Policy Review ............................................................................................ 17 

B. Investment Manager Policy Exceptions ....................................................................... 17 

C. Third Party Marketing and Referrals Disclosure Policy .............................................. 17 

IV. INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES ...................................................................................................... 19 

V. INVESTMENT GUIDELINES AND CONSTRAINTS ....................................................................... 23 

A. Ineligible Investments .................................................................................................. 23 

B. Universal Cash Rule for all OTRS Accounts ............................................................... 23 

C. Index Portfolios ............................................................................................................ 24 

D. Domestic Equity Portfolios .......................................................................................... 24 

E. International Equity ...................................................................................................... 24 

F. Fixed Income ................................................................................................................ 25 

G. Securities Lending ........................................................................................................ 26 

H. Private Equity ............................................................................................................... 26 

I. Real Estate .................................................................................................................... 27 

J. Master Limited Partnership (Energy Infrastructure) .................................................... 28 

K. Opportunistic Investments ............................................................................................ 28 

L. Derivatives.................................................................................................................... 29 

VI. EVALUATION AND REVIEW ..................................................................................................... 29 

A. Investment Staff Reporting Requirements ................................................................... 29 

B. Investment Consultant Reporting Requirements .......................................................... 30 

C. Investment Manager Reporting Requirements ............................................................. 31 

57



VII. APPENDIX A - STRATEGIC ASSET ALLOCATION ..................................................................... 34 

VIII. APPENDIX B - REBALANCING POLICY .................................................................................... 35 

A. Overall Fund Allocation ............................................................................................... 35 

B. Allocation among Equity Styles ................................................................................... 35 

IX. APPENDIX C – INVESTMENT MANAGER EXCEPTIONS TO INVESTMENT GUIDELINES .............. 36 

X. APPENDIX D – INVESTMENT MANAGER PERFORMANCE BENCHMARKS ................................. 38 

I. Introduction ............................................................................................................................. 1 

A. Legal Authority .............................................................................................................. 1 

B. Purpose ........................................................................................................................... 2 

II. Statement of Goals and Objectives ......................................................................................... 3 

III. Roles and Responsibilities....................................................................................................... 4 

A. Board of Trustees ........................................................................................................... 4 

B. Staff ................................................................................................................................ 4 

C. Investment Consultant .................................................................................................... 7 

D. Investment Managers ..................................................................................................... 9 

E. Custodian ...................................................................................................................... 12 

F. Securities Lending Agent ............................................................................................. 13 

G. Transition Manager ...................................................................................................... 13 

IV. Asset Allocation .................................................................................................................... 15 

V. Rebalancing Policy ................................................................................................................ 17 

A. Overall Fund Allocation ............................................................................................... 17 

B. Allocation among Equity Styles ................................................................................... 17 

VI. Securities Transactions .......................................................................................................... 18 

VII. Investment Guidelines ........................................................................................................... 19 

A. Ineligible Investments .................................................................................................. 19 

B. Manager Policy Exceptions .......................................................................................... 19 

C. Universal Cash Rule for all OTRS Accounts ............................................................... 19 

D. Index Portfolios ............................................................................................................ 20 

E. Domestic Equity Portfolios .......................................................................................... 20 

F. International Equity ...................................................................................................... 20 

G. Fixed Income ................................................................................................................ 21 

Core Plus Fixed Income ........................................................................................................ 21 

High Yield Fixed Income ...................................................................................................... 21 

H. Securities Lending ........................................................................................................ 22 

I. Private Equity ............................................................................................................... 22 

J. Real Estate .................................................................................................................... 23 

58



K. Master Limited Partnership (Energy Infrastructure) .................................................... 24 

L. Opportunistic Investments ............................................................................................ 24 

M. Derivatives.................................................................................................................... 25 

VIII. Third Party Marketing and Referrals Disclosure Policy ....................................................... 25 

IX. Appendix A – Investment Manager Exceptions to Investment Guidelines .......................... 27 

X. Appendix B – Investment Manager Performance Benchmarks ............................................ 31 

 

59



I. INTRODUCTION AND STATEMENTS OF PURPOSE, PHILOSOPHY AND ETHICS  

The Board of Trustees of the Teachers’ Retirement System of Oklahoma, as the governing body 
for the System, deems it prudent and necessary to maintain this Investment Policy Statement to 
act as the principal governing document for the investment of System assets.   
 
 

A. Legal Authority and System Description  

The System is established by statute; the legal authority and description of the System are 
detailed below. 
 
Constitutional Authority 
Section 62 of Article 5 of the Oklahoma Constitution was added as a result of the passage 
of State Question 306 on July 14, 1942.  This section reads: 

“The Legislature may enact laws to provide for the retirement for 
meritorious service of teachers and other employees in the public 
schools, colleges and universities in this State supported wholly or 
in part by public funds, and may provide for payments to be made 
and accumulated from public funds, either of the State or of the 
several school districts.  Payments from public funds shall be made 
in conformity to equality and uniformity within the same 
classifications according to duration of service and remuneration 
received during such service.” 

Statutory Authority 
As a result of the passage of State Question 306, the Legislature enacted House Bill 297 in 
the 1943 legislative session that created the Oklahoma Teachers Retirement System 
(“System”).  The legislation has been changed substantially in the years since its creation 
and is currently codified in Oklahoma Statutes Title 70, Sections 17-101 et. seq.  (NOTE: 
In the remainder of this document, statutory references will follow the notation O.S. 70 § 
17-101 to reference Oklahoma Statutes Title 70, Section 17-101.) 

Purpose of System 
In O.S. 70 § 17-102, paragraph 1 creates the Oklahoma Teachers Retirement System and 
outlines the purpose of the System as follows: 

“A retirement system is hereby established and placed under the 
management of the Board of Trustees for the purpose of providing 
retirement allowances and other benefits under the provisions of 
this act for teachers of the State of Oklahoma.” 

Board of Trustees Powers 
The second paragraph of O.S. 70 § 17-102 provides the broad terms of the powers 
entrusted to the Board of Trustees (“Board”): 

60



“The Board of Trustees shall have the power and privileges of a 
corporation and shall be known as the "Board of Trustees of the 
Teachers' Retirement System of Oklahoma", and by such name all 
of its business shall be transacted, all of its funds invested, and all 
of its cash and securities and other property held in trust for the 
purpose for which received.” 

Further powers vested upon the Board are set forth in O.S. 70 § 17-106, in part: 

“(1) The general administration and responsibility for the proper 
operation of the retirement system and for making effective the 
provisions of the act are hereby vested in a Board of Trustees which 
shall be known as the Board of Trustees and shall be organized 
immediately after a majority of the trustees provided for in this 
section shall have qualified and taken the oath of office.” 

and: 

“(10) Subject to the limitations of this act, the Board of Trustees 
shall, from time to time, establish rules and regulations for the 
administration of the funds created by this act and for the 
transaction of its business. 

Finally, O.S. 70 § 17-106.1, in part, defines the duties of the Board in relation to 
investment of fund assets: 

“A. The Board of Trustees of the Teachers’ Retirement System of 
Oklahoma shall discharge their duties with respect to the System 
solely in the interest of the participants and beneficiaries and: 
1. For the exclusive purpose of: 
a. providing benefits to participants and their beneficiaries, and 
b. defraying reasonable expenses of administering the System; 
2. With the care, skill, prudence, and diligence under the 
circumstances then prevailing that a prudent person acting in a like 
capacity and familiar with such matters would use in the conduct of 
an enterprise of a like character and with like aims; 
3. By diversifying the investments of the System so as to minimize 
the risk of large losses, unless under the circumstances it is clearly 
prudent not to do so; and 
4. In accordance with the laws, documents and instruments 
governing the System.” 

B. Statement of Purpose 

A primary purpose of this investment policy statement is to guide fiduciaries, including 
the Board of Trustees, System staff, investment managers, consultants and others 
responsible for overseeing and investing the assets of the Fund.  This policy also 
communicates foundational tenets underlying its formulation.  This policy provides 

61



specific guidance regarding investment objectives, asset allocation, risk management and 
the means by which investment objectives are intended to be achieved. Additional specific 
guidance is given in defining roles, delegated duties and accountabilities of System 
fiduciaries as well as setting forth logical, disciplined procedures for making decisions. 

C. Statement of Investment Philosophy 

Since this policy is a communication tool for System fiduciaries, interested stakeholders as 
well as other external parties, the Board recognizes that it is important to articulate the 
underlying beliefs that are foundational in its formulation.  Key aspects of the Board’s 
investment philosophy are summarized in the following statements. 
 

1. The Fund has an infinite time horizon and the assets should be invested and 
managed accordingly. 

 
2. A central tenet in investing is the tradeoff between risk and return, meaning that 

the pursuit of higher expected returns is accompanied with higher expected risk. 
Bearing some degree of investment risk is necessary in the pursuit of investment 
return objectives. 

 
3. Investment risk comes in many forms.  The most common risk is the volatility of 

periodic returns measured by the statistical term known as standard deviation. 
Additionally, there are a variety of other risks to be considered.  A partial list of 
these risks would include the risk of permanent loss of capital, the risk of not 
meeting objectives, illiquidity risk, credit risk, interest rate risk, inflation risk, 
leverage risk, concentration risk and manager risk. A primary focus of this 
investment policy is to balance, manage and, to the extent possible, control these 
various risks. 

 
4. Funds with long term investment horizons are able to pursue higher expected 

returns associated with higher risk portfolios because they are able to remain 
invested when periodic declines in market values occur. 

 
5. The Fund will best contribute to the primary goal of providing benefits to 

participants and their beneficiaries by realizing high risk-adjusted net returns. 
 

6. The Board acknowledges that while other institutions may make investment 
decisions to pursue various worthy causes that may be admirable in their own 
right, the Board’s investment decisions are made to achieve the primary goal of 
providing benefits to participants and their beneficiaries and defraying reasonable 
expenses. 

 
7. Long-term investing success is best accomplished by adhering to a long-term 

strategic asset allocation rather than engaging in short term tactical market timing 
among asset classes. 

 
8. Diversification among asset classes and securities is the primary means of 

controlling the risk of an investment portfolio. 
 

9. The primary factor determining portfolio risk and return is how the portfolio is 
allocated among asset classes. 

 

62



10. The decision-making process for investments should be both disciplined and 
logical deriving support from current academic theory and the application of 
rigorous analysis. 

 
11. In less efficient markets where the probabilities of achieving net-of-fee 

outperformance relative to a passive market index are higher, active management 
is preferred.  In more efficient markets where the probabilities of achieving net-of-
fee outperformance relative to a passive market index are lower, low-cost index 
management is preferred. 

 
12. Certain asset classes are only accessible in the form of private market interests 

which have very limited liquidity and normally higher costs relative to public 
market instruments. Investing a portion of the Fund in these illiquid asset classes is 
reasonable to the extent that they offer some desirable combination of the 
following relative to available public market asset classes: higher expected net 
return and/or risk reduction through diversification. 

 
D. Statement of Ethical Standards 

The Board of Trustees is committed to maintaining and promoting the highest ethical 
standards among Board members and among all parties involved in the administration of 
fund assets.   
 
The Board expects all parties involved in the administration of fund assets, including all 
System fiduciaries, to conduct their activities according to the highest ethical standards 
adhering likewise to the principles expressed in the Board of Trustee Policy Manual 
Chapter 6 – Ethical and Fiduciary Conduct.  Given the nature of fund management and 
investing, particular attention will be given to conflicts of interest.  All parties involved in 
the administration of fund assets should be free of conflicts of interest to avoid even the 
appearance of not acting in the sole interests of System participants and their beneficiaries. 
Where any involved party becomes aware of an actual or potential conflict of interest it is 
their duty to disclose the conflict so that the Board may assess its seriousness. 
 

  

63



II. STATEMENT OF ROLES DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

A. Board of Trustees 

The Board of Trustees has the final decision making authority for the System.  The 
Investment Committee of the Board has the authority to make investment 
recommendations to the Board.  The Board evaluates and decides whether or not to take 
action on recommendations from the Investment Committee.  The Investment 
Committee’s authority and responsibilities are set forth in the Investment Committee 
Charter contained in the Board of Trustees Policy Manual. 

Trustee duties and responsibilities are listed in summary as follows: 

duties and responsibilities of the Board of Trustees include: 

1. Adopt, and when deemed necessary, amend thisEstablish the  Investment Policy 
Statement. 

2. Determine delegated duties to be performed by other qualified fiduciaries in order 
to ensure that the Fund is properly administered and regularly evaluated to assess 
progress towards achieving established objectives. 

1.3.Receive and evaluate reports, presentations and other materials provided by 
investment consultant(s), staff, investment managers, and other retained advisors 
to monitor the administration of Fund assets in accordance with policy objectives 
and to regularly assess progress towards achieving the goals and objectives defined 
herein., including the asset allocation, in accordance with the goals and objectives 
outlined above. 

2. Review, at least annually, and modify, as necessary, policy objectives and 
guidelines, including the development of asset allocation strategies, 
recommendations on long-term asset allocation and the appropriate mix of 
investment manager styles and strategies. 

3. Provide overall policy direction to staff, Investment Consultant(s), Investment 
Managers, Custodian, Securities Lending Agent and Transition Manager(s) in the 
execution of the investment policy. 

4. Select and contract with qualified professional advisory organizations to perform 
functions deemed necessary by the Board to manage the Fund in accordance with 
policy.  Common professional advisory organizations would  include and retain 
qualified Iinvestment Cconsultant(s), Iinvestment Mmanagers, global Ccustodians 
and Ssecurities Llending Aagents. to advise and manage assets in furtherance of 
the goals and objectives outlined above. 

5. Monitor and reviewEvaluating the performance of retained professional advisory 
organizations and staff  Investment Managers, Custodian and Securities Lending 
Agent to determineassess fulfillment of duties, achievement of goals and 
compliance with policy guidelines. 

Comment [KS1]: Moved intact to Section IV 

Comment [KS2]: Moved in substance to Section 
III. 

Comment [KS3]: Seems redundant given Sect I 
B. regarding purpose 

64



6. Annually conduct a formal review of the performance of Investment Consultant(s), 
normally to be performed in the month of April. 

7. When necessary, terminateTerminating the contracts with any retained 
professional advisory organization when deemed necessary. Investment 
Consultant(s), Investment Managers, Custodian or Securities Lending Agent. 

Review and approve the Investment Staff Annual Work Plan.  

Monitor investment activity for compliance with Board policies and adherence by 
Investment Managers to strategy and direction. 

Review overall investment performance to determine whether it meets established 
benchmarks. 

8. Monitor Review all costs of investment operations at least annually. 

 

B. Staff 

The A summary of the duties and responsibilities of the Investment Sstaff is as 
followsinclude: 

1. Provide the Board and the Investment Committee with reports, presentations and 
any other materials to assist them in the fulfillment of their duties and 
responsibilities.   

1.2.Serve as the primary liaison between the Board of Trustees and the Iinvestment 
cConsultant(s), Iinvestment Mmanagers, Ccustodian, Ssecurities Llending Aagent 
and Ttransition Mmanager(s). 

2.3.Implement Board decisions regarding asset allocation, investment structure, 
portfolio rebalancing procedures and retention of Iinvestment Cconsultant(s), 
Iinvestment Mmanagers, Ccustodian and Ssecurities Llending Aagent. 

3.4.Coordinate the search, selection,  and evaluation and retention decisions 
ofprocesses for Iinvestment Cconsultant(s), Iinvestment Mmanagers, Ccustodian 
and Ssecurities Llending Aagent on behalf of the Board of Trustees. 

4.5.Monitor and review the performance of the total fund, asset class composites, and 
Iinvestment Mmanagers, Custodian and Securities Lending Agent to evaluate 
performance, achievement of objectives and compliance with policy guidelines. 

5.6.Monitor and review all costs of investment operations including, but not limited to, 
fees paid to Iinvestment Cconsultant(s), Iinvestment Mmanagers, and Ccustodian, 
Securities Lending Agent and Transition Manager(s); fees netted against System 
accounts paid to Investment Managers, Custodian, Securities Lending Agent and 

Comment [KS4]: 9, 10 and 11 seem redundant to 
3 above 

65



Transition Manager(s); trading costs and foreign exchange as well as portfolio 
transactions costs. 

6.7.Manage the liquidity in the Total Portfolio to ensure timely payment of Client 
benefit payments and plan expenses and the investment of contributions consistent 
with established asset allocation and portfolio rebalancing policies. 

7.8.Conduct the search and selection of Ttransition Mmanager(s) in collaboration with 
the Iinvestment Cconsultant(s) as directed by the Board. 

8.9.Conduct due diligence in collaboration with the Iinvestment Cconsultant(s) when 
Iinvestment Mmanagers fail to meet the expectations of the Board or are formally 
placed ‘On Alert’ or “‘On Notice’ on the Investment Consultant’s Monthly 
Manager Status Report. 

9.10. Explore, rResearch, analyze and review new innovative investment ideas 
and managers concepts in collaboration with the Iinvestment Cconsultant(s) in an 
effort to keep the system current with investment optionsidentify potential 
modifications to improve the investment portfolio. 

10.11. Review weekly with the Investment ConsultantMonitor the status and 
performance of current the total fund, asset class composites and Iinvestment 
Mmanagers and to determine if any issues need to be addressed by the Staff 
Investment Committee or the Board of Trustees. 

INVESTMENT STAFF REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 

As Necessary (based on occurrence and on a timely basis) 

1. Review any material Investment Policy compliance violations. 

2. Review pertinent information regarding due diligence on Managers that have 
failed to meet the expectations of the Board or are placed ‘On Alert’ or “On 
Notice’ on the Investment Consultant’s Monthly Manager Status Report. 

Monthly  

a) Review presenting Investment Managers’ portfolio characteristics including 
relevant benchmark comparisons, portfolio performance, liquidity, holdings 
and holdings overlap between managers. 

Quarterly 

1. Review all costs of trading. 

2. Certify to Board that Investment Consultant has certified their compliance with 
all requirements of this Investment Policy Statement.  Report to the Board if 
any Investment Consultant(s) have failed to certify their compliance, and make 
recommendations as to any action Board should consider. 

Comment [KS5]: Moved intact to Section VI. 
Evaluation and Review  

66



3. Report to the Board if any Investment Managers have failed to certify their 
compliance, and make recommendations as to any action Board should 
consider.  

4. Other comments or information as required. 

Annually 

1. Present Investment Staff Annual Work Plan to Board of Trustees for Review. 

2. Review of investment oversight process, total fund construction and evaluation 
of investment manager’s portfolio. 

3. Review all costs of investment operations including, but not limited to, fees 
netted against system accounts and fees paid to Investment Consultant(s), 
Investment Managers, Custodian, Securities Lending Agent and Transition 
Manager(s). 

4. The General Counsel shall review the ADV filed with the SEC by the 
Investment Consultant and advise of any material findings and/or changes. 

Review all form ADV’s filed with the SEC on all Investment Managers and 
advise the board on any material changes and/or findings. 

C. Investment Consultant 

The A summary of the duties and responsibilities of the Iinvestment Cconsultant(s) 
retained by the Board is as followsinclude: 

1. Be appointed, and act as, aAcknowledge status as a fiduciary for to the System and 
remain in compliance both with this investment policy and with the current 
executed contract with the System. 

1.2.Provide the Board and the Investment Committee with reports, presentations and 
any other materials to assist them in the fulfillment of their duties and 
responsibilities. 

2.3.Assist the Board in developing and modifying policy objectives and guidelines, 
including the development of asset allocation strategies, recommendations on 
long-term asset allocation and the appropriate mix of investment manager styles 
and strategies. 

3.4.Assist the Board by monitoring compliance with this Investment Policy. 

4.5.Provide assistance in investment performance calculation, evaluation, and analysis. 

5.6.Provide assistance in Iinvestment Mmanager searches and selection. 

6.7.Provide assistance in Ccustodian, Ssecurities Llending Aagent, Ttransition 
Mmanager and Ccommission Rrecapture Aagent searches and selection. 

67



7.8.Provide timely information, written and/or oral, on investment strategies, 
instruments, Mmanagers and other related issues, as requested by the Board. 

8.9.Monitor the Board's investment managers and notify the Board and staff of any 
material changes in the Iinvestment Mmanagers' firmsorganizational structure, or 
their staffing personnel or if there are performance issues. 

9.10. Certify on a quarterly basis, in writing to the Board, the Iinvestment 
Cconsultant’s compliance with this Statement as it currently exists or as modified 
in the future. 

10.11. Reporting to the Board at their request.  The Iinvestment Cconsultant shall 
report to the Board as outlined detailed in Section VI of this policybelow.  Monthly 
All reports should be timely submitted. in writing within 15 days of the end of 
each month. 

11.12. Review weekly with the Sstaff the status and performance of current 
Iinvestment Mmanagers and determine if any issues need to be addressed by the 
Sstaff or the Board of Trustees. 

12.13. Provide assistanceCollaborate with Staff in the search and selection of 
Ttransition Mmanager(s) as directed by the Board. 

13.14. Provide assistance Collaborate with Staff in the conduct of due diligence 
when Iinvestment Mmanagers fail to meet the expectations of the Board or are 
placed ‘On Alert’ or ‘“On Notice’. on the Investment Consultant’s Monthly 
Manager Status Report. 

14.15. Explore, research, analyze and review new investment ideas and managers 
in collaboration with the Sstaff in an effort to keep the system current with 
investment options. 

INVESTMENT CONSULTANT REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 

As Necessary (based on occurrence and on a timely basis) 

1. Review of Investment Consultant Organizational Structure 

a. Organizational changes (i.e., ownership). 

b. Any departures/additions to consulting staff. 

c. Material changes in assets under advisement. 

Monthly  

a. Performance Review. 

i.Present total fund, asset class and Investment Manager gross returns and net of 
fee returns for last month, last quarter, year-to-date, fiscal year-to-date, last 

Comment [KS6]: Moved intact to Section VI. 
Evaluation and Review  

68



year, last three years, last five years, last ten years, and since inception 
versus designated benchmarks. 

ii.Compare actual asset allocation to target asset allocation and make 
recommendations for rebalancing. 

iii.Present manager status summary, including any recommended changes. 

b. Other comments or information as required. 

Quarterly 

a. Performance Review. 

i.Present total fund, asset class and Investment Manager returns and peer group 
rankings for last calendar quarter, year-to-date, fiscal year-to-date, last 
year, last three years, last five years and since inception versus designated 
benchmarks. 

ii.Review and analysis of any outstanding investment manager policy exceptions. 

b. Other comments or information as required. 

c. Certify to Board that Investment Consultant is in compliance with all 
requirements of this Investment Policy Statement. 

d. Certify to Board that Investment Managers have certified their compliance 
with all requirements of this Investment Policy Statement.  Report to the Board 
if any Investment Managers have failed to certify their compliance, and make 
recommendations as to any action Board should consider. 

Annually 

a. Review of investment oversight process, total fund construction and 
evaluation of investment manager’s portfolio. 

a. Brief review of the Investment Consultant’s oversight process. 

b. Critical analysis of the performance of the total fund, with particular 
attention paid to asset categories and Investment Managers that 
underperformed their relative benchmarks and the actuarially assumed rate 
of return. 

c. Review of the asset allocation strategy used over the past year and 
underlying rationale. 

d. Evaluation of strategies success/disappointments. 

e. Current asset allocation strategy and underlying rationale. 

69



b. Review of revenue sources and conflict of interest disclosure. 

a. Provide the board with financial information regarding annual brokerage 
revenues, conference fees and sponsorships, and other monies received 
from money managers versus consulting revenues received directly from 
clients. 

b. Disclose all brokerage and other compensation, including conference 
fees, consulting fees and sponsorships, received by the consultant from 
the System’s managers. 

c. Disclose any compensation received by the Investment Consultant from 
any Investment Manager or other vendor it recommends hiring. 

d. Disclose any affiliated Investment Management Firm. 

c. Disclose any affiliated Investment Management firm. Summary of Investment 
Guidelines. 

i.Discuss adherence to guidelines. 

ii.Comments, concerns, or suggestions regarding the policy statement. 

D. Investment Managers 

A summary of theThe duties and responsibilities of each of the investment managers 
retained by the Board includeis as follows: 

1. Acknowledge status as a fiduciary to the System and remain in compliance both 
with this investment policy and with the current executed contract with the 
System.Be appointed, and act as, a fiduciary for the System. 

1.2.Provide the Board, the Investment Committee, the staff and the investment 
consultant(s) with reports, presentations and any other materials to assist them in 
the fulfillment of their duties and responsibilities. 

2.3.Managing Manage the Fund’s assets in accordance with the policy guidelines and 
objectives expressed herein. 

3.4.Prudently selecting investments based on thorough evaluation of all risks 
applicable to stated mandate. 

4.5.Working with the Ccustodian and the Iinvestment Cconsultant to verify monthly 
accounting and performance reports. 

5.6.Certify on a quarterly basis, in writing to the Board, the Investment Manager’s 
compliance with this Statement as it currently exists or as modified in the future. 

6.7.Reporting to the Board at their request.  Each manager shall report to the Board 
and the Investment Consultant as outlined below.  Monthly reports should be 

70



submitted in writing within 15 days of the end of each month.according to the 
reporting requirements set forth in Section VI of this policy. 

8. It is the responsibility of each Investment Manager to aAct as a fiduciary in 
adopting and adhering to proxy voting policies, and the manager 
certifiesacknowledging that its proxy voting policies may affect the value of their 
respective portfolio. 

7.9. Seek to obtain best execution in all securities transactions to minimize the costs of 
trading. 

INVESTMENT MANAGER REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 

As Necessary (based on occurrence and on a timely basis) 

a. Review of Organizational Structure. 

a. Organizational changes (i.e., ownership). 

b. Discussion of any material changes to the investment process. 

c. Any departures/additions to investment staff. 

d. Material changes in assets under management. 

Monthly  

All Managers with at least monthly reconciliation and valuation will provide: 

a. Performance Review. 

i.Present total fund and asset class returns for last month, calendar quarter, year-
to-date, last year, last three years, last five years and since inception versus 
designated benchmarks. 

ii.Present total fund net-of-fees returns for last month, calendar quarter, year-to-
date, last year, last three years, last five years and since inception,  

iii.Discuss performance relative to benchmarks; provide attribution analysis that 
identifies returns due to allocation and selection decisions. 

iv.Provide portfolio characteristics. 

v.Risk and Return Attribution analysis of any granted exceptions to investment 
policy analysis. 

b. Provide Portfolio Holdings. 

i.Present book value and current market value. 

Comment [KS7]: Moved intact to Section VI. 
Evaluation and Review  

71



ii.List individual securities by sector. 

c. Other Comments or Information. 

Quarterly 

a. Summary of Investment Guidelines. 

i.Discuss adherence to guidelines. 

ii.Comments, concerns, or suggestions regarding the policy statement. 

b. Certify to Board and the Investment Consultant that Manager is in compliance 
with all requirements of this Investment Policy Statement.  Said certification 
shall be in writing and shall be received by the Board and Investment 
Consultant no later than 30 days after the end of each calendar quarter. 

c. Any Manager that manages a particular mandate that does not reconcile assets 
and provide market value of assets on a monthly basis will provide monthly 
performance and holdings reporting on a quarterly basis. 

Annually 

a. Review of Investment Process and Evaluation of Portfolio Management 
Process. 

a. Brief review of investment process. 

b. Investment strategy used over the past year and underlying rationale. 

c. Evaluation of strategies success/disappointments. 

d. Current investment strategy and underlying rationale. 

b. Provide, in either printed form or electronic access to, Form ADV filed with 
the Securities and Exchange Commission. 

c. Each manager, as pertinent to their applicable mandate, will report at least 
annually to the Board of Trustees their respective commissions recapture 
program on behalf of the Teachers' System.  Each advisor shall provide: 
 
a. A copy of its monitoring procedures. 

b. A statement demonstrating compliance with Section 28(e) of the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934, and/or other applicable laws. 

 
c. Analysis of execution. 

 

72



d. Each manager, as pertinent to their applicable mandate, will report annually to 
the Board of Trustees a record of proxy policies, as well as voting record for 
the previous 12 month period. 

E. Custodian 

A summary of the The duties and responsibilities of the custodian bank(s) retained by the 
Systemwill be responsible for performing the following functions is as follows: 

1. Acknowledge status as a fiduciary to the System and remain in compliance both 
with this investment policy and with the current executed contract with the 
System.Be appointed, and act as, a fiduciary for the System. 

1.2.Provide the Board, the Investment Committee, the staff and the investment 
consultant(s) with reports, presentations and any other materials to assist them in 
the fulfillment of their duties and responsibilities. 

2.3.Accept daily instructions from designated staff. 

3.4.Notify Iinvestment Mmanagers of proxies, tenders, rights, fractional shares or 
other dispositions of holdings. 

4.5.Safekeeping of securities. 

5.6.Timely collection of interest and dividends. 

6.7.Daily cash sweep of idle principal and income cash balances. 

7.8.Processing of  and maintain records of all investment manager transactions. 

8.9.Collection of proceeds from maturing securities. 

9.10. Disbursement of all income or principal cash balances as directed. 

10. Providing monthly statements by investment account and a consolidated statement 
of all assets. 

Provide monthly exchange traded funds and cash position by investment manager. 

11. Provide written statements revealing monthlyPerform regular reconciliations of 
holdings and transactions with the System’s retained custody and investment 
managers on at least a monthly basis’ accounting statements. 

12. Working with the System’s staff and the Iinvestment Cconsultant to ensure 
accuracy in reporting. 

12.13. Manage and administer the System’s directed brokerage program. 

73



13.14. Monitor compliance with this Investment Policies Statement, provide 
applicable research to ensure the validity of suspected breaches, and submit 
appropriate commentary offering a recommendation to the reported breach. 

14.15. Participate in an annual review of compliance with OTRS staff, to 
determine the effectiveness of investment policy testing. Providing required 
reports to assist the System’s staff and vendors with compliance with the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, the Internal Revenue Service, the 
Securities and Exchange Commission, the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority 
and other regulatory agencies. 

15.16. Monitoring Monitor, file and reporting ofreport on securities class action 
lawsuitssuits related to securities fraud claimsand collect and record settlement  
and proceeds. and collection of subsequent proceeds. 

16.17. Processing and filing fileof Foreign Tax Reclaims on behalf of the System. 

F. Securities Lending Agent 

A summary of the duties and responsibilities of Tthe securities lending agent will be 
responsible for managing the securities lending program including the following 
functionsretained by the System is as follows: 

1. Acknowledge status as a fiduciary to the System and remain in compliance both 
with this investment policy and with the current executed contract with the System. 

1.2.Provide the Board, the Investment Committee, the staff and the investment 
consultant(s) with reports, presentations and any other materials to assist them in 
the fulfillment of their duties and responsibilities.Be appointed, and act as, a 
fiduciary for the System. 

2.3.Arrange terms and conditions of securities loans. 

3.4.Monitor the market value of the securities lent and mark to market at least daily 
and ensure that any necessary calls for additional collateral are made and that such 
collateral is obtained on a timely basis. 

4.5.Direct the investment of cash received as collateral in accordance with direction 
from the Board, provided that such investments are consistent with guidelines 
provided in this document. 

5.6.Notify the Board of any changes to the investment guidelines in the Securities and 
Exchange Commission’s rule 2A7 for consideration by the Board. 

6.7.Notify OTRS staff in the event that a recalled security has not been returned by a 
borrowing party within 10 days of the request. 

74



G. Transition Manager 

The Ttransition Mmanagers shall manage the transition of assets from one or more 
Iinvestment Mmanagers or asset categories to one or more other Iinvestment Mmanagers 
or asset categories.  Transition Mmanagers shall be selected among those approved by the 
Board.  Transition managers shall be utilized when such employment is likely to present 
significant opportunities for cost savings, technical efficiencies or other benefits to the 
System. 

A summary of the duties and responsibilities of Transition Managers retained by the 
System is as follows:shall be responsible for managing transitions including the following 
functions: 

1. Acknowledge status as a fiduciary to the System and remain in compliance both 
with this investment policy and with the current executed contract with the 
SystemBe appointed, and act as, a fiduciary for the System. 

2. Provide a pre-trade analysis, which will include, among other things, a trading 
liquidity analysis, portfolio sector analysis, volatility analysis, and estimated 
transaction costs. 

3. Provide a detailed written plan of transition execution. 

4. Provide a post-trade analysis, comparing the actual costs with the pre trade 
estimates. The report will also include various trading statistics, benchmarking 
information, and detailed trade reports. 

5. In all securities transactions, transition managers shall seek to obtain best 
execution to minimize the costs of trading. 

  

75



III. PROCEDURES 

A. Investment Policy Review 

In order to keep the Investment Policy current, the Board will at least annually, review and 
modify, as deemed necessary any portions of the policy.  The annual review will consider, 
but not be limited to, the following: objectives and guidelines, the development of asset 
allocation strategies, recommendations on long-term asset allocation and the appropriate 
mix of investment manager styles and strategies. 
 
The Board, both upon their own initiative and upon consideration of the advice and 
recommendations of staff, consultants, the investment managers and other fund 
professionals involved with the assets, may amend policy guidelines.  Proposed 
modifications should be documented in writing to the Board. 
 
B. Investment Manager Policy Exceptions 

Requests for an exception to invest in securities precluded by section V. A. or the 
applicable mandate’s specific policies, should be submitted in writing to the Board of 
Trustees and include justification for such request, proposed process for providing 
quarterly reporting on attribution analysis of the contribution of the allowed exception, 
and a requested time period, up to three years. Exception requests will undergo a 
reevaluation and approval process at the end of each term. 
 
C. Third Party Marketing and Referrals Disclosure Policy 

The Teachers’ Retirement System of Oklahoma requires transparency and full disclosure 
of all relationships in proposed and committed investments with any third parties. A “third 
party marketer” is a person who represents an asset management firm or any other type of 
investment services provider, as an independent contractor rather than as an employee of 
the firm, for the purpose of making presentations or securing contracts with OTRS for the 
firm or provider. Any such third party marketer must disclose himself or herself as a third 
party marketer before at the same time as contacting any member of the Board of 
Trustees, employee of OTRS or the outside investment consultant for OTRS. In addition, 
firms submitting investment proposals for consideration by Teachers’ Retirement System 
of Oklahoma (including any sub-managers or consultants engaged by such firms) are 
hereby required to disclose the identity of all third-party marketers and/or individuals by 
whom the firm has been referred to Teachers’ Retirement System of Oklahoma and further 
indicate those so identified that stand to receive fees or other consideration in the event 
that a contract between the firm and the Teachers’ Retirement System of Oklahoma is 
secured.  Any consideration paid or benefits received, or any relationship between such 
firm (including any sub-managers or consultants engaged by such firms) and third party 
marketing entities and/or individuals, shall be disclosed. The disclosure requirements 
established by this Policy apply throughout the term of any contractual relationship 
Teachers’ Retirement System of Oklahoma may have with any firm and represents a 
continuing obligation of disclosure. This Policy becomes effective immediately and 
applies to all firms currently managing Teachers’ Retirement System of Oklahoma assets.  
All firms submitting investment proposals must make the disclosures required by this 

76



Policy prior to any action being taken on the firm's investment proposal by the Board, as 
well as comply with the continuing obligation of disclosure. 

77



Teachers’ Retirement System of Oklahoma 
Succession Policy 

Introduction 

One of the most important functions of the Board is the hiring and oversight of the Executive Director. In order 
to ensure that this function is carried out effectively, the Board believes that a formal succession policy is 
required.  

The specific objective of this policy is to provide the Board with clear guidance as to the process of choosing a 
new Executive Director. 

Roles and Responsibilities 

The Board Chair and Vice Chair will coordinate the succession planning process. 

General Guidelines 

In order to protect the Board and the System from sudden loss of Executive Director services, the Executive 
Director shall mentor at least one other member of OTRS senior management to become familiar with Board 
and Executive Director issues and processes.  The Executive Director shall indicate to the Board Chair each year 
who that person is and note if any change occurs.  

In the event of a vacancy in the position of the Executive Director, the Board may employ a search firm to 
perform a national search for candidates to succeed the Executive Director. The Board may interview a 
minimum of three candidates recommended by the search firm as well as any other candidates the Board as a 
whole agrees to consider. All candidates considered by the Board must meet the qualification as described in 
the position description for the position of Executive Director on file with TRS. 

In the event of a vacancy in the position of Executive Director, the Board may select a staff member to serve as 
the Acting Executive Director responsible for carrying out the Executive Director’s duties under the governance 
policies until such time as the Board selects a new Executive Director and that person assumes the position on a 
full time basis.  The senior staff member identified by the Executive Director annually to the Board Chair under 
the first paragraph above may be considered for this interim appointment However, the Board is not bound to 
select that individual. 

Also, to ensure minimal disruption whenever a member of senior management leaves, the Executive Director 
will promote a culture throughout the organization of hiring, mentoring and developing personnel so that 
another individual is capable of assuming that manager’s functions until a replacement is found. 

Policy Review 

The Board will review this policy at least every three (3) years to ensure that it remains relevant and 
appropriate. [Option 1] As part of the policy review, the Board may schedule an Executive Session with the 
Executive Director for the purpose of discussing the Succession Planning Policy and any questions that trustees 
may have concerning succession planning in general. [Option 2 if Open Meeting Act would not permit this] As 
part of the policy review, the Chairman may form a committee composed of the Board Chairman and the chairs 
of the Audit, Investment and  Governance Committee to discuss the Succession Planning Policy and any 
questions that the committee or other trustees may have concerning succession planning in general. 

78



M E M O R A N D U M 

TO: OTRS Board of Trustees 

FROM: Tom Spencer, Executive Director and Julie Ezell, General Counsel 

DATE: March 18, 2016 

RE: Federal & Grant Matching Contribution Rate 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

Every year the Board of Trustees of the Teachers’ Retirement System must review and possibly 
adjust the “Federal & Grant Matching” contribution rate. Under title 70 Oklahoma Statutes § 17-
108 the Board must establish the rate by April 1 and the rate is effective for the next fiscal year 
beginning July 1. Each local school district, state college or any other state agency whose 
employees are members of the Teachers Retirement System must pay the contribution rate when 
salaries are paid by federal funds or externally sponsored agreements such as grants, contracts, 
and cooperative agreements. Under federal guidelines, in order for pension contributions to be 
eligible for payment with federal funds, the rates established must be “actuarially” based. In the 
FY 2015 Actuarial Valuation prepared by the actuarial firm for the Board, and adopted by the 
Board, the Actuarial Determined Employer Contribution (ADEC) is 17.2%. Most employers pay 
a 9.5% contribution rate leaving 7.7% as the remaining contributions that are paid by the State 
through earmarked taxes and other revenue. Therefore, the positions funded with federal money 
need to equal this same contribution rate of 7.7%. For the year beginning July 1, 2016 we 
recommend that the Board of Trustees vote to establish the Federal & Grant Matching rate of 
7.7% of the employee’s compensation. 

This is a change from past years. In the past, staff attempted to do its own forecasting to come up 
with a contribution rate to approximate the amount of earmarked taxes and other revenue. Since 
the Board changed its amortization schedule to match its “funding period” the ADEC already 
includes an amount forecasted by the Board’s actuary. TRS can now establish the federal and 
grant matching rate using an actuarial calculation which is in compliance with federal guidelines. 

The employer’s contribution rate remains at 9.5% for common education, Career Tech, two-year 
colleges, and state agencies that have TRS clients. The employer contribution rate for 
comprehensive universities and the state’s four-year regional universities also remains at 8.55%. 
Lastly, the employee contribution has also not changed and is 7% of total compensation. 

79



CLIENT SERVICES PERFORMANCE METRICS THROUGH FEBRUARY 2016

85% 

11% 
4% 

INFORMATION CENTER PERFORMANCE FEBRUARY 2016 

395 Calls Routed  
Through Menu Options. 

4104 Calls Answered  in IC . 
Avg Wait Duration:  14 seconds. 

108 Callers Abandoned Line Before Answered (2%) 
 Average Abandon Duration:  22 seconds 

TOTAL CALLS RECEIVED  
THROUGH THE OTRS  

MAIN LINE :  6858 

TOTAL E-MAILS RECEIVED  
THROUGH OTRS WEB LINK:  

520 

E-MAILS 

862 Calls Routed  
Through Menu Options. 

6795 Calls Answered  in IC . 
Avg Wait Duration:  18 seconds. 

292 Callers Abandoned Line Before Answered  
 Average Abandon Duration:  20 seconds 

TOTAL CALLS RECEIVED  
THROUGH THE OTRS  

MAIN LINE :  7949 

TOTAL E-MAILS RECEIVED  
THROUGH OTRS WEB LINK:  

588 

E-MAILS 

Feb-15 Mar-15 Apr-15 May-15 Jun-15 Jul-15 Aug-15 Sep-15 Oct-15 Nov-15 Dec-15 Jan-16 Feb-16

N
um

be
r o

f C
al

ls
 

INCOMING CALLS SERVED THROUGH TRS MAIN NUMBER 

Total Incoming Answered Routed Abandoned

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

N
um

be
r o

f R
eq

ue
st

s 

ESTIMATE REQUESTS THROUGH FEBRUARY 2016 

New Requests Completed Outstanding* *Avg time to complete  < 48 hrs

80



Count Benefit Total
Average 
Benefit

Average Years 
of Service

Average 
Age

Disability 6 $5,646.53 $941.09 13.99 57.00
Normal 60 $79,383.66 $1,323.06 18.09 63.82
Total 66 $85,030.19 $1,288.34 17.72 63.20

139 ($193,245.00) 1390.26 25.14 82.91

Monthly Retirement Status Report
March 1, 2016

New Retirements

Terminated Annuities

81



Client 
Number

Years Of 
Service Age

Estimate 
Ret. Date

Retirement 
Number  Benefit

Q0013604 24 62 3/1/2016 106381 $3,020.75
Q0240525 25 65 3/1/2016 106255 $2,443.31
Q0102646 18 70 3/1/2016 106374 $257.53
Q0183836 19 60 3/1/2016 105847 $1,115.63
Q0348752 6 65 3/1/2016 106460 $419.30
Q0277179 11 64 3/1/2016 106424 $1,428.06
Q0309719 7 65 3/1/2016 106273 $149.67
Q0201986 21 62 3/1/2016 106253 $1,300.80
Q0291108 8 62 3/1/2016 106349 $237.84
Q0090179 23 57 3/1/2016 106130 $2,264.60
Q0298235 8 59 3/1/2016 106350 $243.20
Q0066186 27 62 3/1/2016 106320 $1,932.21
Q0146203 10 62 3/1/2016 106431 $566.61
Q0304355 7 63 3/1/2016 106309 $596.82
Q0050988 33 62 3/1/2016 106351 $2,193.05
Q0034268 18 62 3/1/2016 106046 $937.72
Q0160598 18 63 3/1/2016 106409 $1,276.42
Q0182614 24 62 3/1/2016 106390 $1,674.54
Q0201748 28 65 3/1/2016 106339 $1,401.50
Q0107428 10 61 3/1/2016 106321 $328.07
Q0105093 8 63 3/1/2016 106461 $136.90
Q0145407 14 61 3/1/2016 106444 $952.36
Q0019592 22 69 3/1/2016 106487 $1,637.15
Q0037798 17 63 3/1/2016 106382 $2,385.15
Q0160785 13 67 3/1/2016 106443 $726.50
Q0049994 20 63 3/1/2016 106335 $999.13
Q0288021 10 70 3/1/2016 106337 $360.75
Q0164065 29 65 3/1/2016 106399 $3,254.20
Q0026544 11 63 3/1/2016 106408 $734.41
Q0182356 12 63 3/1/2016 106449 $1,776.85
Q0313755 6 65 3/1/2016 106311 $222.78
Q0165462 14 62 3/1/2016 106329 $1,304.96
Q0256210 15 71 3/1/2016 106380 $845.45
Q0007273 7 68 3/1/2016 106343 $1,799.27
Q0200878 15 66 3/1/2016 106353 $1,162.15
Q0012175 23 67 3/1/2016 106352 $681.45
Q0126305 27 58 3/1/2016 106389 $1,407.01
Q0291054 9 73 3/1/2016 106387 $249.88
Q0158978 27 71 3/1/2016 106386 $1,206.26
Q0052215 26 54 3/1/2016 106388 $2,202.88
Q0255461 23 62 3/1/2016 106280 $1,189.79
Q0224171 16 64 3/1/2016 106415 $1,817.11
Q0184243 15 62 3/1/2016 106348 $321.41
Q0067780 11 65 3/1/2016 106396 $281.27
Q0042552 20 75 3/1/2016 106323 $1,424.24
Q0006974 17 61 3/1/2016 106371 $409.57
Q0139372 32 73 3/1/2016 106283 $2,821.42
Q0048972 42 64 3/1/2016 106224 $2,890.48

NORMAL RETIREMENTS 3/1/2016

82



Q0164640 16 60 3/1/2016 106448 $919.33
Q0164599 30 62 3/1/2016 106440 $2,273.86
Q0163545 29 61 3/1/2016 106422 $2,060.28
Q0163994 15 66 3/1/2016 106685 $477.78
Q0231125 9 66 3/1/2016 106395 $1,559.12
Q0067440 22 65 3/1/2016 106368 $1,400.08
Q0297879 8 67 3/1/2016 106325 $601.48
Q0030683 33 61 3/1/2016 106370 $2,142.66
Q0275238 11 66 3/1/2016 106394 $1,566.78
Q0148914 27 55 3/1/2016 106347 $1,982.09
Q0164294 21 60 3/1/2016 106310 $3,158.52
Q0050688 28 59 3/1/2016 106342 $2,253.27

Averages 18.09 63.82 $1,323.06
Totals 60 $79,383.66

83



Client 
Number

Years Of 
Service Age

Estimate 
Ret. Date

Retirement 
Number  Benefit

Q0188423 11 52 3/1/2016 D106702 $762.54
Q0261371 12 61 3/1/2016 D106701 $488.09
Q0129782 21 58 3/1/2016 D106705 $1,688.05
Q0205239 10 59 3/1/2016 D106704 $913.72
Q0065783 14 59 3/1/2016 D106703 $959.85
Q0238146 16 53 3/1/2016 D106700 $834.28

Averages 13.99 57.00 $941.09
Totals 6 $5,646.53

DISABILITY RETIREMENTS 3/1/2016

84



Termination 
Type

Years Of 
Service Age Death Date

Termination 
Date

Retirement 
Number Benefit

Deceased 38 104 1/24/2016 2/1/2016 013293 $1,678.69
Deceased 25 102 1/20/2016 2/1/2016 014173 $1,006.78
Deceased 19 96 1/13/2016 2/1/2016 018503 $781.02
Deceased 31 99 1/15/2016 2/1/2016 018788 $1,495.25
Deceased 38 98 1/5/2016 2/1/2016 019057 $1,829.85
Deceased 16 98 1/25/2016 2/1/2016 019212 $465.05
Deceased 10 95 1/10/2016 2/1/2016 019321 $327.35
Deceased 20 94 1/18/2016 2/1/2016 019410 $603.37
Deceased 41 97 1/5/2016 2/1/2016 019602 $1,997.37
Deceased 30 100 1/29/2016 2/1/2016 019737 $1,460.20
Deceased 23 97 1/26/2016 2/1/2016 020200 $1,090.32
Deceased 15 93 1/12/2016 2/1/2016 020483 $510.78
Deceased 37 83 1/24/2016 2/1/2016 020565 $750.58
Deceased 40 98 1/8/2016 2/1/2016 021493 $1,940.97
Deceased 20 95 1/3/2016 2/1/2016 021625 $398.09
Deceased 27 93 1/6/2016 2/1/2016 021657 $833.34
Deceased 11 98 1/9/2016 2/1/2016 022040 $259.83
Deceased 25 95 1/6/2016 2/1/2016 022151 $1,324.63
Deceased 22 95 1/13/2016 2/1/2016 022157 $1,169.56
Deceased 27 94 1/21/2016 2/1/2016 022321 $1,254.13
Deceased 21 97 1/8/2016 2/1/2016 022941 $662.69
Deceased 40 93 1/9/2016 2/1/2016 024265 $2,481.97
Deceased 18 92 1/4/2016 2/1/2016 025017 $725.67
Deceased 39 92 1/16/2016 2/1/2016 025314 $1,885.85
Deceased 32 87 1/11/2016 2/1/2016 025531 $1,997.52
Deceased 25 93 1/1/2016 2/1/2016 025723 $1,355.03
Deceased 28 87 1/23/2016 2/1/2016 025850 $1,472.21
Deceased 20 91 1/29/2016 2/1/2016 025907 $638.31
Deceased 17 92 1/3/2016 2/1/2016 026250 $864.79
Deceased 43 82 1/25/2016 2/1/2016 026378 $1,212.47
Deceased 41 83 1/23/2016 2/1/2016 026383 $2,092.30
Deceased 27 90 1/21/2016 2/1/2016 026956 $1,014.74
Deceased 19 83 1/10/2016 2/1/2016 027089 $397.99
Deceased 38 93 1/11/2016 2/1/2016 027238 $2,220.97
Deceased 16 93 1/10/2016 2/1/2016 027375 $567.26
Deceased 13 91 1/29/2016 2/1/2016 027397 $556.37
Deceased 16 95 1/5/2016 2/1/2016 027732 $415.33
Deceased 20 90 1/16/2016 2/1/2016 027930 $1,069.48
Deceased 26 89 1/4/2016 2/1/2016 028061 $1,626.17
Deceased 32 95 1/5/2016 2/1/2016 028064 $1,090.28
Deceased 14 89 1/8/2016 2/1/2016 028154 $160.26
Deceased 33 85 1/27/2016 2/1/2016 028273 $2,175.70
Deceased 23 89 1/5/2016 2/1/2016 028309 $1,177.50
Deceased 13 91 1/9/2016 2/1/2016 028454 $315.05
Deceased 16 98 1/26/2016 2/1/2016 028534 $1,283.63
Deceased 40 95 1/10/2016 2/1/2016 028590 $3,210.15
Deceased 28 87 1/10/2016 2/1/2016 028688 $1,864.61
Deceased 35 84 1/26/2016 2/1/2016 028787 $2,822.51
Deceased 24 86 1/8/2016 2/1/2016 029005 $1,518.13
Deceased 27 87 1/24/2016 2/1/2016 029205 $983.90

TERMINATIONS From 2/1/2016 to 2/29/2016

85



Deceased 28 82 1/5/2016 2/1/2016 029358 $1,386.96
Deceased 14 84 1/19/2016 2/1/2016 029406 $164.54
Deceased 30 79 1/23/2016 2/1/2016 029676 $1,591.01
Deceased 18 84 1/19/2016 2/1/2016 029705 $573.81
Deceased 17 82 1/13/2016 2/1/2016 030341 $578.88
Deceased 23 84 1/9/2016 2/1/2016 030823 $1,115.59
Deceased 18 89 1/25/2016 2/1/2016 031175 $887.20
Deceased 45 90 1/11/2016 2/1/2016 031387 $3,537.95
Deceased 20 88 1/14/2016 2/1/2016 031562 $1,008.92
Deceased 33 88 1/21/2016 2/1/2016 032020 $2,131.17
Deceased 34 82 1/24/2016 2/1/2016 032749 $1,798.35
Deceased 29 82 1/3/2016 2/1/2016 033294 $1,515.01
Deceased 20 91 1/14/2016 2/1/2016 033371 $445.00
Deceased 26 86 1/16/2016 2/1/2016 034873 $730.91
Deceased 30 77 1/24/2016 2/1/2016 034957 $2,129.89
Deceased 21 89 1/7/2016 2/1/2016 035303 $360.04
Deceased 26 91 1/31/2016 2/1/2016 035452 $1,214.44
Deceased 11 91 2/1/2016 2/1/2016 035604 $592.01
Deceased 26 87 1/5/2016 2/1/2016 035918 $1,722.44
Deceased 24 79 1/10/2016 2/1/2016 036444 $1,236.43
Deceased 20 87 1/11/2016 2/1/2016 036553 $1,195.20
Deceased 42 86 1/26/2016 2/1/2016 037609 $2,791.96
Deceased 22 80 1/12/2016 2/1/2016 037889 $1,230.80
Deceased 22 80 1/2/2016 2/1/2016 037932 $1,385.47
Deceased 19 83 1/3/2016 2/1/2016 038098 $1,240.12
Deceased 33 84 1/24/2016 2/1/2016 038194 $2,079.64
Deceased 23 87 1/14/2016 2/1/2016 038220 $1,769.99
Deceased 23 87 1/9/2016 2/1/2016 039086 $1,744.97
Deceased 38 80 1/2/2016 2/1/2016 039316 $2,503.07
Deceased 25 81 1/24/2016 2/1/2016 039619 $962.27
Deceased 25 83 1/15/2016 2/1/2016 039740 $1,130.00
Deceased 10 90 1/7/2016 2/1/2016 040070 $261.11
Deceased 22 79 1/3/2016 2/1/2016 040198 $1,415.70
Deceased 35 83 1/8/2016 2/1/2016 040384 $2,726.10
Deceased 13 78 1/10/2016 2/1/2016 041595 $437.36
Deceased 14 77 1/14/2016 2/1/2016 041984 $324.19
Deceased 31 80 1/15/2016 2/1/2016 042195 $2,066.10
Deceased 36 80 1/30/2016 2/1/2016 042889 $2,800.63
Deceased 30 72 1/27/2016 2/1/2016 043677 $2,220.74
Deceased 17 87 1/13/2016 2/1/2016 043999 $981.83
Deceased 30 70 1/16/2016 2/1/2016 044387 $2,216.67
Deceased 25 74 1/20/2016 2/1/2016 044785 $1,935.32
Deceased 12 85 1/19/2016 2/1/2016 045182 $685.09
Deceased 30 71 1/8/2016 2/1/2016 045770 $2,181.09
Deceased 25 75 1/6/2016 2/1/2016 046528 $1,467.97
Deceased 37 82 2/8/2016 2/1/2016 046626 $1,390.85
Deceased 13 85 1/19/2016 2/1/2016 046750 $589.02
Deceased 38 77 1/17/2016 2/1/2016 047716 $2,919.11
Deceased 27 71 1/24/2016 2/1/2016 047719 $1,885.71
Deceased 32 80 1/11/2016 2/1/2016 047756 $2,153.78
Deceased 26 80 1/7/2016 2/1/2016 047801 $1,620.28
Deceased 17 80 1/15/2016 2/1/2016 048366 $1,209.66
Deceased 32 76 1/22/2016 2/1/2016 048415 $2,034.62
Deceased 13 80 1/14/2016 2/1/2016 048533 $1,024.52

86



Deceased 30 74 1/25/2016 2/1/2016 049060 $2,265.13
Deceased 13 81 1/22/2016 2/1/2016 049970 $240.34
Deceased 30 78 1/13/2016 2/1/2016 050351 $1,915.36
Deceased 27 80 1/22/2016 2/1/2016 051284 $1,835.94
Deceased 38 78 1/27/2016 2/1/2016 052191 $1,484.30
Deceased 20 78 1/6/2016 2/1/2016 054337 $1,528.04
Deceased 27 67 1/13/2016 2/1/2016 055423 $1,941.79
Deceased 31 71 1/18/2016 2/1/2016 058192 $1,770.97
Deceased 21 78 1/23/2016 2/1/2016 058305 $1,464.99
Deceased 11 85 1/30/2016 2/1/2016 059116 $317.18
Deceased 22 72 1/9/2016 2/1/2016 059828 $809.59
Deceased 11 77 1/29/2016 2/1/2016 060401 $582.62
Deceased 32 72 1/1/2016 2/1/2016 063957 $2,189.31
Deceased 21 72 1/21/2016 2/1/2016 064755 $495.98
Deceased 25 74 1/29/2016 2/1/2016 064938 $1,660.57
Deceased 21 69 1/23/2016 2/1/2016 067731 $1,445.85
Deceased 14 72 1/1/2016 2/1/2016 067771 $468.90
Deceased 27 62 1/19/2016 2/1/2016 068458 $2,325.92
Deceased 23 70 1/14/2016 2/1/2016 069072 $824.57
Deceased 24 72 1/27/2016 2/1/2016 069325 $758.36
Deceased 21 71 1/23/2016 2/1/2016 071967 $1,646.63
Deceased 19 71 1/9/2016 2/1/2016 075506 $1,026.97
Deceased 27 61 1/20/2016 2/1/2016 078416 $1,546.48
Deceased 21 66 1/24/2016 2/1/2016 078706 $1,463.69
Deceased 33 72 1/27/2016 2/1/2016 093894 $1,315.12
Deceased 27 71 1/18/2016 2/1/2016 094771 $1,711.82
Deceased 34 65 1/6/2016 2/1/2016 095154 $2,922.13
Deceased 30 62 1/18/2016 2/1/2016 097170 $2,202.41
Deceased 28 58 1/7/2016 2/1/2016 098325 $2,105.85
Deceased 27 67 1/23/2016 2/1/2016 099223 $2,288.50
Deceased 29 67 1/30/2016 2/1/2016 100049 $2,457.55
Deceased 25 67 1/22/2016 2/1/2016 104687 $2,331.38
Deceased 26 66 1/25/2016 2/1/2016 D02091 $1,706.99
Deceased 15 62 1/4/2016 2/1/2016 D02526 $889.78
Deceased 15 59 1/25/2016 2/1/2016 D096100 $966.96

Averages 25.14 82.91 $1,390.26
Totals 139 $193,245.46

87



HR STATUS REPORT 
3/23/2016 

HR STATUS REPORT 

• New Hires (February 2016):

Employee: 324153 
Title: Executive Assistant 
Salary: $47,000 
Effective: 2/8/2016 

• Resignations/Terminations/Retirements (February 2016):

n/a 

• Promotions (February 2016):

n/a 

EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION LUNCHEON 

• An Employee Recognition Luncheon was held 3/9/2016.

MISCELLANEOUS PAYMENTS 

• Employee of the Quarter

Employee: 147588 
Title: Retirement Planning Consultant 
Payment: $250 
Effective: 3/31/2016 

• Severance Payments:

n/a 

NEW HIRES, RESIGNATIONS, RETIREMENTS OR OTHER CHANGES PENDING 

• Several changes are pending in Client Services as a result of one employee retiring.

88



Employer Reporting
Analysis of Employee and Employer Contributions Received

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0

2

4

6

8

10

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June TOTAL

Number of Delinquent Reports FY16

$
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

-$10,000

$10,000

$30,000

$50,000

$70,000

$90,000

$110,000

$130,000

$150,000

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June TOTAL

Estimated Delinquent Funds FY16

$
5

6
,2

2
7

,9
4

8
.6

6
 

$
3

9
,3

7
3

,8
6

3
.2

2
 

$
5

4
,0

8
5

,7
8

2
.7

1
 

$
6

6
,0

4
9

,7
6

7
.8

2
 

$
5

8
,4

4
4

,3
8

1
.1

7
 

$
6

6
,3

5
9

,1
5

4
.4

5
 

$
5

3
,5

7
3

,1
3

5
.0

7
 $
3

9
4

,1
1

4
,0

3
3

.1
0

 

$
6

4
,1

7
9

,1
5

6
.6

3
 

$
3

7
,2

6
8

,7
7

1
.4

2
 

$
4

8
,1

3
6

,1
4

3
.7

5
 

$
6

5
,8

7
9

,3
5

6
.1

0
 

$
6

0
,2

2
6

,8
4

9
.0

4
 

$
6

5
,9

6
1

,7
6

3
.8

3
 

$
5

8
,8

0
6

,6
1

9
.1

0
 $
4

0
0

,4
5

8
,6

5
9

.8
7

 

$0

$100,000,000

$200,000,000

$300,000,000

$400,000,000

$500,000,000

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June TOTAL

Comparison of Contributions Received

For Seven Months Ended January 31, 2015 and January 31, 2016

2015 2016

89



CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash Not Available For Investment $5,222,967.38

Equities (At Market Value) 9,517,586,555.98

Fixed Income (At Market Value) 2,856,926,891.47

Short-Term Investment Account 420,217,737.76

Due From/(To) Broker (129,717,566.92)

Accounts Receivable Installment Payments 1,271,016.06

Accrued Income 51,654,994.85

Total Current Assets 12,723,162,596.58

CAPITAL ASSETS:

Office Furniture and Equipment 3,924,987.00

Accumulated Depreciation (275,838.00)

TOTAL ASSETS $12,726,811,745.58

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Teachers' Savings Fund $4,711,232,894.46

Retirement Benefit Fund 9,338,765,560.76

Interest Fund (1,406,009,842.32)

Expense Fund 38,232,096.56

Suspense Fund 40,475,755.80

Total Current Liabilities 12,722,696,465.26

TRS Capital Investment 4,115,280.32

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL INVESTMENT $12,726,811,745.58

BALANCE SHEET 

FEBRUARY 29, 2016

90



Year to Date Year to Date % Change

(FY 2016) (FY 2015)

Balance of Cash and Investments

Net Position, Beginning of Year $14,374,427,590.20 $14,201,669,559.43

RECEIPTS:

Members' Deposits 173,221,781.96 174,426,512.47 -0.69%

Employer Contributions 254,892,880.44 253,102,878.69 0.71%

State Credits 11,276,363.32 25,019,015.00 -54.93%

Reimbursed Administrative 3,073.35 14,189.05 -78.34%

Matching Funds from Schools 16,085,836.35 15,573,481.56 3.29%

Lottery Revenue 1,710,407.30 2,062,444.00 -17.07%

Cigarette Sales Tax Revenue 1,139,971.22 1,097,370.37 3.88%

Dedicated Revenue 200,459,003.85 210,962,483.73 -4.98%

Total Retirement Receipts 658,789,317.79 682,258,374.87 -3.44%

Interest Income (Fixed Income and Short-Term) 154,124,763.26 84,766,019.02 81.82%

Dividend Income 125,954,683.81 134,759,527.73 -6.53%

Net Realized Gain/(Loss) 184,854,903.94 580,108,211.50 -68.13%

Net Unrealized Gain/(Loss) (1,875,803,573.48) (332,191,100.85) -464.68%

Investment Operations Income:

Class Action Lawsuit Proceeds 0.00 108.64 -100.00%

Other Income 0.00 95,652.80 -100.00%

Securities Lending Income 4,859,380.15 7,569,813.77 -35.81%

Total Investment Income (1,406,009,842.32) 475,108,232.61 -395.93%

TOTAL RECEIPTS (747,220,524.53) 1,157,366,607.48 -164.56%

DISBURSEMENTS:

Retirement Benefits 809,372,245.98 775,874,789.98 4.32%

Insurance Premiums Paid for Retirees 20,441,106.00 20,303,815.00 0.68%

Death Benefits 10,679,053.77 9,821,059.30 8.74%

Withdrawals of Accounts 26,276,523.02 22,500,763.64 16.78%

Total Benefit Payments 866,768,928.77 828,500,427.92 4.62%

Administrative Expense:

General Operations 3,510,869.18 3,380,234.38 3.86%

Investment Expense 33,764,671.14 36,364,487.71 -7.15%

Total Administrative Expenses 37,275,540.32 39,744,722.09 -6.21%

TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS 904,044,469.09 868,245,150.01 4.12%

NET INCREASE/(NET DECREASE) (1,651,264,993.62) 289,121,457.47 -671.13%

Balance of Cash and Investments, February 29 $12,723,162,596.58 $14,490,791,016.90

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

FOR THE EIGHT MONTHS ENDED FEBRUARY 29

91



FY-2015 YTD FY-2016 YTD

Actual Actual Increase Increase

Expenditures Expenditures (Decrease) (Decrease)

Object of Expenditure 2/28/2015 2/29/2016 Amount Percentage

Personal Services

Salary and Longevity Pay Expenses 1,183,606 1,423,993 240,387 20.3%

Taxes, Benefits, and Other Expenses 600,204 701,108 100,904 16.8%

Subtotal Personal Services 1,783,810 2,125,101 341,291 19.1%

Professional Services

Investment Manager Expenses 22,770,525 20,669,156 (2,101,369) -9.2%

Investment Consultant Expenses 528,000 619,500 91,500 17.3%

Investment Custodian Expenses 0 12,777 12,777 0.0%

Pension Commission Expenses 15,016 4,987 (10,029) -66.8%

Subtotal Investment Expenses 23,313,541 21,306,420 (2,007,121) -8.6%

Legal Services - Special Projects 23,185 20,326 (2,859) -12.3%

Legal Services - Attorney General 743 0 (743) 0.0%

Administrative Hearings 0 0 0 0.0%

Auditing Services 201,668 145,280 (56,388) -28.0%

Actuarial Services 65,564 105,943 40,379 61.6%

Medical Hearings 6,300 6,269 (31) -0.5%

Reimbursement for Executive Director Services 29,444 0 (29,444) 0.0%

Contract Lobbyist 0 3,750 3,750 0.0%

Marketing/Management Consultant 0 3,550 3,550 0.0%

Miscellaneous Services 59,327 10,920 (48,407) -81.6%

Subtotal Professional Services 386,231 296,038 (90,193) -23.4%

Total Professional Services 23,699,772 21,602,458 (2,097,314) -8.8%

Travel and Per Diem Expenses

Non-Employee Travel Expenses 15,477 19,437 3,960 25.6%

Employee Training 4,773 2,455 (2,318) -48.6%

Employee Travel Expenses 13,035 12,062 (973) -7.5%

Subtotal Travel and Per Diem Expenses 33,285 33,954 669 2.0%

Administrative Expenses

Postage 141,027 148,111 7,084 5.0%

Telecommunications Services 16,012 9,522 (6,490) -40.5%

Printing and Binding Contracts 27,463 41,715 14,252 51.9%

Informational Services 29,550 12,540 (17,010) -57.6%

Rent and Maintenance 137,347 118,498 (18,849) -13.7%

Membership in Organizations 0 8,430 8,430 0.0%

Office Supplies 17,161 19,510 2,349 13.7%

Buildings and Other Structures Construction and Renovation 0 0 0 0.0%

Miscellaneous Administrative Expenses 21,338 13,326 (8,012) -37.5%

Subtotal Administrative Expenses 389,898 371,652 (18,246) -4.7%

Data Processing Expenses

Professional Services 505,186 346,110 (159,076) -31.5%

Rent and Maintenance 1,765 2,782 1,017 57.6%

Office Supplies 0 0 0 0.0%

Equipment -Telecommunications 2,621 10,619 7,998 305.2%

Subtotal Data Processing Expenses 509,572 359,511 (150,061) -29.4%

Total Expenses 26,416,337 24,492,676 (1,923,661) -7.3%

Total Investment Expenses Only 23,313,541 21,306,420 (2,007,121) -8.6%

Total Data Processing Expenses Only 509,572 359,511 (150,061) -29.4%

Total except Investment & Data Processing Expenses 2,593,224 2,826,746 233,522 9.0%

Wednesday, March 23, 2016

SCHEDULE I

Comparison of Actual Expenditures Fiscal Year 2015 and Fiscal Year 2016

8 Months Ended February 29, 2016

92



8 Months 8 Months Over Over

FY-2016 YTD FY-2016 YTD (Under) (Under)

Object of Expenditure Budget Actual Amount Percentage

Personal Services

Salary and Longevity Pay Expenses 1,584,036 1,423,993 (160,043) -10.1%

Taxes, Benefits, and Other Expenses 815,636 701,108 (114,528) -14.0%

Subtotal Personal Services 2,399,672 2,125,101 (274,571) -11.4%

Professional Services

Investment Manager Expenses 27,585,984 20,669,156 (6,916,828) -25.1%

Investment Consultant Expenses 723,000 619,500 (103,500) -14.3%

Investment Custodian Expenses 26,250 12,777 (13,473) -51.3%

Pension Commission Expenses 35,000 4,987 (30,013) -85.8%

Subtotal Investment Expenses 28,370,234 21,306,420 (7,063,814) -24.9%

Legal Services - Special Projects 16,664 20,326 3,662 22.0%

Legal Services - Attorney General 5,000 0 (5,000) 0.0%

Administrative Hearings 3,750 0 (3,750) 0.0%

Auditing Services 162,500 145,280 (17,220) -10.6%

Actuarial Services 80,000 105,943 25,943 32.4%

Medical Hearings 10,268 6,269 (3,999) -38.9%

CIO Executive Search 36,250 0 (36,250) 0.0%

Communications Firm 33,336 0 (33,336) 0.0%

Contract Lobbyist 25,001 3,750 (21,251) -85.0%

Marketing/Management Consultant 0 3,550 3,550 0.0%

Miscellaneous Services 16,652 10,920 (5,732) -34.4%

Subtotal Professional Services 389,421 296,038 (93,383) -24.0%

Total Professional Services 28,759,655 21,602,458 (7,157,197) -24.9%

Travel and Per Diem Expenses

Non-Employee Travel Expenses 34,400 19,437 (14,963) -43.5%

Employee Training 7,375 2,455 (4,920) -66.7%

Employee Travel Expenses 61,573 12,062 (49,511) -80.4%

Subtotal Travel and Per Diem Expenses 103,348 33,954 (69,394) -67.1%

Administrative Expenses

Postage 116,272 148,111 31,839 27.4%

Telecommunications Services 20,000 9,522 (10,478) -52.4%

Printing and Binding Contracts 82,958 41,715 (41,243) -49.7%

Informational Services 33,300 12,540 (20,760) -62.3%

Rent and Maintenance 149,670 118,498 (31,172) -20.8%

Membership in Organizations 8,605 8,430 (175) -2.0%

Office Supplies 19,209 19,510 301 1.6%

Equipment 7,000 0 (7,000) 0.0%

Miscellaneous Administrative Expenses 27,785 13,326 (14,459) -52.0%

Subtotal Administrative Expenses 464,799 371,652 (93,147) -20.0%

Data Processing Expenses

Professional Services 502,036 346,110 (155,926) -31.1%

Rent and Maintenance 3,500 2,782 (718) -20.5%

Office Supplies 4,164 0 (4,164) 0.0%

Equipment 102,500 10,619 (91,881) -89.6%

Subtotal Data Processing Expenses 612,200 359,511 (252,689) -41.3%

Total Expenses 32,339,674 24,492,677 (7,846,997) -24.3%

Total Investment Expenses Only 28,370,234 21,306,420 (7,063,814) -24.9%

Total Data Processing Expenses Only 612,200 359,511 (252,689) -41.3%

Total except Investment and Data Processing Expenses 3,357,240 2,826,746 (530,494) -15.8%

Wednesday, March 23, 2016

SCHEDULE II

Comparison of FY2016 Budget to Actual Expenses

8 Months ended February 29, 2016 Year to Date Comparison

93



Miscellaneous Professional Services Expenses

Budget Expenses Expenses

2016 2016 2015

Background Checks 40.00$    38.00$    95.00$    

Executive Director Search - - 43,008.65     

Document Destruction 2,400.00     1,260.00     1,351.00       

Other Professional, Science & Technology Svc. (Communications) 2,300.00     2,184.20     2,300.02       

Security 6,000.00     - 4,258.79       

Business Service Center 3,200.00     7,437.76     8,079.02       

Administrative Management - General Management Consulting 2,550.00     - - 

Flexible Benefits Administration 162.00        - - 

Legal Subscription Service - - 235.00          

$16,652.00 $10,919.96 $59,327.48

Miscellaneous Administrative Expenses 

Budget Expenses Expenses

2016 2016 2015

Advertising and Promotional Expenses 3,000.00$   889.93$      813.52$    

Informational Services 400.00        2,716.74     - 

Bank Service Charges 7,500.00     4,529.95     4,483.89       

ERP Systems - PeopleSoft 2,120.00     1,858.50     1,593.00       

Licenses, Permits, Certificates and Other Rights 2,190.00     182.50        1,928.50       

Membership in Organizations - - 8,140.00       

Exhibitions, Shows, Special Events 2,000.00     - - 

Property and Liability Insurance 3,000.00     2,898.33     2,807.87       

Tuition Career-Tech Schools and Other Training 7,575.00     - 1,410.00       

Interior Design Services (OCI - Modular Furniture) - 250.00        - 

Interest on Withholding Taxes - - 161.42          

$27,785.00 $13,325.95 $21,338.20

Wednesday, March 23, 2016

94



$0

$10

$20

$30

$40

$50

$60

1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter

M
ill

io
n

s 

Investment Manager Fees 

Expenses FY15

Budget FY16

Expenses FY16

$0

$100,000

$200,000

$300,000

$400,000

$500,000

$600,000

$700,000

$800,000

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

Total Expenses minus 
Investment Manager Fees 

Expenses FY15

Budget FY16

Expenses FY16

$0

$1,000,000

$2,000,000

$3,000,000

$4,000,000

$5,000,000

Expenses
FY15

Budget
FY16

Expenses
FY16

FY16 YTD Expenses minus 
Manager Fees 

Expenses FY15

Budget FY16

Expenses FY16

95



Expenses of Board

Trustee Trustee Meeting - February 135.00$   

Trustee Investment Committee/Trustee Meeting - January 268.72 

Trustee Investment Committee/Trustee Meeting - Jan. & Febr. 352.53 

Trustee Investment Committee/Trustee Meeting - Jan. & Febr. 371.60 

1,127.85 

Travel of Employees

Director of Client Services Retirement presentation - Ada, OK 91.80

91.80 

Communications

Ala Carte Courier Courier services 497.20 

AT&T Wireless, OneNet charges 387.16 

Cox Communications Cable charges 43.48 

JP Morgan Chase Bank, NA Account analysis bank fees: November & December 639.11

Office of Management and Enterprise Services Telecommunications, transaction fees: January 1,458.03

Thomson West Legal information services 253.00

University of Oklahoma Printing fees 22,935.00 

26,212.98 

Contingency, Maintenance, Insurance, Rent, Etc.

Assistant Comptroller Postage reimbursement 6.74 

Business & Legal Resources Subscription service 479.00 

Department of Libraries Records storage - December 489.90 
Executive Assistant Reimbursement - meeting supplies - February 41.81 
Extreme Beans Coffee Kitchen supplies/equipment 928.40 

Financial Accountant Reimbursement - office supplies 4.32 

General Counsel Reimbursement - meeting supplies - January 18.73 

Kamp's 1910 Café February Board meeting 324.17 

Office of Management and Enterprise Services Fleet management - van rental for seminars 201.21 

Office of Management and Enterprise Services Office rent - December 13,195.27 

Oklahoma Secretary of State Apostille fee 20.00 

Oklahoma State Bureau of Investigations Background check 19.00 

Precision Document Solutions Printer maintenance 266.92 

South Central Industries Kitchen/meeting supplies 195.00 

Staples Office supplies 1,550.17 

Summit Mailing Systems Mail/data equipment maintenance 111.25 

The Journal Record Subscription service 2,699.00 

The Walker Companies Office supplies 113.24 

20,664.13

CLAIMS FOR AUTHORIZED EXPENDITURES

FEBRUARY 29, 2016

96



Investment Expenditures

Advisory Research Investment management fees 787,132.47$   

AJO Investment management fees 263,071.00 

Bogdahn Consulting January 2016 investment consultant fees 88,500.00 

Chickasaw Capital Management Investment management fees 451,389.38 

Cove Street Capital Investment management fees 182,091.00 

Cushing MLP Asset Management LP Investment management fees 303,578.27 

Epoch Investment Partners, Inc. Investment management fees 909,442.08 

Frontier Capital Management Investment management fees 1,059,555.48          

Geneva Capital Management Investment management fees 373,029.00 

Hoisington Investment Management Investment management fees 114,651.62 

Hotchkis and Wiley Capital Management Investment management fees 1,003,817.85          

Loomis Sayles & Company Investment management fees 518,424.42 

Lord Abbett & Co. Investment management fees 494,144.61 

Mackay Shields Investment management fees 601,666.17 

Neumeier Poma Investment Counsel Investment management fees 203,988.00 

Shapiro Capital Management Investment management fees 1,158,814.05          

State Street Global Advisors Index fund fees 21,197.50 

Wasatch Advisors, Inc. Investment management fees 895,598.33 

Wellington Management Co. Investment management fees 878,247.85 

10,308,339.08        

Professional Services, Workers Comp Insurance

Gabriel Roeder Smith & Co. Actuary fees: December, January & GASB 68 20,000.00 

Dathan D. Jay, MD Medical Board - February 300.00 

George R. Jay, MD Medical Board - February 300.00 

ICE Miller Legal fees - December 308.55 

Majority Plus, LLC Lobbyist service - January 3,750.00 

MY Consulting Inc. ALICE/Client server development - January 22,905.63 

Office of Management and Enterprise Services Interagency mail/postage/printing 66,904.67 

Peyton Osborne, MD Medical Board - February 300.00 

RSM US LLP Audit fees - 6/30/2015 financial statement audit 32,500.00 

Stinnett & Associates LLC Audit services - November & January 12,771.00 

The Meadows Document destruction 180.00 

160,219.85 

Salaries and Fringe Benefits

Salaries Administrative department 29,492.51 

Salaries Finance/Accounting department 33,099.33

Salaries Client Services department 85,147.42

Salaries Investment department 19,662.93

Longevity Payroll 3,276.00

Excess Benefit Allowance 4,543.63

FICA/MQFE Social Security and Medicare 13,108.85

Oklahoma State Deferred Savings Incentive Plan Savings incentive plan and administrative fee 881.10

Oklahoma Group Insurance Employee health, dental, and life 33,029.57

Teachers' Retirement System of Oklahoma Employees' retirement contributions 36,771.28

259,012.62

Grand Total 10,775,668.31$   

FEBRUARY 29, 2016

CLAIMS FOR AUTHORIZED EXPENDITURES

97


	March 2016 Client Services Board Report.pdf
	Sheet1
	Sheet2
	Sheet3
	Sheet4
	FEB 2016 MONTHLY METRICS.pdf
	Board of Trustee


	Third draft revision Investment Policy Statement .pdf
	I. Introduction and Statements of Purpose, Philosophy and Ethics
	A. Legal Authority and System Description
	B. Statement of Purpose
	C. Statement of Investment Philosophy
	D. Statement of Ethical Standards

	II.  Statement of Roles Duties and Responsibilities
	A. Board of Trustees
	B. Staff
	C. Investment Consultant
	D. Investment Managers
	E. Custodian
	F. Securities Lending Agent
	G. Transition Manager

	III. Procedures
	A. Investment Policy Review
	B. Investment Manager Policy Exceptions
	C. Third Party Marketing and Referrals Disclosure Policy

	IV. Investment Objectives
	I. Asset Allocation
	I. Rebalancing Policy
	A. Overall Fund Allocation
	A. Allocation among Equity Styles

	I. Securities Transactions
	V. Investment Guidelines and Constraints
	A. Ineligible Investments
	A. Manager Policy Exceptions
	B. Universal Cash Rule for all OTRS Accounts
	C. Index Portfolios
	D. Domestic Equity Portfolios
	E. International Equity
	F. Fixed Income
	G. Securities Lending
	H. Private Equity
	I. Real Estate
	J. Master Limited Partnership (Energy Infrastructure)
	K. Opportunistic Investments
	L. Derivatives

	VI. Evaluation and Review
	A. Investment Staff Reporting Requirements
	B. Investment Consultant Reporting Requirements
	1.
	C. Investment Manager Reporting Requirements

	I. Third Party Marketing and Referrals Disclosure Policy
	VII. Appendix A - Strategic Asset Allocation
	VIII. Appendix B - Rebalancing Policy
	A. Overall Fund Allocation
	B. Allocation among Equity Styles

	IX. Appendix C – Investment Manager Exceptions to Investment Guidelines
	Any exception requests subsequent to the approval of these guidelines, should be submitted according to the framework established in section VII; B.
	Requested term: 12/31/2016
	Requested term: 12/31/2017
	Requested term: 08/31/2017
	Requested term: 04/30/2018

	X. Appendix B D – Investment Manager Performance Benchmarks




